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RAREBLE
CORPORATE MILESTONES

0 2020527 BEEAMEERTE BRI AR BNEGERSED  (EANEES
IN FEBRUARY 2020 PERRLZET20200EMBER S EEBESHRIREL  ETELRE

FELMIGEE RNV EBEYEETRITENELESTRESD - &
EAEZEEY AREH

was listed as an epidemic prevention benchmark for smart
properties by Guangdong Property Management Industry
Institute; as a representative of property management enterprises
excellent in epidemic prevention, it participated in the special
exhibition in 2020 Guangzhou Smart Property Management Expo;
its employees were awarded the title of “Property Hero” in the
national conference for reporting meritorious deeds in epidemic
prevention in the property management industry held by the
Regulatory Department of the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development

WiEEMNTERE Y EEREFR AR
acquired Guangzhou Haoqing Property Management Co., Ltd.

m| 202058 BREENTRADEERERAR  EAHREREYRER AL
IN MAY 2020 acquired Guangzhou Yaocheng Property Management Co., Ltd.,
thus entering the field of property management for power supply
system

TN AMSCIHR BN AR 38 U () 1%
were admitted as constituent stocks of the MSCI China Small Cap
Index

WHET DIBRISTYERB AR AR5 %R - AT TEYIRMEDE
EIRET

acquired 51% equity interest in Shanghai Kejian Property Services
Co., Ltd., thus entering the field of industrial logistics real estate
property management
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[0 202057A o e .
IN JULY 2020 M EEEEFRERMARAA - 43_%%@@‘15%%%%@/&375%1
[5G+ARKItREEERE ] WRITIHMER - BFITERKLR
established the “5G + Future Community Joint Laboratory” with
Alibaba South China Technology Co., Ltd. and China Mobile
Group Guangdong Co., Ltd. and held the unveiling ceremony to
jointly build the future community

R RARKRDER AR A EGZ B2 [ RREEHFEE
BR=E] - IETA +PE] ATBRERSSEM

signed a strategic cooperation agreement with iFlytek Co., Ltd. to
jointly build a “Future Community Digital Twin Laboratory” and
accelerate the implementation of the “Al + Property” artificial
intelligence application scenario

R ER B E R RER D - BEESEBETET
successfully completed share placing and subscription, thus raising
the funds of over HKD700 million

EMNEEERESEBEXG KRR EEBRBIEERTIKMDR
were admitted as constituent stocks of Hang Seng Composite
Index and Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index Series
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CORPORATE MILESTONES

[0 2020F11A8

IN NOVEMBER 2020 SR EERTEIIT @ BRARBEHE MR R ENEE A E - 22

£

=

FRERBM BRI - IER BRI T R HEIRES - BA R TE R
PR 75 60 397 5 B

has reached strategic cooperation with Nehe City, Heilongjiang
Province and Fufeng County, Baoji City, Shaanxi Province, marking
the layout of comprehensive business portfolio, officially moving
from a single urban public service to a new stage of all-round city
management service

Bl T WABRE S E TR B R 12 8149 % B AR AN 55 ) IR AE 82 R 1hp
& AR B 7 [ Y AR AR R T 5 10 B8

entered into an equity transfer agreement for the acquisition of
49% equity interest of Chengdu Holytech Technology Co., Ltd.,
thus increasing its size and market share in Southwest China

BRI BRmEAREME - Bm T [BEERS] M2 HREES - []RA
R aIER | MEHEMK [KRAREREBHNEFERETE ] ETH
BT IBEZAZIENER hEESD

successfully held the press conference for brand upgrade,
announcing the new service philosophy of “creation of services”,
the new positioning of “modern service creator” and the beautiful
vision of “becoming a global excellent life service platform”, so as
to fulfill the corporate mission of “let more people enjoy a better
life”
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2020 E Pplk it %5 A 58 1l

2020 TOP100 Property Management Companies in China

PARRRPERA S IE. A RGN, M TEEINE. EAA. MR, RREEDRIM S THEN T, SEMMEe T AR AR,
g TR 2020

“ WHRAR B PR 2w
3R 2020 P EIEIRS ERADE

China Index Academy.

Adhering

Property management companies which is based on business size,

i efficiency

W social responsibility, using

@06

2020 China Top
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2020 Il JkZ5 ol ET2 7

2020 Top 10 Listed Company of Property Management Service
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2020 A AR R

iSdE B3
Time Particulars
1, 2020F5A 138 PR ([ ]) — 2020 EM ¥ RS G581 top12
13 May 2020 China Index Academy (“CIA") — 12th in the Top 100 Property Management
Companies in China in 2020 (20207 B ¥ % fR 75 & 58 1> ¥ top12)
2. 202045 A 13H Hrigle — B B T ) S RIS B SE 1B top5
13 May 2020 CIA-China’s Top 5 Leading Enterprises in Urban Property Management (# Ed35
T ¥ RS B L 1> % top5)
3. 202045 A13H FIgbt — R B E M ERB LRSS E Stop10
13 May 2020 CIA-Top 10 Listed Property Management Companies in China in Terms of
Overall Strength (FRE RSB E4REE JItop10)
4. 2020F5A13H hEMEEE RS ([PYH]) — B EHYERBIREBEES B ¥tops
13 May 2020 China Property Management Institute (“CPMI")-Top 5 Excellent Listed Property
Management Enterprises with Investment Value in China (FRE - #13 IR7E %
EEEEFHtops)
5. 202095 H13H il - PESEMERBRERLE - RERERS
13 May 2020 CIA-China Leading Property Management Companies in Terms of Characteristic
Services-Quality Characteristic Services (FEISF G ERFBEDLE — RERFE
BR%)
6. 202095/ 26H hO — 2020 ERBEE LT RAREREEELLE
26 May 2020 CPMI-Leading Enterprise in Terms of Growth Rate of Listed Property

Management Enterprise in 2020 QO20¥MERBEE LM AR FHREREBLD
%)
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RERE. B SEOEN, PEMRFCREANEE BVA (Brand Value Added) HRHAR, HE DR S RELMBUH WY LER
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Certificate of China Property Management Brand Value
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7. 20209 H10H
10 September 2020

8. 20209 H29H
29 September 2020

9. 20209 A 29H
29 September 2020

10. 20209 H29H
29 September 2020

11. 20209 H29H
29 September 2020

12. 202012 A12H
12 December 2020
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i 2020 Top 500 Propery Management Compariss
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202097l i35 il it R4 i 1003

2020Top
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RGP : SRR RGRHOO
20204 b Il Ml 55 4k 2038 : ] 2020l Tl IR 55 451 e Al
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ikt —2020F BEIMERGERELREmMBE
CIA-China’s Leading Brand Enterprise in Terms of Professional Operation of
Property Management in 2020 (20204 R £ RIEFEHEEE B REDLE)

I — 2020 F R (B ESFEE /150058
CPMI-Top 500 Property Management Companies in Terms of Overall Strength
in 2020 (2020 ¥ RIS (> %454 & 115005 )

T — 2020 ERIF B EmEEE1005
CPMI-Top 100 Property Management Companies in Terms of Brand Value in
2020 2020 F RIS > MIEEE 10058)

R — 2020 & MERB @R B — BIERS
CPMI-Characteristic Property Management Brand Enterprise in 2020-Creation
of Services 2020 MR MIEDZE — BIER)

R — 2020 B an R IR TS 22058
CPMI-Top 20 Brand Property Management Companies in South China in 2020

(2020 mEMFE RSB 2£2054)

TEMEEENTHE ([T —2020mEMERBALEE

China Property Management Research Institution (“CPMRI") - Leading
Enterprise in Terms of Quality Property Management in 2020 (2020 &34 ¥ 2 Ak
BELDLE)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Meng

Mr. Yao Xusheng

Ms. Xie Rao

Ms. Zhou Rui

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Xihong (Chairman)
Mr. Li Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian

Dr. Wong Kong Tin
Dr. Chu Xiaoping

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian (Chairman)
Mr. Li Qiang
Dr. Wong Kong Tin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Wong Kong Tin (Chairman)
Mr. Bai Xihong
Dr. Chu Xiaoping

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Bai Xihong (Chairman)

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
Dr. Chu Xiaoping

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Suet Wing (HKICS, ICSA)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Zhou Rui
Ms. Leung Suet Wing
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71 Fort Street
PO Box 500
George Town
Grand Cayman
KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

REARANE (THED
REREMNSEE

P

ERE

BINTT AR
REAEA1058
111#81103%

BRTEERMBIH

B
iR
BEESEH
25 F528
391#3905-3908 %

g%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%

Appleby Global Services (Cayman) Limited
71 Fort Street

PO Box 500

George Town

Grand Cayman

KY1-1106

Cayman Islands
EERRMBFELR
ERRRESETLARAA

B

I

EEREBER1835

AL

17181712-1716 %

<

REGISTERED OFFICE

71 Fort Street
PO Box 500
George Town
Grand Cayman
KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTER AND REGISTERED OFFICE
IN THE PEOPLE’'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE
"PRC")

1103, 11th Floor

410 Dongfeng Middle Road
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou
Guangdong Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Suites 3905-3908, 39th Floor
Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Appleby Global Services (Cayman) Limited
71 Fort Street

PO Box 500

George Town

Grand Cayman

KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong and U.S. laws:

Sidley Austin

39th Floor, Two International Finance Centre

8 Finance Street
Central
Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

Commerce & Finance Law Offices
6th Floor, NCI Tower

A12 Jianguomenwai Avenue
Chaoyang District

Beijing

PRC

As to Cayman Islands law:

Appleby

Suites 4201-03 & 12, 42/F

One Island East, Taikoo Place
18 Westlands Road, Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Haitong International Capital Limited
8th Floor, Li Po Chun Chambers

189 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Ping An Bank, Guangzhou Sinopec Building Branch
1st Floor, Sinopec Building, Tower B

191 Tiyu Xi Road

Tianhe District, Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

China Construction Bank, Zhongshan Longdu Branch
3 Xijiao Yunhan Road

Qijiang Highway

Zhongshan

Guangdong Province

PRC

Guangdong Huaxing Bank, Guangzhou Branch
Room 109, 1st Floor

Qiaoxin International Finance Centre

62 Jinsui Road

Zhujiang New Town

Tianhe District, Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

STOCK CODE

9928

COMPANY'S WEBSITE

www.shidaiwuye.com
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Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region
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Tibet
Autonomous Region
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South China Sea Islands
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BENEREE
Total contracted GFA

1ETHK+
100 million m?+ 590+

* A FHREIZE2020F12 A31 B IEEUE ©

* All of the data above are the data as of 31 December

2020.

Gl
Qinghai

BEXIER
Total number of
contracted projects

5901+

AREBRER
Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region

HER _
Gansu “ZE [0k )8R HJE.Heba W

anxi

Ningxia Hui
Autonomous Region

REET
Heilongjiang
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Jilin
Liaoning
Bl
Beijing
)
sat Tianjin
Shandong

Guizhou &
ER E ik Taiwan
Yunnan =he )é«-'/
Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region
e
Hainan
VMEEBHEEREME MEEREERR
GFA under property Projectsunder
management property management
6800& 754+ 5181
68 million m*+ 518
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “we”
or “"Times Neighborhood”), | am pleased to present the audited
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year” or the “Reporting
Period”). In 2020, the policies of the property industry continued
to be positive. Ten ministries including the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development have issued numerous notices, which
require to regulate the relationship between local governments
and enterprises at the grassroots level, recognize the service value
of property companies and their important roles in community
governance at the national level, and lay a policy foundation for
the rapid development of the industry. At the same time, the policy
encourages market-based property management fees, supports the
renovation of old communities, community elderly care and other
new businesses, encourages the development of intelligent service
capacities, and explores the “property service + life service” model to
meet the increasing aspiration of the public for better living conditions
and life, pointing the way for rapid development of the industry.

In 2020, the number of property service companies landing the
capital market hit a new high. With continuous promotion of capital,
the industry has accelerated its integration and leading companies
constantly expand their business and enrich their services. The fierce
competition on enterprise scale puts forward higher requirements for
the independent expansion capacities of property companies, and
meanwhile encourages them to explore differentiated development.

Rapid growth in scale and performance, continuous
improvement in industry recognition

In 2020, Times Neighborhood continued to be deeply engaged in
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the “Greater
Bay Area”), expanded its presence nationwide, and accelerated
the development of diversified businesses. Capturing on its leading
industry experience and forward-looking corporate development
strategies, the Group’s revenue was approximately RMB1,758.4
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 62.6%.
The gross profit was approximately RMB531.0 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 73.9%, and the gross
profit margin was approximately 30.2%, representing a year-on-year
increase of 2.0 percentage points. The core net profit attributable
to owners of the parent was approximately RMB232.6 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 93.7%.

12  TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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In terms of business expansion, the scale of our management
increased rapidly. In 2020, relying on its brand strength and rich
experience, and focusing on core areas, the Group actively explored
multi-format projects and rapidly expanded across the country
through investment, mergers and acquisitions. For the year ended 31
December 2020, we had a total of 527 projects under management
with a total contracted GFA of 111.6 million sq.m., representing an
increase of 92.4% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2019,
and a total GFA under management of 98.7 million sq.m., including
518 property management service projects under management, with a
total GFA under property management exceeding 68.8 million sq.m.,
and 9 urban public service projects with a GFA under management of
approximately 29.9 million sq.m.. Meanwhile, the Group has achieved
good results in obtaining higher quality third-party development
projects. As of 31 December 2020, the contracted area of third-party
development projects under the management of the Group (including
urban public service projects) increased to approximately 77.4 million
sg.m..

In 2020, the Group actively sought and seized market opportunities,
and successfully acquired Guangzhou Haoging Property Management
Co., Ltd. (BN 4EBWEEEERAF) (“Guangzhou Haoqing”),
Guangzhou Yaocheng Property Management Co., Ltd. (/N2
HWYEEEERAF]) ("Guangzhou Yaocheng”) and 51% equity
interest of Shanghai Kejian Property Services Co., Ltd. (/&R
¥REABMRAR) (“Shanghai Kejian”), thus entering the fields of
electricity property management and industrial logistics real estate
property management, and further expanding and consolidating
its presence in market segments. The Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement for the acquisition of 49% equity interest of
Chengdu Holytech Technology Co., Ltd. (FX#&EZEBITREBRA
Al) (“Chengdu Holytech"”), which broadened our business scale
and market share in the property management service industry in
Southwestern China, thus laying a solid foundation for the Group's
expansion in such region.

In terms of community value-added services, our performance
has achieved leap-forward growth. In 2020, we actively innovate
business models to provide customers with full-cycle life services; at
the same time, we have introduced nearly a hundred brand partners
to form an online and offline community economic ecosystem,
which enables the service breadth continuously expanding and the
platform ecology continuously improving. For the year ended 31
December 2020, revenue from community value-added services was
approximately RMB186.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 135.1%.

R EIER AR A A / 2020 FFHR
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In 2020, with its service quality and brand reputation tested in
markets, the Group was recognized by CIA as the 12th in the Top
100 Property Management Companies in China in terms of overall
strength, and successively ranked among “2020 China Top 10 Listed
Property Management Companies in Terms of Overall Strength (2020
PR ETYERIS LA E HTOP10)”, “2020 China Top 5 Listed
Property Management Enterprises with Investment Value (2020 &
ETERGIEBEESFLETOPS)” and “China’'s TOP 5 Leading
Enterprises in Urban Property Management in 2020 (2020 B3
MY ERBEEHLLZETOPS)”, and was recognized by CIA as the
“2020 China Leading Property Management Companies in Terms of
Characteristic Services-Quality Characteristic Services (20207 Bl 45 & 47
¥RBBELE - REREIRRE)". By virtue of our comprehensive and
transparent communication and excellent capital market performance,
the Group has also been included in the Hang Seng Composite Index,
the Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index Series, and the MSCI
China Small Cap Index.

"4321" Strategy leads organizational optimization,
incentives and upgrades

The Group will continue to adhere to the mission of “Let more
people enjoy a better life”. Driven by the core strategy of “4321",
the Group will expand its management scale horizontally, tap value-
added services vertically, and improve organizational efficiency
through organizational changes and incentive systems to enhance
comprehensive competitiveness.

In terms of layout, we penetrate in the four core urban
agglomerations. The development of the regional economy
determines the demand for property management services. We will
capture the opportunities during the period for rapid development and
increasing integration of the industry, and accelerate the deepening
of the Greater Bay Area, urban agglomerations in Yangtze River Delta,
Chengyu region and Central China. Meanwhile, we will continue to
strengthen our independent expansion capabilities through actively
establishing an elite talent team, and achieve sustained and steady
endogenous growth.

14  TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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In terms of business format, we deploy three core business
formats. The foot traffic in one business determines the service
demand, and the complexity of the interaction in the business
determines the barriers to entry. Therefore, the Group will try its
best to deploy businesses with high traffic, service demand, and
complex interaction in communities, industrial parks, and public
buildings. In the future, the Company will continue to focus on the
residential business, strengthen efforts in non-residential businesses
such as industrial and government public construction, and explore
commercial business at the same time.

In terms of business, we achieve two core growth points. The
development of value-added services determines the potential room
for enterprise growth. Positioned as a “modern service creator”,
the Group provides integrated services for large and small property
owners and realized two core growth points of property management
services and value-added services. Relying on the advantages of the
Group's huge management area and access to traffic, we will build an
online platform ecosystem, optimize the supply chain, and incubate
a variety of value-added businesses for our corporate and individual
customers. At the same time, we will continue to build professional
service capabilities, strengthen our efforts on professional service
outsourcing, and further enhance customers’ satisfaction of property
services while achieving revenue growth.

In terms of system, we establish a core platform of “Technology
+Service” for the whole life cycle. We will digitize and
standardize business products and transaction processes, enhance
customer experience and operational efficiency, and promote the
transformation of enterprises to “Smart communities and Internet +".
At the same time, in terms of smart services, together with Alibaba,
China Mobile and iFLYTEK, we have successfully developed the “Smart
City CIM + Smart Community BIM” model, through which we can
carry out a three-dimensional intelligent management and control of
projects in an integrated manner and explore the structure of future
communities.

To better promote the implementation of the “4321" core strategy,
we will continue to optimize the organizational structure, improve the
incentive system. Adhering to the principle of “the Group exercising
overall leadership, regional branches responsible for operations, and
the center focusing on developing capabilities”, we will optimize
the organizational process structure and management methods
and improve operational efficiency. We are also simultaneously
establishing a comprehensive multi-level incentive system covering
more employees to fully mobilize organizational motivation.

R EIER AR A A / 2020 FFHR

15



ETERE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

RIREE

RE20215  BEERRTERE - AMY
R TSR IRTT - T EDRARAIR
EERTHRHIEE  MERBERTER
BRFRERREE  RRANDERSE - &
MEBEMATSZEENRFRAZT Y
EERERGMELRBREHSWENEE - A
Bt - EFf - FAE - Jiflk - R
TTEREDS ERBLEBTIEZLSHIENE
1t RRGEY D HEBENNTT A BEEA
FTEOBSER - TERMMEEMZ T - SR E -
BIERARY BERBEFREEBASHE
THEEEBTIRRIEE -

221 RAEEE —B=FFNFR
ZE AEBERKSLEFRESE B
(4321 ROEEE - BN [REZ AZZEN
Al RERA2FE - NEERE &
EA - BROMBRBEEXT  USEE -
AFENEROESEE T REAKRRK -

FREFRIFNTEF
SRS

202143 H10H

4

<

PROSPECTS

In 2021, with more regulated policies and increasing demand for
services, the industry will find new opportunities for transformation
and upgrading to a modern service industry. The property service
management industry will maintain a steady growth momentum
and scale dividends will continue. Riding on the digital wave driven
by internet of things (loT) and artificial intelligence (Al), property
and living services and operation logic will be redefined. The service
ecology will experience significant changes along the trend of scale
economy, professionalism, platform, technology and brand. There
comes a new future for evaluating the potential value of property
enterprises. In addition to economics of scale, featured services such
as in-depth urban penetration, comprehensive urban services and
intelligent services may contribute to enhancing advantages of a
company and even its valuation.

2021 is the sprint year of the Group’s first Three-year Plan. The Group
will seize the opportunities of the time, adhere to the core strategy
of “4321", and strive to “let more people to enjoy a better life”, give
back to the owners with better quality, more convenient and more
considerate services from the Greater Bay Area to the whole of China,
and return to all employees and shareholders with high-quality and
sustainable growth.

Mr. BAI Xihong
Chairman and Non-executive Director

10 March 2021
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2020%F 20194 2
2020 2019 Changes
ARETT ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTEHBER Key financial information
X Revenue 1,758,427 1,081,341 62.6%
EF Gross profit 531,048 305,297 73.9%
FENE Profit for the year
- BRI R — Including non-controlling interests 236,874 95,324 148.5%
-ARRARIER A — Attributable to owners of the
Company 232,606 96,313 141.5%
RREHEAB ANEGZOFN Core net profit attributable to
(TEFE LML) owners of the Company
(excluding the listing expenses) 232,606 120,067 93.7%
120205 20194
12A31H 12HA31H
As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
ARBT ARBTTT
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
BERRE Total assets 2,648,951 1,500,942
BERRE Total liabilities 887,254 601,711
e RIRTTHREE Cash and bank balances 1,172,703 974,747
k) Total equity 1,761,697 899,231
RARER NEIEER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 1,720,333 895,992
FTEHKEEE Key financial ratios
FEHE Gross profit margin 30.2% 28.2%
pERlpe Net profit margin 13.5% 8.8%
(AN TD R Core net profit margin 13.2% 11.1%
HREAREERF  ARES Basic and diluted earnings per share,
RMB cents 25 13
TEEEHE Key operating data
RERMERHELEMRE Gross floor area under management as at
(BEMmMmALRBEEES) year end (including urban public
(B&FHK) services projects) (million sq.m.) 111.6 58.0

R BIERERAR /2020 48R 17




REEBRE
INVESTOR RELATIONS

AEEGERERBEATSNABBTIE &
EENMEG2NEAKENREERENAD
oBREXEREEHENE  KE - REXR
MZNENT LM EE  BBUFZRER
BREGEVEEATZNEREBYE - 1
20204F - AEEREGREEK EHE MO ENE R
MARBEAMIZHENLE  BREETTAE
RERBEGENRREEENRRREY B
WA —H-—FRREFERS  AHS
MTBE057ERRNREEENS B
BELEHHRIE  E— PR T EERE
BREERFENENRRE BRI TREE
HEEXBRANREERBBEN T - 18
MTRENERTISRBHE o

The Group attaches great importance to the communication with
the capital market, and the management actively participates in the
investor presentation activities of the Group, including performance-
related investor presentation, roadshow, and presentation or
seminar in the capital market, and actively establishes a platform
of effective communication with the capital market through these
various channels. In 2020, the Group actively communicated with
investors and analysts and carried out presentation activities in the
capital market, including its first presentation of annual results
and interim results, roadshow, field research, one-on-one meeting
or teleconference, etc., and participated in more than 20 investor
presentations held by brokers; these interactive channels further
strengthened the two-way communication between the Group and
institutional investors, and brokers, enhanced investors’ understanding
of the Group’'s business conditions and long-term development
strategy, and increased its visibility in the capital market.

2020F FEEHEA
2020 Major Activities
1A o HRABS2020F PEIMETERKE
January . CGS-CIMB China Property Management Industry Strategy Conference 2020
3A o BYT2019FFEEEREEHENE
March o Investor Presentation on Annual Results in 2019
. BIT2019F FEREFRFRERIIENEY
o Non-deal Roadshow Series of Annual Results Presentations 2019
e InEEFTEVEERTER IREES
o Online Investment Summit of China Property Management Industry held by Credit Suisse
Securities
4R . HEEESHRNREER ERRE
April o Online Investor Exchange Conference co-organized by Industrial Securities

B3 SR

TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD.

TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
BABERRERAT

2019 Annual Resul

=

2019 FEEARME

nnouncement

ERAM

‘ 2020 Interim Results Announcement

SESZEDHRALM

2020F R HAE B S
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2019 Annual Results Presentation Conference

2020 Interim Results Presentation Conference
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FEEHIER
Major Activities

57
May

6 A

June

8 A
August

9A
September

ERESF2020F PR FRKE

Huachuang Securities Interim Online Strategy Conference 2020

TEPERE SR FIBRIHEN

Gelonghui Jijieling (1§ E £ 45 < ) Online Roadshow and Presentation
RILEH2020F EF AR ERRE

Northeast Securities Summer Online Exchange Conference 2020 for Listed Companies

FEH2020F AR FSHEREE

Citibank Asia Pacific Real Estate Conference 2020
FSREF 2020 F B AT 55w 8

CITIC Securities Capital Market Conference 2020
HAREFH2020F PR E RS

Everbright Securities Interim Investment Strategy Conference 2020
HiR2020F B8 hEEREEES

UBS Hong Kong/China Real Estate Investors Summit 2020
ERBERE R

Haitong International Real Estate Enterprise Day

EREER LTS

Haotian Zhiku (#5X % &) Online Seminar

BIREBEE hEYEREA

CMBI Hong Kong/China Property Management Enterprise Day
RTMEETEFERE PREEMERDETEREEES
CGS-CIMB Fifth Investor Summit for Hong Kong/China Real Estate and Property
Management Industry

FRERR2020EZTEATSEH

Shenwan Hongyuan Summer Capital Market Conference 2020
BEHEELHHRERBRE LIRS

Guotai Junan Interim Online Exchange Conference on Investment Strategies

BIT2020F P HAR GBI EEHEN G

Investor Presentation on Interim Results in 2020
BIT2020F R B IER HEBRFIHEN)ES)

Non-deal Roadshow Series of Presentations on Interim Results in 2020
HRESBAMPNREEIRE

Investor Exchange Conference co-organized by Huachuang Securities

KRRFEH2020F R FTRATAZRE

Everbright Securities Exchange Conference for Hong Kong-listed Companies in 2020
EAIEH 20200 EHIES

Huachuang Securities Autumn Strategy Conference 2020

BlinMNmE

Jefferies Asia Forum

RIOTEATSHERBR LIRS

Online Exchange Conference Between the Capital Market and Management
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

20204 FEEHIER
2020 Major Activities
10A8 . B EEFF I ORNIER S HIE
October ° Shenzhen Non-deal Roadshow co-organized by Industrial Securities
. B R E IR NIER 5B
° Shenzhen Non-deal Roadshow co-organized by CICC
. HERIFEF I RINIER 5
o Shenzhen Non-deal Roadshow co-organized by Huachuang Securities
. HIRIR IR IR FERE
o Online Non-deal Roadshow co-organized by UBS
. BT RHIHHR IR FERR
o Online Non-deal Roadshow co-organized by Zhongtai
1A o  EHEFEISEPEIEEEE
November o 15th Citibank China Investment Summit
o EE2020FEKRERIE
o Goldman Sachs China Investment Conference 2020
e ARNEISEFEREES
o 15th Daiwa Investment Summit
e  BEFBH0MFEEATSRERKE
o Industrial Securities Capital Market Investment Strategy Conference 2021

. REMFFEERATISFS
° CITIC Securities Capital Market Conference of the Year
. HRXABLFBRNIREEEMNIERFIKE

o Guangzhou Non-deal Roadshow for Investors co-organized by Everbright Securities
128 o  BBREFVNFEREREHREE
December ° Haitong Securities Investment Strategy Conference 2021

. MY REF N _ EEIER B IRE

o Shanghai Non-deal Roadshow co-organized by Everbright Securities

AREBYURERSEER B HOFE BT The Group attaches great importance to the investment community

TR E D REREFEFF N - 20204 - H# and makes efforts to procure that its business conditions are reported
BISKEA - BRMEL AP AN EFERSH in the research reports of brokers. In 2020, a total of 15 domestic
RME - NEBEJFH2020%F & AMSCIH and international well-known brokers wrote research reports for the

B/ NS B D IR B A S e 8 « B4 Group. In 2020, the shares of the Group were also included in the

SENmIE sy [EA IR/ NEU AT e« 8 MSCI China Small Cap Index, Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang Seng

SRR/ IS8 c EAEIRETPE A Stock Connect Hong Kong Index, Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong

NREE - LA RIBEEIRIBIEAHIE A A8 Kong MidCap & SmallCap Index, Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong

. KREFNEATERMEESE SR Kong SmallCap Index, Hang Seng SCHK Mainland China Companies

= Index, and Hang Seng SCHK ex-AH Companies Index, thus further
increasing its visibility in the capital market.

o,
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Meng (E#5), aged 34, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
strategic planning and overall operations of our Group. Ms. Wang
is also our chief executive officer and director of some of our
subsidiaries. Since July 2019, Ms. Wang has been serving as the
general manager of Guangzhou Times Neighborhood Corporate
Governance Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Times Neighborhood”) where
she has been responsible for its overall operation and management.

Ms. Wang joined our Group in February 2019. From February 2019
to July 2019, she served as a deputy general manager at Guangzhou
Times Neighborhood where she was primarily responsible for its
business and technology development, market expansion, medium
and long-term project development and management of some of its
subsidiaries. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2006 to September
2016, Ms. Wang served at Guangzhou Key Public Construction
Project Management Office (EMMEMAHEREBEEETEMRA
%), a governmental department, where her last position was the
director of integrated management department and was primarily
responsible for its human resources, administrative logistics and
property management. From September 2016 to March 2018, Ms.
Wang served as a deputy director at Guangzhou Probity Education
Management Center (E/MNTEKHMEEIEF L), a governmental
department, where she was primarily responsible for its human
resources, administrative logistics and property management. From
April 2018 to September 2018, Ms. Wang worked at Guangzhou
Aerospace Haite System Engineering Co., Ltd. (BMMKEHE
HITIEBR AT, a company principally engaged in information
technology, where she was primarily responsible for exploring market
opportunities. From October 2018 to February 2019, Ms. Wang served
as a deputy general manager and general manager of public relations
at Guangzhou Yaojie Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (/M TREE
BibERMEIEHR AR, a subsidiary of Times China Holdings Limited
("Times China”), where she was responsible for public affairs and
property management of real estate projects in Southern Guangzhou.

Ms. Wang received her bachelor’'s degree of arts from Guangzhou
University (BJNAZ) in the PRC in June 2006 and her master’s degree
in public administration from Jinan University (BF AX£2) in the PRC in
December 2014.
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Mr. Yao Xusheng (ZkfEF), aged 57, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
day-to-day operations and administrative matters of our Group.
Mr. Yao is also our vice president. Mr. Yao joined our Group in
June 1998 and served as the general manager at Guangzhou Times
Property Management Co., Ltd. from June 1998 to January 2019.
He has been serving as the general manager at Guangzhou Wanning
Property Management Co., Ltd. from May 2016 to December 2020.
He has been serving as a deputy general manager of our Group since
February 2019 and a director of Guangzhou Times Neighborhood
since August 2019.

Prior to joining our Group, from October 1982 to May 1996, Mr. Yao
worked at White Swan Hotel (HX#E £E) where he was responsible
for the daily operations of room service department.

Mr. Yao received his diploma in tourism and hospitality management
from Guangzhou Vocational School of Tourism and Business (& 1
RS ZEER) (formerly known as Guangzhou No. 1 Tourism School
(BMTHE—REEER)) in the PRC in June 1982. Mr. Yao obtained his
National Property Management Manager Certificate (ZEI#) &2
P EEIREUEE) from the Personnel Education Department of the
Ministry of Construction (z&#FAZ#5E 7]) and the Housing and
Real Estate Department of the Ministry of Construction (B:REBEE
HEHEZF]) in May 2006. He was also awarded as an Outstanding
Person of Guangdong Property Management Industry for the Year
2014-2016 (BEREMEEEITHR(2014-2016) [HIA®]) from
Guangdong Property Management Industry Association (&R& ¥
BIBITEME) in September 2016; in August 2020, he was rated by
Guangdong Property Management Industry Institute as the “Leader”
for the 20th anniversary of the establishment of Guangdong property
management industry; in December 2020, he was rated among
“China’s Top 100 Property Managers in 2020 (20207 B4 %4 A
10058)" and “China’s Top 50 Property Managers in Greater Bay Area
in 2020 (2020 B E &I A KE[R505%)" in the “China’s Property
Managers for 2020" sponsored by Leju Finance and co-sponsored by
Sina Finance, Chinese Entrepreneurs, Fangchan.com and CPMRI.
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Ms. Xie Rao (#{#), aged 42, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
quality operation management, brand positioning and promotion and
public relations maintenance of our Group. Ms. Xie is also our vice
president. She has also been serving as a deputy general manager
at Guangzhou Times Neighborhood since joining our Group in July
2017. From June 2020 to January 2021, Ms. Xie served as the general
manager of Guangzhou Times Neighborhood Environmental Science
Technology Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Company).

Prior to joining our Group, from November 2003 to October 2006,
Ms. Xie served as the senior training director of human resources
department at Guangzhou Mayland Investment Limited (/1 3EHk
EEWEHBMRAR]), a property developer, where she was primarily
responsible for recruitment and training. From October 2006 to
July 2017, Ms. Xie served as an assistant to the general manager at
Guangzhou Tianli Property Development Co., Ltd. (BM KX N3
BAERZAF], a subsidiary of Guangzhou R&F Properties Co., Ltd. (&
ME D ERMBBRAF) (“Guangzhou R&F”) which is a property
developer listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 2777), where she was primarily
responsible for talent strategy planning, property quality construction
and maintenance of public relations.

Ms. Xie has been serving as a member of China Property Management
Association (FEIYIEEI2HE), a vice president of Guangdong
Property Management Industry Association (BREVEEIEITE
&) and a vice president of Guangzhou Property Management
Industry Association (BMNMPEERITEWE) since 2019, 2018
and November 2018, respectively. She has also been serving as a
deputy director of the Quality Standards Committee (IRt TEZ 8
&) of Guangzhou Property Management Industry Association since
December 2018. In August 2020, Ms. Xie was rated by Guangdong
Property Management Industry Institute as the “Outstanding Figure”
for the 20th anniversary of the establishment of Guangdong property
management industry. In December 2020, she was rated among the
“China’s Top 100 Property Managers in 2020 (20207 BI#) ¥ 4538 A
1003%)" and “China’s Top 50 Property Managers in Greater Bay Area
in 2020 (2020 B ¥4I A K/E[@505%)" in the “China’s Property
Managers for 2020” sponsored by Leju Finance and co-sponsored by
Sina Finance, Chinese Entrepreneurs, Fangchan.com and CPMRI. In
January 2021, she was awarded the title of the “Leader for the 25th
Anniversary of the Establishment of Guangzhou Property Management
Association” by Guangzhou Property Management Association.

Ms. Xie graduated from Hunan University G#IE8KE2%) in the PRC
majored in economic management in June 2000. Ms. Xie obtained her
qualification as an assistant communication engineer G&{z B13E T2 AM)
from Guangdong Department of Human Resources and Social Security

(BEEREANEBRMAEIREE) in March 2004.
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Ms. Zhou Rui (/E#), aged 36, was appointed as our executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for the
financial management, capital operations and internal control of our
Group. Ms. Zhou has been serving as the general manager of our
financial management center since August 2019. From March 2019
to August 2019, she served as the financial manager at Guangzhou
Times Neighborhood.

Ms. Zhou joined our Group as the financial manager of the financial
management center in March 2019. Prior to joining our Group, from
August 2006 to November 2017, Ms. Zhou worked at KPMG Huazhen
LLP Guangzhou Branch (EFEERGHMELEH (FRLTRER)
N5 FT) where her last position was an auditor manager and was
primarily responsible for the audit of corporate financial statements.
From December 2017 to March 2018, Ms. Zhou served as a financial
manager at Guangzhou R&F where she was primarily responsible
for its financial and accounting matters. From March 2018 to March
2019, Ms. Zhou worked as a financial manager of financial capital
and cost center at Guangzhou Times Holdings Group Limited.

Ms. Zhou received her bachelor of arts degree in English from South
China University of Technology (¥ T AK£) in the PRC in July
2006. She was admitted as a Certified PRC Public Accountant (&

Bl:Ef2:t6M) certified by the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FFEIGEMEETENHE) in June 2015.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Xihong (H#&#), aged 53, was appointed as our
non-executive Director and chairman on 26 August 2019 and
is primarily responsible for providing guidance for the overall
development of our Group. He served as the general manager of our
Group from August 2018 to July 2019.

Mr. Bai joined Times China and its subsidiaries (the “Times China
Group”) in May 2001 and has been serving as the general manager
of Guangzhou regional office since January 2002, where he has
been primarily responsible for project development, marketing and
project management in Guangzhou. He has also been serving as
a vice president of Times China Group since January 2002 and an
executive director of Times China since February 2008. He is currently
the chairman of the strategic and resources management committee
of Times China where he has been primarily responsible for its
integration of strategic business resources.
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Mr. Bai graduated from Guangdong Radio and Television University
(BEREEEMRAE) in the PRC in industrial enterprise operation
management in July 1990 and received his executive master of
business administration degree from Sun Yat-sen University (fLLX
£) in the PRC in December 2009. In 2005, Mr. Bai was recognized as
an “Outstanding Contributor to Guangzhou Real Estate in the Past 20
years” (BNbE — +FEEER A A) by the Guangzhou Real Estate
in the Past 20 Years' event organizing committee (M E —+4F
ARUEENAZ ), Guangzhou Real Estate Organization (FINTIEHE
E¥1%®) and Guangzhou Real Estate Guide Union (FEibEZ TIt).
He was awarded the “2006 Outstanding CEO (Diamond Award) in
Mainstream Real Estate in China” (20067 Bl X7 4 & 1845+ & Bt
CEQ) in 2006 by China Mainstream Real Estate Economy Summit (FH
B 1 22 4S8 R IE®). From December 2011 to December 2016, Mr.
Bai served as a member of the 12th Guangzhou Committee of the
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference (FF B A RBUA R E
%F+ _EENMZEE). Mr. Bai has been serving as the chairman
of Guangzhou Nansha New District Real Estate Association (/M FE
DB FEHERE) since May 2014 and standing vice president of
Guangzhou Real Estate Industry Association (BT EMEITERHE)
since 2018.

Mr. Li Qiang (Z3&), aged 46, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 26 August 2019 and is primarily responsible for providing
guidance for the overall development of our Group.

Mr. Li joined Times China Group in July 2005 and served as an
assistant to the president from July 2005 to July 2009. He has been
serving as an executive director of Times China since February 2008,
a vice president of Times China Group from July 2009 to April 2020
as well as the senior vice president and the general manager of the
risk control and quality service management center of Times China
Group since April 2020 where he is primarily responsible for audit,
supervision, legal and quality service management affairs. Prior to
joining Times China Group, Mr. Li worked at Guangdong ETR Law
Firm (BRBEEEZMESF) (formerly known as Guangdong
Guangxin Law Firm (EREEZMELA)).

Mr. Li received his master’s degree in law from Hunan Normal
University B ET#EAE2) in the PRC in June 2000 and his executive
master of business administration degree from Sun Yat-sen University
(FFIUKE) in the PRC in December 2007. Mr. Li was admitted as a
practicing lawyer in the PRC in June 1998. From September 2011
to September 2016, Mr. Li served as a member of the 15th People’s
Congress of Guangzhou Yuexiu District (EMMBFEE+TREA
RRFAKE). He has been serving as an arbitrator at Guangzhou
Arbitration Commission (BN & Z & €) since October 2018.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian (ZB8), aged 60, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 3 December 2019 and is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group.

From April 1982 to May 1982, Mr. Lui served as an audit assistant at
John B.P. Byrne & Co (1BW &5 E75FT), where he was responsible
for audit work. From June 1982 to January 1983, Mr. Lui served as
an audit trainee at PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited (& ERKES
sHEIETEFT) (formerly known as Coopers & Lybrand (Hong Kong) (7K
EERHAIEK AT (F78)), where he was responsible for audit work.
From March 1983 to May 1986, Mr. Lui served as an accountant
at The Grolier Society of Australia Pty. Ltd., a publisher of general
encyclopedias, where he was responsible for audit work. From
July 1986 to March 1989, Mr. Lui served as an accounting and
administration manager at Cheong Ming Press Factory Limited (&
FENRIR B R A F]) where he was responsible for accounting work.
From March 1989 to November 1991, Mr. Lui served as a manager
at the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong. From
December 1992 to December 1996, Mr. Lui served as a finance
director at Cheong Ming Press Factory Limited where he was primarily
responsible for the management of accounting and financial control
functions, corporate finance matters and company restructuring. From
June 1997 to July 2014, Mr. Lui served as a director of Reaload Group
Holdings Limited ({Z1x& BTG A F]) (formerly known as Cheong
Ming Investments Limited (& E BB A E]) and Cheong Ming
Holdings Limited (281X AR A7), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1196), where he was primarily responsible
for company policies and strategies and financial matters and was
appointed as the chairman in 2008. From September 2004 to August
2016, Mr. Lui served as an independent non-executive director at
Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited (BB R M EZR AR
~a]) (formerly known as Four Seas Investment Holdings Limited (P4
MNERIEEERABMRAF])), a food conglomerate listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code:0060). Since May 2000, he has been serving as
the chairman of Capital Financial Press Limited (& A8t &ENfIA R QA
7)), a financial printing services provider, where he has been primarily
responsible for company policies and strategies and financial matters.
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Mr. Lui received his bachelor’s degree in commerce and his master’s
degree in commerce from The University of New South Wales in
Australia in April 1982 and May 1985, respectively. He has been
serving as the honorary president of Chamber of Commerce of
Guangzhou Foreign Investment Enterprises (E/MNINERE %R
&) since January 2017 and an executive vice president of the 8th
committee of Hong Kong Guangdong Foreign Merchants Association
(BEAERINGAE). Mr. Lui was admitted as a fellow member of
Certified Practicing Accountants Australia in June 1985 and a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
April 2005. He is currently an authorized supervisor of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Dr. Wong Kong Tin (Z3IX), Justice of the Peace, aged 54, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 3 December
2019 and is responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Group.

Dr. Wong has over 27 years of practical experience in handling legal
affairs in Greater China. From June 2010 to July 2014, Dr. Wong
served as an independent non-executive director at Great Wall
Technology Company Limited (REEHERHER AT, a power
products manufacturer and distributor previously listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0074) and automatically delisted in July 2014,
where he was responsible for supervising and providing independent
advice to the board. Since December 2017, Dr. Wong has been
serving as an independent non-executive director at NOVA Group
Holdings Limited (FEEEEIEARARAF]) (formerly known as Mega
Expo Holdings Limited), a company principally engaged in the cultural
entertainment business and exhibition business and listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1360), where he has been responsible
for supervising and providing independent advice to the board.
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Dr. Wong received his bachelor’'s degree and master’s degree in law
from Peking University (It KZ) in the PRC in July 1993 and July
1995, respectively. He received his doctor’'s degree in constitutional
law and administrative law from Renmin University of China (FFE AR
K£) in the PRC in July 2001 and his postgraduate diploma in English
and Hong Kong Law from The Manchester Metropolitan University
in the United Kingdom in July 2001 through attending long distance
learning courses. Dr. Wong was admitted as an associate of Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (EEBIFFHHHEE) in May 2002 an associate
of Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators (BF&HEF2€) in August
2002, a Registered Financial Planner (FEfftEI 75K EI6M) certified by the
Society of Registered Financial Planners (s EF755REIGMHE) in July
2008, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors (&7
EFEZ22) in September 2008 and a founding member of the Hong
Kong Independent Non-executive Director Association (&/& & IFH
TTEE1H%E) in October 2015. He has been serving as a panel member
of Hong Kong Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal (E& 2L EELE)
since May 2010, the chairman of Hong Kong Liquor Licensing Board
(BB D) since January 2018 and the chairman of the Hong Kong
Property Management Ordinance Appeal Board (BFE¥EE R IEH £
#FZ 8E) since August 2020.

Dr. Chu Xiaoping (f#/N¥), aged 65, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 3 December 2019 and is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group.

From June 1986 to December 2003, Dr. Chu successively served as an
associate professor, professor, associate dean and dean of Shantou
University Business School (ILIZE K27 26c) where he was primarily
responsible for management related teaching and administrative
work. Since December 2003, Dr. Chu has been serving as a professor
presenting organization and management related courses of Lingnan
College, Sun Yat-sen University (FFIURE2sE/ERT). Dr. Chu is
currently an independent non-executive director of Guangzhou
Haoyang Electronics Holdings Co., Ltd. (BN *EFRMHBRA
Al), a company listed on the ChiNext board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300833), an independent non-executive
director of Oppein Home Group Inc. (BURREEBRMHABRAT), a
customized home products manufacturer listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 603833) and an independent non-executive
director of Shengyi Technology Co. Ltd. (BERE=ZBHIR D AR A R]),
an electronic equipment manufacturer listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600183). Dr. Chu served as an independent
non-executive director of Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Co., Ltd. (BMAZ LB EEBRMHARAA]), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0874) from January 2014 to
June 2020.
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Dr. Chu received his master’s degree in philosophy from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology (ZEFR I K EE) (formerly known
as Huazhong Institute of Technology (Z2# T2%)) in the PRC in June
1986 and his doctor's degree in management from Xi‘an Jiaotong
University (FAZ 3 AE) in the PRC in December 2003. Dr. Chu
obtained his senior professional and technical qualification certificate
as an economics professor issued by Human Resources and Social
Security Department of Guangdong Province (BHRA ANERM
& {REEEE) (formerly known as Human Resources Department of
Guangdong Province (FEER % A%EEE)) in January 2000.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the biographical details of Ms. Wang Meng, Mr. Yao Xusheng,
Ms. Xie Rao and Ms. Zhou Rui, please refer to “Executive Directors”
in this section.

Mr. Kwok Pak Shing (3#FX), aged 36, was appointed as the
chief financial officer of the Company on 10 September 2020 and is
responsible for financial reporting and investor relations matters of
the Company.

Mr. Kwok obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in business studies
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2006. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwok
has over 14 years of experience in accounting, auditing, corporate
finance, financial management and corporate governance matters.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Kwok was the chief financial
officer and joint company secretary of Zensun Enterprises Limited,
a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 185). Prior to this role, Mr. Kwok served as a manager in a
reputable international accounting firm, and as the company secretary
and financial controller in two listed companies in Hong Kong. He
is currently an independent non-executive director of Starrise Media
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1616).
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 July
2019 as an exempted company with limited liability. The Company's
shares (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 19 December 2019, issuing 161,820,000 Shares in total
at the price of HKD5.15 per Share.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding. The
analysis of the Group's principal business for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in note 4 of the consolidated financial
statements.

A fair review and performance analysis of the Group’s business and
the industry situation during the Year, a discussion on the prospect
of the Group’s future business development, a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Overview

The Group is a leading and fast-growing modern service enterprise in
China, with extensive coverage over urban and rural public institutions
and spaces and continuous development and integration of more
business forms, based on rapidly improving the residential community
service business. In 2020, the Group was ranked 12th among China’s
Top 100 Property Management Companies by CIA in terms of overall
strength.

Our main business includes property management services, value-
added services to non-property owners, community value-added
services and other professional services, comprehensively covering the
entire property management value chain.
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Property Management Services

As of 31 December 2020, our property management services under
management have covered 53 cities, with 518 property management
projects under management (excluding 9 urban public service
projects), and a GFA under property management of approximately
68.8 million sg.m.. In addition, we had a total of 67 contracted
property management projects which had not been handed over to us
for management, with undelivered GFA of approximately 12.9 million
sg.m.. Leveraging the good quality and market reputation, we have
expanded to cities including Suzhou, Chongging, Wuhan, Chengdu,
Nanjing, Zhengzhou, Ningbo, Shenyang, Wuxi, Huzhou, Langfang and
Nanning.

In 2020, we rapidly expanded our property management services
portfolio and increased our business scale and market share and
diversified our business scope through organic expansion and strategic
acquisition and investment opportunities.

The table below sets forth the movements of our contracted GFA
under property management and GFA under management as of the
dates indicated:

BZ128318LEE
For the year ended 31 December

2020 20194
2020 2019

=5 EE CEd) EE

HEEERE BEEEE HEREERE HIEEETE

(FEHK) (FEHK) (FF7K) (FF3K)

Total Total Total Total

contracted GFA under contracted GFA under

GFA management GFA management

(sq.m."000) (sg.m.”000) (sg.m."000) (sg.m."000)

iR At the beginning of

the period 49,293 38,429 27,707 18,770

HrEBO New engagements!” 12,682 10,526 9,325 7,398
g1 Acquisitions? 21,969 21,875 13,864 13,864
ke Terminations® (2,268) (2,012) (1,603) (1,603)
HK At the end of the period 81,676 68,818 49,293 38,429
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In relation to residential communities and non-residential communities
we manage, new engagements primarily include preliminary property
management service contracts for new properties developed by property
developers and property management service contracts for non-
residential communities replacing their previous property management
service providers.

These refer to engagements obtained through our acquisitions of
Guangzhou Haoging in March 2020, Guangzhou Yaocheng in May 2020
and the 51% equity interest of Shanghai Kejian in July 2020.

These terminations include our voluntary non-renewal of certain
property management service contracts as we reallocated our resources
to more profitable engagements in an effort to optimize our property
management services portfolio.
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Our Geographical Presence

The table below sets forth our contracted GFA under property
management and GFA under management by regions as of the dates

indicated:
BZ12A31HLLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20204 20194
2020 2019

an EE S5 EE
HEEERE BEREEE HREERE BEEmIR
(FEFHXK) (FEFHK) (FFEAHK) (FFFK)
Total Total Total Total
contracted GFA under contracted GFA under
GFA management GFA management
(sq.m.”000) (sg.m.”000) (sg.m."000) (sg.m."000)

REE Greater Bay Area
= Guangzhou 21,323 20,106 15,218 13,710
#B1L Foshan 11,035 9,125 8,733 7,819
293! Zhuhai 4,792 4,604 4,465 4,121
L Zhongshan 4,629 4,023 2,141 1,314
e Dongguan 2,476 2,185 1,762 1,500
EE Zhaoging 3,007 2,338 3,618 3,050
= Huizhou 1,683 912 730 91
JLF Jiangmen 2,554 2,055 1,140 712
el Shenzhen 139 139 139 -
NEt Subtotal 51,638 45,487 37,946 32,317

Hitih&E Other Region

bz Northeast China®™ 210 210 - -
FEpiE@ North China®@ 1,682 1,682 579 579
ERHE East China® 10,117 10,025 - -
E R South China® 10,203 4,966 6,160 2,408
RO Central China® 6,149 4,860 4,520 3,125
[iigla: AR Northwest China® 97 97 - -
piifezpaed A Southwest China” 1,580 1,492 88 -
NE Subtotal 30,038 23,331 11,347 6,112
CEl Total 81,676 68,818 49,293 38,429
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Notes:

Only the provinces, cities and autonomous regions where we have property
management projects are listed below:

(1) Northeast China includes: Liaoning Province;
(2)  North China includes: Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei Province;

(3)  East China includes: Shanghai, Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang Province,
Anhui Province, Jiangxi Province, Shandong Province, Fujian Province;

(4)  South China includes: Guangdong Province (excluding cities in the
Greater Bay Area), Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region;

(5)  Central China includes: Henan Province, Hubei Province, Hunan Province;
(6)  Northwest China includes: Shaanxi Province;

(7)  Southwest China includes: Chongqing, Sichuan Province, Guizhou
Province, Yunnan Province.

The Group has been deeply rooted in the Greater Bay Area for more
than 20 years and has continuously expanded the scope of property
management in the Greater Bay Area, further consolidating its
competitive advantage in the area. As at 31 December 2020, among
the Group’s projects under property management, the projects
with the GFA under property management of approximately 45.5
million sgq.m. were located in the Greater Bay Area, accounting for
66.1% of the GFA under property management. With our successful
management experience in the Greater Bay Area and word of mouth
in the market, we achieved rapid expansion in other cities. In 2020,
the addition to the contracted GFA under property management
of the Group was approximately 12.7 million sq.m., of which
approximately 8.8 million sg.m. was the addition to the contracted
GFA in the projects in the Greater Bay Area, and approximately 3.9
million sgq.m. was the addition to the contracted GFA in the projects
in other cities (excluding terminated projects).
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Portfolio of properties under management

BMERZTEOMELAS  REETHE We manage a diversified portfolio of properties, and in addition to

Sh o BPITMBRIEFETEWE - fIEE residential properties, we also place an increasingly focus on non-
MERTTE BIRE - TER  2#F residential properties, such as commercial properties and office
M BB IS RERE  BAREET buildings, government buildings, industrial parks, public facilities,
HEH IR RS H)IE B $REL - hospitals, airports and schools, to diversify the project types of our

EEMHEE

Residential Property

Projects

YRR ER
Logistics Property
Projects

EIYER
BERABIEE
Electricity Property
and Commercial
Office Buildings
Projects

service offerings and make them balanced.

R AONEE

iR K=

Times Riverbank Times Bund

TEELSEYRE ROYRE

Jiangsu Kunshan E-commerce Logistics Park Dongguan Blackstone Logistics Park

oA G St FE :
TINESHPROPERTY fCEN TS

Ammm——— 1 1) | 1] 17
}

BINEHER Wb EE L

Guangzhou Power Supply Bureau Times Property Center
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The table below sets forth a breakdown of our GFA under property
management as of the dates and revenue generated from property

EERGEEMNRARA : management services for the periods indicated by the type of
property:
HENANBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2020 20198
2020 2019
EEAREER {31 WA i EEEREEE fhitt N fhitt
(FEFX) % (AR®TR) % (FFRX) % (AREFT) %
Total GFA Total GFA
under under
management Percentage Revenue Percentage  management Percentage Revenue Percentage
(sq.m."000) % (RMB"000) % (sg.m."000) % (RMB"000) %
fremx Residential properties 230 324 499,567 495 14,336 373 412,708 60.9
FrEnE Non-residential properties 46,496 67.6 509,916 505 24,093 62.7 265,103 39.1
At Total 68,818 100.0 1,009,483 100.0 38,429 100.0 677,811 100.0

BEaREMBFESHIBRARFPHELES
EMELEES BMEEEVMENYEER
EEREEMBEBREE2019F12A3188 Y
24 1B B K EEH E2020612A31H
WA SEET A K RMEBIEEED
¥MBBMAERMYEE BRI EEKA
#) b B 20194 #939.1% + F+ 220204 &9
50.5% ° H MR A BRATELITEHIET
EMEMBENLERENEE - BLSHEMT
H—FBAEEYWELARERE TS
AL I R 2 o

FRiRIEMBEmHMtE

EXaRBAPBEEEEREEBHRE
EROFE  HFABMRAPBLE=TT5
R - BRERINRBEE  EXORBKE
BEREFNABMBE  BRARE=7TT5
R PTER A RERRGREER -

As a result of our continuous efforts to expand our customer base and
to diversify our portfolio of properties under management, our GFA
under property management for non-residential properties increased
from approximately 24.1 million sq.m. as of 31 December 2019 to
approximately 46.5 million sgq.m. as of 31 December 2020, and the
proportion of our revenue generated from managing non-residential
properties to our total revenue generated from property management
services increased from 39.1% in 2019 to 50.5% in 2020. We believe
that the experience and recognition we have gained from managing
such diversified non-residential properties will enable us to further
expand our portfolio of properties under management, grow our
customer base and create diversified sources of financial growth.

Nature of developers served

We benefit from the rapid growth of Times China Group's real estate
development business. At the same time, we step up our expansion
into independent third-party markets. Leveraging on our high quality
services, our professional service team and our renowned reputation,
we have achieved a rapid growth in terms of GFA obtained from the
expansion of third-party markets.
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TR BMBEMREANDEETREE The following table sets forth our GFA under property management
BEMB RN AR EREmREEDE as of the dates and revenue generated from property management

EERBEENBA services by property developers for the periods indicated:
HENA3NALER
For the year ended 31 December
2020 20195
2020 2019
EEAREER {31 WA i EEEREEE fhitt N fhitt
(FEFX) % (AR®TR) % (FFRX) % (AREFT) %
Total GFA Total GFA
under under
management Percentage Revenue Percentage  management Percentage Revenue Percentage
(sq.m.'000) % (RMB"000) % (sg.m."000) % (RMB"000) %
BAGEEE" Times China Group' 21,324 31.0 491,985 487 1731 452 381,711 %.3
ZZHMEREHEY  Third-party property
developers? 47,494 69.0 517,498 513 21,058 54.8 296,100 437

&t Total 68,818 100.0 1,009,483 100.0 38,429 100.0 677,811 100.0

Hfzt - Notes:

(1) BEEFERPREEEBFBAZOYEN (1) Includes properties solely developed by Times China Group and properties
EERPEHEREE M ERETHLR that Times China Group jointly developed with other property developers for
MR TREEREEIZERESNY which properties Times China Group held a controlling interest.

*®

2) BEBIYRAFRTEEENINEEOYE (2)  Includes properties solely developed by third-party property developers
DA R B AR Fp (B0 5 [ ER L b W 2E R B P independent from Times China Group, as well as properties jointly developed
RIFENYE  BRPEEETEFEE by Times China Group and other property developers for which Times China
ZEYENITERER c INRNDETNE Group did not hold a controlling interest. Properties developed by third-
HEHRE= £ N BRENBTMEE party property developers also include government-owned buildings and
SERHMAEYE - other public properties, which are constructed by third-party construction

companies.

SN e R A S R AEENEA The percentage of GFA under property management for properties
S b B A 20194612 8310 #954.8% F T+ developed by third-party property developers grew from 54.8% as of
Z= 8 2202012 A31H £69.0% « & 1 4 31 December 2019 to 69.0% as of 31 December 2020. The revenue
Y R B R A U A FR20194F B9 4 A R IE generated from managing properties developed by third-party

296. 1 H BT INE2020FE MY ARES517.5 property developers increased from approximately RMB296.1 million
BET - BEZETIERERB A SRR in 2019 to approximately RMB517.5 million in 2020. Such growth is

U B A R B EE = JT Y SRS A o mainly due to our strategic acquisitions and the business cooperation
with third parties.
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Value-added Services to Non-property Owners

We offer a broad range of property related business solutions to non-
property owners, primarily property developers, which cover their
entire property development process, consisting of (i) sales assistance
services, which assist property developers in showcasing and
marketing their properties, including pre-sale consultation, display unit
management, organizing sales campaigns as well as visitor reception
for property development projects; (ii) construction site services,
including consultancy and security services; (iii) housing agency
services for residences, shops and parking spaces; (iv) pre-delivery
cleaning services; and (v) urban redevelopment project services. In
2020, the revenue derived from value-added services to non-property
owners increased significantly by 53.3% to approximately RMB422.2
million from approximately RMB275.5 million in the same period of
2019, primarily due to the substantial increase in the revenue of sales
assistance services, urban redevelopment project services and housing
agency services.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue derived from
value-added services to non-property owners for the years indicated:

BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December

2020 20194
2020 2019
ON fhEE A (=)sd
(AR¥TF ) % (AE%T7T) %
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %
15 $8 AR 7% Sales assistance services 277,895 65.8 198,900 72.2
e T3R5 AR 7% Construction site services 41,733 9.9 45,666 16.6
B R R IRS Pre-delivery cleaning
services 38,927 9.2 22,990 8.3
T B IE B ARAS Urban redevelopment
project services 35,145 8.3 7,922 2.9
EEHF N RS Housing agency services 28,496 6.8 - -
CH Total 422,196 100.0 275,478 100.0

HZE2020F12A318 B AI17BEHETE
MEEBREMEETERSEBERY - R
BARBIEBR ¥R BELEBERHEP
ER - WMENEE TELERMURARK
B BAIUARMTRELHNIEL HBEUK
LA IS E TSR ATREE o

As of 31 December 2020, we provided property management services
and value-added services for 17 urban redevelopment projects,
including services such as cleaning, security, operation management
and tenant management. The urban redevelopment projects not only
enrich our source of income, but also bring us more project reserves
and the possibility of diversifying value-added businesses.
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The housing agency business is developed by Times Neighborhood
to provide integrated marketing services for real estate enterprises
and property owners, such as pipeline distribution, sales agency, real
estate rental and management, integrated marketing and promotion.
In 2020, the revenue derived from the housing agency services
reached approximately RMB28.5 million, mainly because we provided
sales agency and other marketing services for many property projects
developed by Times China and third-party developers.

Community Value-added Services

As an extension of property management services, in order to satisfy
the property owners and residents’ pursuit of convenience, enhance
customers’ experience and increase their loyalty, we provide a wide
range of services in two categories, namely, public space leasing
and parking space management and resident services. Our resident
services mainly include featured butler services, community shopping,
operation management, repair and maintenance of home appliances
and event organization services.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue derived from
community value-added services for the years indicated:

BZ12A831BLEE
For the year ended 31 December

2020F 20194
2020 2019
KA ke WA lfifsd
(AB®TT) % (AR¥EFTT) %
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
(RMB’000) % (RMB"000) %
NHZEFEEE R Public space leasing and
(B DA-$ES parking space
management 68,870 37.0 45,621 57.6
HIERTE Resident services 117,283 63.0 33,531 42.4
CH Total 186,153 100.0 79,152 100.0

2020%F #t [& 15 (B iR 75 YL A 8220194 [F] B A9
PARBETI2EELIEMIZSN%ENAR
B1g62E B L TEMNEMUEERR
EREABRREELN - RIENE P RIEH
REEERGEFEN ST

Revenue from community value-added services in 2020 increased
by 135.1% to approximately RMB186.2 million as compared with
approximately RMB79.2 million for the corresponding period in 2019,
which was mainly due to the expansion of our GFA under property
management, the substantial increase in the number of users served
and the increasing diversification of resident services business types.
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Property Interior Decoration Services

In 2020, we made efforts to develop “Neighborhood Shopping”, a
community on-line shopping platform, to provide owners with high-
quality goods and considerate services by establishing cooperation
with more than 100 well-known brands in China. We selected high-
quality brand products covering the daily needs of community life; we
integrated advantageous products in the market with the community
as a unit, and regularly launched group buying activities in the
community, so that we quickly gained traction with many community
owners and securing considerable orders. The shopping platform
has a drainage effect, thus continuously enhancing the stickiness of
property owners to our service platform, which together with our
various diversified services, including renovation, soft decoration,
housing rental and sales services, etc., making our resident service
income increase by 250.2% from the same period in 2019 to
approximately RMB117.3 million.
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HiEZRA Other Professional Services

FAMBEFPRBEEMBERE  2EOER We provide other professional services to our customers, including (i)

RIE (BIFEEHINE T BERREE): elevator services (including sale, installation, repair and maintenance

(VEB BRI R » RGBS - of elevators); (ii) Zhilian technology services; and (iii) urban public
services.

TRHEIIFTREEEMEERBUWARLR The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue derived from

other professional services for the years indicated:

BZE12A318LEE
For the year ended 31 December

20204 20194
2020 2019
KA fhEE WA (=)sd
(AR®FTR) % (AE¥ETT) %
Revenue Percentage Revenue  Percentage
(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) %
EIHIRTS Elevator services 49,234 35.0 29,659 60.6
BERH AR Zhilian technology services
(RIS [ BRI ])  (formerly known as the
“intelligent engineering
services”) 43,605 31.0 4,687 9.6
WA RIS Urban public services (formerly
(AT [T BURE R ) known as the “municipal
sanitation services”) 47,756 34.0 14,554 29.8
CHl Total 140,595 100.0 48,900 100.0

BB BIERERAT /2020 £ 41



EEEgHS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

EHRY

Elevator Services
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Zhilian Technology Services

In 2020, we comprehensively launched the "“FEELLINK-Neighborhood
Zhilian (#BEEH%)" service, which is oriented towards four major
sectors: family, community, business enterprise and city services, to
provide community services, integrated installation and testing services
for intelligent equipment and systems, system platform upgrade and
reconstruction services, and after-sales operation and maintenance
services. The revenue from Zhilian technology services increased from
approximately RMB4.7 million in 2019 to approximately RMB43.6
million in 2020, mainly due to the increase in the GFA under
management properties and the increase in service revenue from the
business enterprise and urban service sectors.

In 2020, we continued to expand urban public services projects,
providing services such as municipal sanitation, security patrol,
integrated management of construction site and comprehensive
cleaning for these projects. As of 31 December 2020, 9 urban public
services projects under our management were all located in the
Greater Bay Area with the management area of approximately 29.9
million sq.m..

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
comprehensive income on pages 180 to 181 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out on pages 299 to 300 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

42 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



o EI)
L' ON

REBMBRAETZRERYESERE - 3F
¥IERE CEEERGIEMEE
R ANEBMUKABH09FENHARE
1,081.38 & T 1N E2020F M A R
1,75848 B L WO ARKEETI718 8
T BIRA) A62.6% c WABMEBHEAR
YIS 1B RS TN IE 3 1 (B AR A5 MR A 38
e

TREIIANEBER IR FEZEBRE DD
W ABRAR

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from property management
services, value-added services to non-property owners, community
value-added services and other professional services. The Group's
revenue increased by approximately RMB677.1 million or
approximately 62.6% to approximately RMB1,758.4 million in 2020
from approximately RMB1,081.3 million in 2019, which was primarily
attributable to the increase in our revenue from property management
services and revenue from value-added services to non-property
owners.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue of the Group by
business line for the years indicated:

BZ12A3181LEE
For the year ended 31 December
2020 20194
2020 2019
ON (554 WA 1t
(AR®EER) % (AREBET) %
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
(RMB in million) %  (RMB in million) %
Al Categories
MEEERYG Property management services 1,009.5 57.4 677.8 62.7
FEFEBERE Value-added services to
non-property owners 422.2 24.0 275.5 25.5
@ E RS Community value-added services 186.2 10.6 79.1 7.3
HihEE RS Other professional services 140.5 8.0 48.9 45
A Total 1,758.4 100.0 1,081.3 100.0

MEEERBIDRAEENZABARIR
2020F - AREMEEERBUAZIH
AR¥1,0005B 8T HAKEBKAN
57.4% - BB ARERSERAEERZER
ERRER - AR R MR EEE
MBS ERRMBIRNERE=TFFPE
RATE - REFEXTRERBKRAENEE
F YD 36 B 2 IR B 8 0L T 28 B 7% 7 S
e HREERBEAEGNEEGNEER
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The property management services are still our largest source of
revenue. In 2020, the Group’s revenue from property management
services was approximately RMB1,009.5 million, accounting for
57.4% of the Group’s total revenue. The increase in revenue was
primarily driven by the fast growth of our GFA under management,
which was resulted from both our continuous cooperation with Times
China Group and our efforts to expand the third-party customer base.
The increase in revenue from value-added services to non-property
owners, community value-added services and other professional
services was mainly due to the increasing demands for services
resulting from the increase of property development projects, the
increase of our management area and the number of users served and
the increasing diversification of resident services business types, as
well as the increase of service types, respectively.
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Cost of Sales

Our expenses mainly consist of (i) labor costs; (ii) cleaning and
gardening expenses; and (iii) maintenance costs, etc. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the total expenses of the Group
was approximately RMB1,227.4 million, which was increased by
approximately RMB451.4 million or approximately 58.2% as compared
to approximately RMB776.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The rate of increase in cost of sales was lower than that of our
revenue, primarily due to the control and standardization of various
services and processes by the technological means of the Group so as
to improve efficiency and save costs.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Based on the above reasons, the gross profit of the Group increased
by approximately RMB225.7 million or 73.9% to approximately
RMB531.0 million in 2020 from approximately RMB305.3 million in
2019.

Gross profit margin of the Group by business line was as follows:

BZE12A318LEE
For the year ended 31 December

2020 20194

% %

2020 2019

% %

Y E IR Property management services 28.2 258
FEFE IR ERE Value-added services to

non-property owners 29.8 28.1

t R IZE RS Community value-added services 51.0 55.0

Hith B R Other professional services 18.2 19.5

A ERNE Total gross profit margin 30.2 28.2

20209 - AEBEFERFLL EA2.0EE D
2 FERHRYEETERERES TG
R URLERENSERSRNENE
FA - ASEEFREERS -

In 2020, the gross profit margin of the Group increased by 2.0
percentage points year-on-year, primarily due to the growth in the
scale of property management services and the general increase in
gross profit margin as a result of the improvement of the operation
process and the application of smart technologies.
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Our gross profit margin of property management services increased by
2.4 percentage points, primarily due to our successful implementation
of cost-control measures, such as further adopting technologies
and automated equipment to replace manual labor. The Group has
continuously promoted the construction of intelligent community
and management system, which successfully reduced our cost and
improved our efficiency. Furthermore, certain expenses had been
reduced as the Group was entitled to the social security relief policy.

Our gross profit margin of value-added services to non-property
owners increased by 1.7 percentage points, primarily due to the
service types we provided were more diversified, such as the new
housing agency services business in 2020, and expanded the urban
redevelopment project services which constitute higher gross profit
margin.

The gross profit margin of our community value-added services
decreased by 4.0 percentage points. Compared with the previous
concentration of community value-added services in the lease of
public space and management of parking lots with high gross profit
margin, the Company strategically developed resident services and
recorded an exponential growth in revenue during the Year. Due to
the adjustments and changes in the service portfolio, there was a
decrease in the gross profit margin in 2020. However, the resident
services will generate revenue and gross profit growth quickly for the
Company in the long run.

Our gross profit margin of other professional services decreased by
1.3 percentage points, primarily due to change in the services and
product mix.

Other Income and Gains

The other income of the Group increased by approximately RMB17.4
million or 285.2% to approximately RMB23.5 million in 2020
from approximately RMB6.1 million in 2019, which was primarily
attributable to the increase in bank interests and gains from the
disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses mainly consist of (i) labor costs; (i) office
expenses; and (iii) depreciation and amortization, etc. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, the total administrative expenses of the
Group were approximately RMB180.3 million, which increased by
approximately RMB55.4 million or approximately 44.4% as compared
to approximately RMB124.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in the expenses
arising from business expansion.
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Other Expenses

The other expenses of the Group decreased by approximately
RMB24.6 million or 91.4% to approximately RMB2.3 million in
2020 from approximately RMB26.9 million in 2019. The decrease
in expenses was mainly due to other expenses in 2019 included the
listing expenses of approximately RMB23.8 million.

Finance Costs, Net

The finance costs of the Group decreased by approximately RMB5.2
million or 38.5% to approximately RMB8.3 million in 2020 from
approximately RMB13.5 million in 2019. The decrease in the expenses
was mainly because of the decrease in the interest expense generated
from the contract revenue of property management, which arose
from property management fees received in advance of the due
date, which will gradually decrease as the property management fees
received in advance matures.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the income tax of the Group
was approximately RMB79.9 million (2019: RMB40.2 million). The
increase was primarily due to the increase in taxable income.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group's property, plant and equipment mainly include
leasehold improvement, motor vehicles and office equipment. As
at 31 December 2020, the Group's property, plant and equipment
was approximately RMB51.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB16.4 million as compared to RMB35.5 million at
the end of 2019, primarily due to the increase in the expenditures
on office equipment and transportation equipment purchased by the
Group and construction in progress resulting from business expansion
and the increase in some fixed assets through the acquisition of
companies.
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Trade Receivables

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management services,
value-added services to non-property owners and other professional
services provided to Times China Group and third parties. The Group's
trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB574.1 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB360.6 million or 168.9% as compared to approximately
RMB213.5 million as at 31 December 2019, which was consistent
with the trend of income growth.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables increased by 384.4%
from approximately RMB53.7 million as of 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB260.1 million as of 31 December 2020, primarily
due to the expansion of the Company’s business scale and the
prepayments for equity transactions.

Trade Payables

The Group's trade payables as at 31 December 2020 amounted
to approximately RMB275.5 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB153.4 million or 125.6% as compared to
approximately RMB122.1 million as at 31 December 2019, primarily
due to the expansion of the Company's business scale.

Other Payables and Accruals

Other payables and accruals increased by 52.4% from approximately
RMB242.9 million as of 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB370.1 million as of 31 December 2020, primarily due to the
expansion of the Company's business scale.

Financial Position and Capital Structure

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group maintained a sound
financial position.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 2.24 times (31 December 2019: 2.15 times)
and net gearing ratio indicated a net cash status (31 December 2019:
net cash). Net gearing ratio is calculated by other interest-bearing
borrowings minus cash and cash equivalent, and then divided by net
assets. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have
any outstanding other interest-bearing borrowings.
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Financial Guarantee
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have financial guarantee.
Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, none of the assets of the Group were
pledged.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Interest Rate Risk

As the Group had no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
the Group is not exposed to material risk directly relating to changes
in market interest rate.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operations are
denominated in RMB. The Group will closely monitor the fluctuations
of the RMB exchange rate and give prudent consideration as to
entering into currency swap arrangement as and when appropriate
for hedging corresponding risks. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had not engaged in hedging activities for managing foreign exchange
rate risk.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Acquisition of Guangzhou Haoging

Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement entered into on 24 March
2020 between Huizhou Huiyang Baowen Real Estate Development
Management Co., Ltd. (BEMTEEERXEHEREZELEAR
~A]) (“Huizhou Huiyang”) as vendor and Guangzhou Times
Neighborhood, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as purchaser, Guangzhou Times Neighborhood agreed to acquire the
entire equity interest of Guangzhou Haoging and the shareholder loan
from Huizhou Huiyang at a total consideration of RMB32,722,984.80.
Guangzhou Haoging is a property management and urban public
service provider established in the PRC. The business registration
and arrangement of such equity transfer were completed in April
2020. Upon completion of such acquisition, Guangzhou Haoging has
become a subsidiary of the Group. For more details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 24 March 2020.

Acquisition of Xuzhou Mengmu Enterprise Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Xuzhou Mengmu”) and Shanghai Kejian

Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement entered into on 28 June
2020 by and among Guangzhou Times Neighborhood, certain vendors
and Xuzhou Mengmu, Guangzhou Times Neighborhood acquired
the entire equity interest of Xuzhou Mengmu at a consideration of
RMB234,050,000, and Xuzhou Mengmu holds 51% equity interest of
Shanghai Kejian. Shanghai Kejian is a property management service
provider for industrial logistics real estate established in the PRC. The
business registration and arrangement of such equity transfer were
completed in July 2020. Upon completion of such acquisition, Xuzhou
Mengmu and Shanghai Kejian have become subsidiaries of the Group.
For more details, please refer to the announcement and supplemental
announcement of the Company dated 28 June 2020 and 10 July
2020, respectively.
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Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement, Shanghai Kejian should
achieve a target net profit after tax for the financial years ended 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022, and the Company is entitled to
relevant distributions. According to the audited financial results of
Shanghai Kejian, Shanghai Kejian achieved the guarantee amount of
the net profit after tax as of 31 December 2020, and the Company is
also entitled to receive relevant pro rata distributions.

Entering into an Agreement to Acquire 49% Equity Interest
in Chengdu Holytech

Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement entered into on 11
December 2020 by and among Guangzhou Times Property
Management Co., Ltd. ("“Guangzhou Times Property”), certain
vendors, Co-investor and Chengdu Holytech, Guangzhou Times
Property acquired 49% equity interest of Chengdu Holytech at a
consideration of RMB296,587,200. Chengdu Holytech holds a wholly-
owned subsidiary, Chengdu Holytech Property Co., Ltd. (“Holytech
Property”), which is a property management service provider
established in the PRC. Upon completion, Chengdu Holytech will
become an associate of the Company and will be recorded as an
investment to associates by the Company. For more details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 11 December 2020.
The business registration for the 49% equity interest in Chengdu
Holytech was completed in January 2021.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held, no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, nor was there any plan authorized by
the Board for other material investments or additions of capital assets
at the date of this report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 8,129 full-time employees
(31 December 2019: 8,050 full-time employees).
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The remunerations of the employees are commensurate with their
performance, skills, knowledge, experience and the market trend.
Employee benefits provided by the Group include provident fund
schemes, medical insurance scheme, unemployment insurance
scheme, housing provident fund and mandatory provident fund. The
Group reviews the remuneration policies and packages on a regular
basis and will make necessary adjustments that accommodate the
pay levels in the industry. In addition to basic salaries, the employees
may be offered with discretionary bonuses and cash awards based on
individual performances. The Group also provides training programs
for the employees with a view to constantly upgrading their skills
and knowledge. For more information on the Group’s training during
the Year, please refer to the section “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”.

The Group's employee benefit expense (excluding Directors’
remuneration) is approximately RMB646.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: RMB558.6 million).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Under the emolument policy of the Group, the nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”) and remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) will consider factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, tenure, commitment,
responsibilities and performance (as the case may be) of our Directors
and the senior management, in assessing the amount of remuneration
payable to our Directors and the senior management.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Company are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements for this year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at the date of this report, the Company has not adopted any share
option scheme.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 23 September 2020, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Scheme”) to recognize the contributions of selected participants
and encourage them to remain in office in the Group, thus promoting
continuing operation and development of the Group. The details are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 23 September
2020. According to the Scheme, the award shares will be satisfied by
way of acquisition of existing Shares through on-market transactions
by the trustee and will be held on trust until they are vested. The
total number of all award shares granted under the Scheme shall
not exceed 3% of the total issued Shares of the Company as at 23
September 2020.

On 13 November 2020, according to the Scheme, the Company
granted 24 selected participants (including 4 executive Directors) a
total of 3,350,000 award shares, representing approximately 0.34%
of the total issued Shares of the Company as at 13 November 2020.
The details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
13 November 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the trustee purchased a
total of 3,350,000 Shares at a total consideration of approximately
HKD25,967,000 and shall hold the shares upon trust for the benefits
of the relevant grantees until they are vested (or cancelled) in
accordance with the Scheme.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of our Directors,
depending on our results of operations, cash flows, financial position,
statutory and regulatory restrictions on the dividends paid by us,
future prospects, as well as any other factors which our Directors may
consider relevant. We have no policy for future dividend payments.
Our Board has absolute discretion as to whether to declare any
dividend for any year, and in what amount. For more details on
dividend distribution, please refer to the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION POLICIES
AND PERFORMANCE

Information on the environmental policies and performance of the
Company is set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” in this annual report.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations of the places where the
Group has business operations during the year ended 31 December
2020. The Group will review its environmental practices from time to
time and will consider implementing further measures and practices in
the Group's business operations to enhance sustainability.

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability. The Group strives
to ensure minimal environmental impacts by carefully managing
its energy consumption, water usage, property design and waste
production.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group, particularly in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations, in particular, those have significant impact
on the Group. The audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) is delegated by the Board to monitor the Group's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention
of relevant employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the business and operations of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company made
charitable and other donations in a amount of RMB3,910,000 (31
December 2019: RMB6,000).

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Details of our relationship with employees are set out in the section
headed “Employees and Remuneration Policy” of this annual report.

Our customers primarily consist of property developers, property
owners and residents and governmental authorities.

For all of our business lines, our suppliers are primarily sub-contractors
providing cleaning, gardening and certain repair and maintenance
services.

Please refer to the chapter headed "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” in this annual report for more details.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended a final dividend of RMB7.1 cents
(2019: RMB3.3 cents) per ordinary share totalling approximately
RMB69,983,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020. The final
dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) at the annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Thursday, 20 May 2021 (the "AGM"), and is
expected to be paid on or around 2 July 2021.

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in
HKD. The final dividend payable in HKD will be converted from RMB
to HKD at the average exchange rate of HKD against RMB announced
by the People’s Bank of China on 20 May 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 14 May
2021 to 20 May 2021, both days inclusive, in order to determine
the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend the
forthcoming AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, all transfer accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company'’s
Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 13
May 2021.

The record date for qualifying to receive the proposed final dividend
is 28 May 2021. In order to determine the right of the Shareholders
entitled to receive the proposed final dividend, which is subject to the
approval by the Shareholders in the forthcoming AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from 26 May 2021 to
28 May 2021, both days inclusive. All transfer accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30
p.m. on 25 May 2021.
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The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on the 19 December 2019 (the “Listing Date”) by
way of global offering, raising the total net proceeds (after deducting
professional fees, underwriting commissions and other related listing
expenses) of approximately HKD786,744,178.
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The proceeds from the listing are and will be continuously used
according to the plans and timelines disclosed in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds-Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus
dated 9 December 2019 of the Company, namely:

R2020F12A31BHAMEREER AR (BEEESH)
As at 31 December 2020
Actual Use of Proceeds (Including the Reserved Amount)

FRERERERE

Proposed Use of Proceeds

— BEFSHIEEEA65%3511,383,716 B AR
SRR E RUE S DA TE — TR R
sE

Approximately 65% of the total net proceeds or
HKD511,383,716 will be used for seeking selective
strategic investment and acquisition opportunities
and further developing strategic alliances;

St PTISFIEFE4915%30118,011,628 B 7L AG AR
MASERMIITESENE - KIESTPRBE
=

Approximately 15% of the total net proceeds
or HKD118,011,628 will be used for improving
the customer service quality by using advanced

technology and building a smart community;

SR PTISFIEFHA10%3L78,674,417 8 TAG AN
—HBER-BARBTFE R

Approximately 10% of the total net proceeds or
HKD78,674,417 will be used for further developing a
one-stop service platform; and

SR PTISFIEFEA10%3L78,674,41 7B LA AIEE
BEe Rk —MRAFAR -

Approximately 10% of the total net proceeds or
HKD78,674,417 will be used for working capital and
general corporate purposes.

AT FUBEEAN65%8 511,383,716 T AR S iE
BRI E MR & DA B — A3 R B R B B

Approximately 65% of the total net proceeds or
HKD511,383,716 has been used for seeking selective
strategic investment and acquisition opportunities and
further developing strategic alliances;

BETFTESRIEFREAY7.5% 51 59,320,000 7L E AR FI A L
ERMRITESE )R - RIESEPRBES - MeRsESE
BRERS

Approximately 7.5% of the total net proceeds or
HKD59,320,000 has been used for improving the customer
service quality by using advanced technology and building a
smart community, while the remainder will be used for the
intended purposes;

BETFTSSRIEFRELY1.1%508,490,000/8 70 B AR — 0%
E—uARBFE - MBAEHERERS &
Approximately 1.1% of the total net proceeds or
HKD8,490,000 has been used for further developing a one-
stop service platform, while the remainder will be used for
the intended purposes; and

BESHCHRIELEES R —RARME  ESERERS -

Proceeds have not been used for working capital and
general corporate purposes, but will be used for intended
purposes.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING
AND SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES

On 7 July 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Credit
Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited (the manager) and Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd.
("Asiaciti Enterprises”) (the seller), pursuant to which the manager
conditionally agreed to place 77,000,000 existing ordinary Shares of
the Company at the placing price of HKD10.22 per Share to not less
than six (6) placees on a best effort basis, while Asiaciti Enterprises
conditionally agreed to subscribe for new Shares, the number of
which is equal to the number of the placing Shares placed by the
manager, at the issue price of HKD10.22 per new Share (the “Issue
Price”). The Issue Price represented a discount of approximately
6.92% to the closing price of HKD10.98 per share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on the last trading day prior to the signing of the
agreement. The Directors considered that the placing and subscription
provide a good opportunity for the Company to raise additional funds
to consolidate its financial position, broaden the shareholder base and
capital base of the Group, thus promoting future development, and
helping increase the liquidity of shares. The Company completed the
placing of Shares, and allotment and issuance of new Shares under
the general mandate, on 9 July 2020 and 20 July 2020, respectively.
The total net proceeds raised by the Company after deducting all
relevant fees, costs and expenses to be borne or incurred by the
Company are approximately HKD779,596,946. The net price for the
subscription, after deduction of all relevant fees, costs and expenses
to be borne or incurred by the Company was approximately HKD10.12
per share.
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Proposed Use of Proceeds

The proceeds from the placing and subscription of Shares are and
will be continuously used according to the plans disclosed in the
announcements dated 7 July 2020 and 20 July 2020 of the Company,
which set forth as follow:

R2020F12A3MBFEREBRAR (BEEELE)
As at 31 December 2020
Actual Use of Proceeds (Including the Reserved Amount)

— AFHETSRIEEEEHI90% 5 701,637,251 B T AEE — AFTATBEIEEREAI24.6%54192,003,575 802 ARE

EBRRE MEKE &

Approximately 90% of the total net proceeds or
HKD701,637,251 will be used for potential strategic
investment and acquisition opportunities; and

— AFFTERUEFREL10%877,959,695% T BIEALE — BESHEEAE—REEES

B—REEET -

Approximately 10% of the total net proceeds or
HKD77,959,695 will be used for general working

capital of the Group.

BRI E RIERE - MRS ERERSE &
Approximately 24.6% of the total net proceeds or
HKD192,003,575 has been used for potential strategic
investment and acquisition opportunities, while the
remainder will be used for the intended purposes; and

HERVESREE R -

Proceeds have not been used for general working capital,
but will be used for intended purposes.

RABSBEH - ()RR REREFEEZD
EBEB2EMBE - BAEZRIEAR

BB EE  (NVARRDEHE—EE
MIAE  EAKEYERTAZFRESL

WOBRRTSLI%3% © R (i) R BB RIAPT IS SRIRF
BVER T BB D IR 2021 F B R B IR B & iR
ERSETER  EARTSMRMIE -

As at the date of this report, (i) the Company actively explores any
targets that are related to its core businesses and has not identified
any new investment or acquisition targets; (ii) the Company has
developed a general list of prospects, but no agreement has
been entered by the Group in respect of any such investments
or acquisitions; and (iii) the rest of the net proceeds from the
subscription will be continuously used according to the original
intended use in the year 2021, subject to market conditions.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the transaction amount of the
Group's top five customers accounted for 27.9% of the total revenue
of the Group (2019: 29.2%), while the transaction amount of the
Group's single largest customer accounted for 24.6% of the total
revenue of the Group (2019: 24.8%).

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the transaction amount of
the Group’s top five suppliers accounted for 22.9% of the total
purchase of the Group (2019: 43.0%), while the transaction amount
of the Group's single largest supplier accounted for 5.1% of the total
purchase of the Group (2019: 10.5%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of the issued
Shares of the Company) had any interest in the Group's five largest
customers or suppliers (other than Times China Group and its
associates).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 28 to consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has not held
any properties for investment purposes.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has not
entered into or maintained any equity-linked agreements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 184 to 185 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB1,399.8 million (as at 31 December 2019: RMB723.2 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Wang Meng

Mr. Yao Xusheng

Ms. Xie Rao

Ms. Zhou Rui

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Bai Xihong (Chairman)
Mr. Li Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian

Dr. Wong Kong Tin

Dr. Chu Xiaoping

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Yao Xusheng, Ms. Zhou Rui and Dr. Wong Kong Tin will retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as the
Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company will be despatched to the
Shareholders in due course.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 21 to 29 in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company received confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the "Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2020. The
Company considered all of the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ TENURE AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our non-executive Directors and our independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors has a service contract with members of the
Group that is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director has a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTEREST IN COMPETING

The Directors of the Company confirm that they did not have any
interest in other business which competes or is likely to compete,
directly or indirectly, with our business, which would require
disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance between the Group and the controlling
Shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries has been made
during the year ended 31 December 2020, except the disclosed in the
section headed “Report of Directors — Connected Transactions and
Related Party Transactions”of this report.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'’
DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company, Mr. Shum Chiu Hung and his spouse, Ms. Li Yiping
(the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition dated 5 December 2019 (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”). Each of our Ultimate Controlling Shareholders
has unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to us in the Deed
of Non-Competition that he/she will not, and will procure his/her
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules, excluding Times
China Group (an independent operating group due to the listing
status of Times China)) not to directly or indirectly be involved in
or undertake any business (other than our business) that directly or
indirectly competes, or may compete, with our business, being the
provision of property management services, value-added services,
community value-added services and other professional services
(collectively referred to as the “Restricted Businesses”), or hold
shares or interest in any companies or business that compete directly
or indirectly with the business engaged by our Group from time to
time, or conduct any Restricted Businesses, except where our Ultimate
Controlling Shareholders and their close associates hold less than 5%
of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) (excluding
Times China Group) which is engaged in any business that is or
may be in competition with any business engaged by any member
of our Group and they do not possess the right to appoint 10% or
more of the directors of such company. For details of the Deed of
Non-Competition, please refer to the Company's prospectus dated 9
December 2019.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders with the Deed
of Non-Competition and consider that the Deed of Non-Competition
has been complied with during the year ended 31 December 2020.
Each of Ultimate Controlling Shareholders has provided the Company
with a confirmation regarding his/her compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this report, there is no change in information of the
Directors as of the date of this annual report required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which would
be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which would be required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"”), were as
follows:
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B BETBRAEERE EEHE BRHOEE WMAF DO

Approximate
Percentage of
Number of Shareholding in

Name of Director/Chief Executive Nature of Interest Shares the Company®
FHAL T E=HEBA 200,000 0.02%
Ms. Wang Meng Beneficial owner
kB EE E=EBA 200,000 0.02%
Mr. Yao Xusheng Beneficial owner
Bt E=HEBA 200,000 0.02%
Ms. Xie Rao Beneficial owner
At BE=EBA 200,000 0.02%
Ms. Zhou Rui Beneficial owner
Btk A E=BA 18,870,673 1.91%
Mr. Bai Xihong Beneficial owner

Bl B @ 1,659,811 0.17%

Interest of spouse®

FoRE A E=EBA 1,227,692 0.12%

Mr. Li Qiang Beneficial owner

BEBEASTE E=HEBA 100,000 0.01%

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian Beneficial owner

=TI AL E=HEBA 100,000 0.01%

Dr. Wong Kong Tin Beneficial owner

Bt - Notes:

(1) %2020&12)331 B ARFEEITERMNE (1) As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued Shares of the
#7/5985,672,747RAR (D ° Company was 985,672,747 Shares.

(2) 54‘2020%12)5!31 B Elf%/#f'ﬁ%mﬁﬂﬁ;% (2) As at 31 December 2020, Ms. Wan Zhi Ning, the spouse of Mr. Bai
HELZLM,659,8 11 R P AR - Xihong is interested in 1,659,811 Shares. Mr. Bai Xihong is deemed to
B EERRRARZERN P HEEERS - be interested in those Shares.
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RABEEB NS INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
HEEBAN
] HEEE R B 51 REEE RGEE BaE®
Approximate
Name of Capacity/ Number of Percentage of
Name Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Shares Interest ("
B#HtEE R BIERAR AR BEmBEAA 43,074,000 2.22%

Mr. Bai Xihong Times China Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

BER? 2,017,000 0.10%

Interest of spouse®

FREE R BB PR A 7 EREEA 2,880,000 0.15%

Mr. Li Qiang Times China Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

Pt et - Notes:

(1)  R2020%128318 BRFEEBER (1) As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued shares of Times
AT BITHRMEESE1,941,817,142 5% China Holdings Limited was 1,941,817,142 shares.
e

(2)  R20204128318 A AELNREE (2)  As at 31 December 2020, Ms. Wan Zhi Ning, the spouse of Mr. Bai
EEE A R2,017,00008 B e B 2B A R Xihong is interested in 2,017,000 shares of Times China Holdings
NEBG R EARER - Bt s ERmBE AR Limited. Mr. Bai Xihong is deemed to be interested in those shares.

ZERDPEAER

EERSRORBRESE  DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
FEF DEBENTURES

BRRNERFIHEEI - AATHEHB A Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
AR E 2020128318 I E B ELT T December 2020, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries was a party
A BEEEAEES AQTSEM to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
H sk AE R EREEmER - BrE means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company
EEGHEREBRISEIU T Ak or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of
FAT{m] 4 FI LA S BE A &) sk AT (] E Ath Sk A E their spouses or children under the age of 18, was granted any right
IR ER B L KOTSRS to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any
F o other body corporate nor had exercised any such right.
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EREANRDEHEHBER  SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
TP ESERARE AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

2020128318 ESFATA - TF A As at 31 December 2020, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
T+ (WHEESHAQNTZSTHALR) BiE the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
BEAENHEEAEIBERTARNTEFEEDN Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
B0 BT EC 4 AR 19 Sk AR BARR 10 R HE A IR B Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
A REIERFIEXVELE 2 R EID IBHIEX of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register

HARANBEENRESS AR required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
BN B IRER
REEB EEtE RIDEE HEDEO

Approximate
Percentage of
Number of Shareholding in

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares the Company”
E AT BEmBEAA 461,793,077 46.85%
Asiaciti Enterprises Beneficial owner
TERREERARAY(EBRRE]) FimEE R 461,793,077 46.85%
Renowned Brand Investments Limited®

("Renowned Brand”) Interested in controlled corporation
RANERARAR ([RA])@ RPrEE S 461,793,077 46.85%
East Profit Management Limited

("East Profit”)? Interested in controlled corporation
2oL ([SRE])@ RERE RS 461,793,077 46.85%
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (“Mr. Shum”)? Interested in controlled corporation
F— @ LB g 461,793,077 46.85%
Ms. Li Yiping®@ Interested in controlled corporation
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. ¥ EE R 49,340,000 5.01%

Interested in controlled corporation

Ftat - Notes:

1. R2020%12A318 - KRR HTRIDE 1. At 31 December 2020, the total number of issued Shares of the
#5985,672, 74715 ° Company was 985,672,747 shares.

2. SDRXBEARE (HEEEZEHA) 2. Asiaciti Enterprises is owned as to 60% by Renowned Brand, which
ERM(AF—FXL2ERER) ’ﬁ?ﬂiﬁ’& is wholly owned by Mr. Shum; and as to 40% by East Profit, which is
560% 540% ) R 1 © *ETEE%%&%@‘E & wholly owned by Ms. Li Yiping. By virtue of the SFO, Renowned Brand,
WJ\' E%&L’é . ?ﬂ : yéf'ﬁiﬁ?*?ﬁi East Profit, Mr. Shum and Ms. Li Yiping are deemed to be interested in
AR RN G R B R A s o Shares held by Asiaciti Enterprises.
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Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors are
not aware of any other persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interests or short positions
in the Share or underlying Share as recorded in the register of the
Company to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PERMITED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, Directors, managing directors,
alternate Directors, secretary and other officers of the Company and
the trustees (if any) acting in relation to any of the affairs of the
Company, and their respective executors or administrators, shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their executors
or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale and redemption of any listed securities
of the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Group did not make loans and guarantees to senior management,
Directors, controlling shareholders or their respective connected
persons of the Company, directly or indirectly, during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Master Property Management and Related Services

On 3 December 2019, the Company entered into a master property
management and related services agreement (the “Master Property
Management and Related Services Agreement”) with Asiaciti
Enterprises, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide to
Asiaciti Enterprises and its associates property management and
related services, including but not limited to (i) property management
services for the properties owned or used by Asiaciti Enterprises and
its associates, (ii) pre-delivery services including (a) construction sites
management services; and (b) display units and property sales venues
management services, (iii) car parking lots management and leasing
services, and (iv) preliminary planning and design consultancy services
at the pre-delivery stage (the “Property Management and Related
Services”). The Master Property Management and Related Services
Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date until 31
December 2021.

On 4 December 2020, the Company and Asiaciti Enterprises revised
the proposed annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2020
and entered into the 2020 Asiaciti Agreement (“2020 Asiaciti
Agreement”), pursuant to which both parties agreed to change
the proposed annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2020
("Revised Annual Cap”) to up to RMB545.0 million. The 2020
Asiaciti Agreement, the transactions contemplated thereunder and
the Revised Annual Cap were approved by independent Shareholders
by way of an ordinary resolution at the extraordinary general meeting
held by the Company on 22 December 2020 (“Effective Date"”). The
2020 Asiaciti Agreement became effective on the Effective Date, and
was valid from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020. The Master
Property Management and Related Services Agreement expired on the
Effective Date and was replaced by the 2020 Asiaciti Agreement.

As of the date of this annual report, Times China was owned as
to 61.64% by Asiaciti Enterprises. Asiaciti Enterprises is one of
the controlling Shareholders of the Company and Times China is
therefore a connected person of our Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the 2020 Asiaciti
Agreement will constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Since all of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules
in respect of the annual caps for the 2020 Asiaciti Agreement were
more than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions under the 2020
Asiaciti Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company which are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The fees to be charged for the Property Management and Related
Services will be determined after arm’s length negotiations with
reference to (i) the prevailing market price (taking into account the
location and the conditions of the property, the scope of the services
and the anticipated operation costs including but not limited to labor
costs, administration costs and costs of materials) and the prices
charged by the Group for providing similar services to independent
third parties; and (ii) the guidance price of such services for similar
type of development projects issued by the local government (if
applicable). The fees shall not be higher than the standard fees
approved by the state pricing regulatory authorities (if applicable)
and under the same situation not lower than the fees charged by the
Group to independent third parties in any event.

Details have been disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 7
December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, a total transaction amount of
RMB481.4 million was paid by Asiaciti Enterprises to the Group under
the 2020 Asiaciti Agreement, and the transaction amount did not
exceed the Revised Annual Cap of RMB545.0 million.

Master Equipment Sales, Installation and Maintenance
Services

On 3 December 2019, the Company entered into a master equipment
sales, installation and maintenance services agreement (the “Master
Equipment Sales, Installation and Maintenance Services
Agreement”) with Times China. The Group is an elevator distributor
for a third party elevator manufacturer. Pursuant to the Master
Equipment Sales, Installation and Maintenance Services Agreement,
our Group agreed to (a) sell elevators to Times China Group and
provide accessorial installation, maintenance and repair services
of such elevators, and (b) provide intelligent engineering services,
including but not limited to installation and maintenance of access
control system, intercom system, surveillance system and broadband
network facilities and consultation services in relation to such
installation and maintenance for properties developed by Times China
Group before the delivery of such properties to property owners (the
“Equipment Sales, Installation and Maintenance Services”).
The Master Equipment Sales, Installation and Maintenance Services
Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date until 31
December 2021.
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On 4 December 2020, the Company and Times China revised the
proposed annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
entered into the 2020 Times China Agreement (2020 Times China
Agreement”), pursuant to which both parties agreed to change
the proposed annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2020
("Revised Annual Cap”) to up to RMB85.0 million. The 2020 Times
China Agreement, the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
Revised Annual Cap were approved by independent Shareholders by
way of an ordinary resolution at the extraordinary general meeting
held by the Company on 22 December 2020 (“Effective Date"”). The
2020 Times China Agreement became effective on the Effective Date,
and was valid from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020. The Master
Equipment Sales, Installation and Maintenance Services Agreement
expired on the Effective Date and was replaced by the 2020 Times
China Agreement.

As of the date of this annual report, Times China is owned as to
61.64% by Asiaciti Enterprises. Asiaciti Enterprises is one of our
controlling Shareholders and Times China is therefore a connected
person of our Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions under the 2020 Times China Agreement
will constitute continuing connected transactions for our Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Since certain the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules
in respect of the annual caps for the 2020 Times China Agreement
were more than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions under
the 2020 Times China Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for our Company which are subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement, circular and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The fees to be charged for the Equipment Sales, Installation
and Maintenance Services will be determined after arm’s length
negotiations with reference to (i) the prevailing market price (taking
into account the location and the conditions of the properties,
purchasing cost of the elevators and the anticipated operational costs
including labor costs and material costs) and the prices charged by the
Group for providing similar services to independent third parties; and
(i) the guidance price of such services for similar type of development
projects issued by the local government (if applicable). The fees shall
not be higher than the standard fees approved by the state pricing
regulatory authorities (if applicable) and under the same situation
not lower than the fees charged by the Group to independent third
parties in any event.

Details have been disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 7
December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the transaction amount of
RMB61.9 million was paid by Times China to the Group under the
2020 Times China Agreement, and the transaction amount did not
exceed the Revised Annual cap of RMB85.0 million.
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2021 AGREEMENT

On 4 December 2020, the Company and Times China entered into the
2021 Agreement (“2021 Agreement”) on the provision of services by
the Group to Times China Group and its associated companies for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The Group agreed to provide property
management and related services (including property management
and related services, equipment sales, installation and maintenance
services) for Time China Group and its associated companies.

The 2021 Agreement, the transactions contemplated thereunder and
the annual cap were approved by independent Shareholders by way
of an ordinary resolution at the extraordinary general meeting held by
the Company on 22 December 2020. The 2021 Agreement became
effective on the Effective Date, and is valid from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021. In accordance with the 2021 Agreement, the annual
cap on the costs to be paid by Time China Group and its associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2021 will not exceed
RMB830.0 million.

Times China is a connected person of the Company for the purpose
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, the transactions under the 2021 Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company.

Since all of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules
in respect of the annual caps under the 2021 Agreement were
more than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions under the
2021 Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company which are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The fees will be determined after arm’s length negotiations with
reference to (i) the prevailing market price (taking into account the
location and the conditions of the property, the scope of the services
and the anticipated operation costs including but not limited to labor
costs, administration costs and costs of materials) charged by the
Group for providing similar services to independent third parties; and
(i) the guidance price of the services for a similar type of development
projects issued by the local government (if applicable). The fees shall
not be higher than the standard fees approved by the state pricing
regulatory authorities (if applicable) and not lower than the fees
charged by the Group to independent third parties in any event.

Details have been disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 7
December 2020.
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The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that these transactions have
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

(i)  on normal or better commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms of which
are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Shareholders
as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditor, was engaged
to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young has issued an unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed below by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe the
continuing connected transactions disclosed in this report:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;
(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of

goods or services by the Group;

(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the relevant annual caps.

A copy of the independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with “related parties”
as defined under the applicable accounting standards, which
include transactions that constitute connected/continuing connected
transactions for which the requirements under the Listing Rules have
been complied with.

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 is contained in note
33 to consolidated financial statements in this report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which are required
to be disclosed by the Company in the Reporting Period in accordance
with the provisions concerning the disclosure of connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company's annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020 prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of corporate governance.

The Company has been conducting its business according to the
principles of the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed in this annual report,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Please refer to pages 74 to 96 of the corporate governance report in
this annual report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
date of this report.
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TAX CONCESSION

The Directors are not aware of any tax concessions available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’'s securities.
If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of
any rights in relation to, the Shares, they are advised to consult tax
specialists.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group complied
with the laws and regulations in all material respects.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed as the auditor to audit the
financial statements prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Ernst & Young has audited the accompanying financial statements
prepared based on International Financial Reporting Standards.

Ernst & Young has been engaged since the date of preparation for the
listing of the Company. Ernst & Young will retire as the auditor of the
Company at the close of the forthcoming AGM and will be eligible for
re-election. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM for
approval of Shareholders to re-elect Ernst & Young as the auditor of
the Company for the year ending 31 December 2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of the annual report, there is no occurrence of events
that are material to the Group's business after the Reporting Period.

By Order of the Board

Mr. Bai Xihong
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 10 March 2021
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report as
set out in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted CG Code as its own code of corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions under
the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2020. The Company
will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance
duties include:

(@) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and to make recommendations and report
to the Board;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

(f)  to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company'’s whistleblowing policy.
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THE BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board committees
including the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”). The
Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set
out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect
of legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company'’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with
the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides members
of the Board with periodical updates on the Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 170 to page 179 of this
annual report.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
Directors, consisting of four executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
composition of the current Board of the Company is set out as
follows:

] Bz

Name Position

Tkt WITES

Ms. Wang Meng executive Director

BBTT A BITES

Mr. Yao Xusheng executive Director

Bl eten BiTES

Ms. Xie Rao executive Director

At BiITE=S

Ms. Zhou Rui executive Director

SEpS s FERITES (EE)

Mr. Bai Xihong non-executive Director (chairman)
FoREL FERITES

Mr. Li Qiang non-executive Director

BT AE BIFMITES

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian independent non-executive Director
wIKEL BUIEMITES

Dr. Wong Kong Tin independent non-executive Director
f# I FEL B IFRITES

Dr. Chu Xiaoping

independent non-executive Director
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The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 up to the date of this
report, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors, with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has confirmed his independence during the
year ended 31 December 2020 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report, none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with
any other Directors or chief executive.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman of the Board and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")
of the Company are currently two separate positions held by Mr. Bai
Xihong and Ms. Wang Meng respectively, with clear distinction in
responsibilities. The chairman of the Board is responsible for providing
strategic advice and guidance on the development of the Group,
while the CEO is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Group.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the requirement of the Articles of Association, the Board
shall have power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director but so that the number of Directors so appointed shall not
exceed the maximum number determined from time to time by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any
Director appointed under this Article shall not be taken into account
in determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

No Director has entered into any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
re-election of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT
REGARDING DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific enquiry
has been made to all the Directors and each of the Directors has
confirmed that he or she has complied with the requirements under
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company also adopted
the Model Code as its code of conduct regarding employees’ securities
transactions for the compliance by its relevant employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.
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TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
training and information to ensure that he or she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his or her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations. The Company will also arrange regular seminars to
provide Directors with updates on latest development and changes in
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time. The Directors are also provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. To develop and refresh the knowledge and skills, all Directors
have participated in continuous professional development and
training.

Based on the information provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2020 is as follows:

EFIAR
Training contents

HITES

Executive Directors
Tt

Ms. Wang Meng
kBT 5 A&

Mr. Yao Xusheng
St

Ms. Xie Rao
At

Ms. Zhou Rui

FHTES
Non-executive Directors
HiHst kA

Mr. Bai Xihong

FoRE A

Mr. Li Qiang

BYFHITES

Independent non-executive Directors
BEBRLE

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian

HIKEL

Dr. Wong Kong Tin

f# I FEL

Dr. Chu Xiaoping

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B
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Notes:

A: attending briefings, trainings, lectures, seminars or forums related to the
Company's business or applicable laws and regulations

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates related to the Company’s
business or applicable laws and regulations

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days have been given for
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend the regular meetings and discuss matters in the agenda
therein.

For other Board meetings, reasonable notices will be given by the
Company. For Board Committee meetings, notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given by the Company to all Directors for Board
Committee meetings. Notices of meetings, which include the agenda
and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the Directors at
least three days before the Board and Board Committee meetings
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the accompanying
documents and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman
prior to the meeting. The company secretary shall keep the minutes
of meetings and provide copies of such minutes to all Directors for
reference and record purposes.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings will
record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are sent/will be sent to the Directors
for their consideration within a reasonable time after convening the
meetings. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection
by all Directors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, eight Board meetings were
held and the attendance of each Director at these meetings is set out

in the table below:

EHERE HERE
Attended/Eligible to attend

FHLL

Ms. Wang Meng
BRIB TS A

Mr. Yao Xusheng
Fill cx-gum

Ms. Xie Rao
Atz t

Ms. Zhou Rui
B#&tEE

Mr. Bai Xihong
FfLt

Mr. Li Qiang
BEBRRLE

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
=ILKRIEL

Dr. Wong Kong Tin
N FE L

Dr. Chu Xiaoping

8/8

8/8

8/8

8/8

8/8

8/8

8/8

8/8

7/8%

it FAEATESHEER  @FPNFELTRE
M- REEGEACETRI B

FHTEERB/RE -

Note: Due to a scheduling conflict, Dr.

Chu Xiaoping appointed another

independent non-executive Director to vote on his behalf at the Board

meeting from which he was absent.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Bai Xihong (chairman), non-executive Director, Mr.
Lui Shing Ming, Brian and Dr. Chu Xiaoping, two independent
non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee of the Company
are as follows:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3.  to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and chief executive officer;
and

5.  to perform tasks as assigned by the Board from time to time.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to
the Board for decision.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee were held and the attendance of the
Nomination Committee members is set out below:

EHERE HERE
Attended/Eligible to attend

B#&stEE

Mr. Bai Xihong
BT E

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
I FEL

Dr. Chu Xiaoping

1Al

"7

"7

HZE2020612A31BLtEE REEZE®
BRI TESSRBRAR  FHEBELIEDR
TEEMBELE  AREBEFRE LHEME
EEERETTRNESSHELERBESR UK
B T ARAMESSN B ZLBUER RIE
Mo REBZEENNFARARASRER
EBAEMETEEFLHEZRNEETSHE
o

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the structure and composition of the Board, assessed
the independence of independent non-executive directors, made
recommendations to the Board on re-election of retiring directors at
the annual general meeting, and reviewed the diversity policy and
diversity of the Board members of the Company. During the year, the
Nomination Committee also considered and made recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of senior management of the
Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Our Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on our Board. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of our Company's strategic objectives
and sustainable development. Our Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to talents, skills, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, work experience, independence, knowledge
and length of service. We will continue to implement measures and
steps to promote and enhance gender diversity at all levels of our
Company. We will select potential Board candidates based on his/her
individual performance and potential contribution to our Board while
taking into account our board diversity policy and other factors. Our
Company will also take into consideration our own business model
and specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on our
Board.

Our Board comprises of nine members, including three female
executive Directors out of a total of four executive Board members.
Our Directors also have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills and
experience, including property management, overall business
management, administrative management, finance and investment.
They obtained degrees in various majors including but without
limitation to business administration, public administration, economic
management, industrial enterprise operation management, language
and law. We have three independent non-executive Directors
who have different industry backgrounds, including auditing and
accounting, law and economy. Furthermore, our Board has a wide
range of age, ranging from 34 to 65. We have taken and will
continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of
our Company, including but without limitation at our Board and
senior management levels. Taking into account our business model
and specific needs as well as the presence of three female executive
Directors out of a total of nine Board members, we consider that the
composition of our Board satisfies our board diversity policy.
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With regards to gender diversity on the Board, our board diversity
policy further provides that our Board shall take opportunities to
increase the proportion of female members over time when selecting
and making recommendations on suitable candidates for Board
appointments. We will also ensure that there is gender diversity when
recruiting staff at mid to senior level so that we will have a pipeline
of female senior management and potential successors to our Board
going forward. It is our objective to maintain an appropriate balance
of gender diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation
and international and local recommended best practices.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity of
our Board members. The Nomination Committee will review our board
diversity policy and its implementation from time to time to ensure its
implementation and monitor its continued effectiveness.

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve in the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. As regards the CG Code provision requiring
the Directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant commitments
as well as the identity of the public companies or organisations and
the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have disclosed their
commitments in a timely manner.

Nomination and Appointment

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-election of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

Measurable Targets

The screening of Directors is based on a series of diversified
categories. The Company undertakes to implement the policy of
equal opportunity for all in all respects, without discrimination due to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and service term or other factors.

Policy Statement

The Company understands that a diversified Board is beneficial to the
improvement of the Company’s performance. The differences in ideas,
background, ways of thinking and working methods may create values
for our stakeholders, particularly for our customers, Shareholders,
employees and the communities managed by us.
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Supervision and Report

The Nomination Committee will report the composition of the Board
in terms of diversification in the corporate governance report of the
annual report and supervise the implementation of the policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Dr. Wong Kong Tin (chairman) and Dr. Chu Xiaoping,
independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Bai Xihong,
non-executive Director.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

1.

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
as determined by the Board from time to time;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. These include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
such arrangements are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held and the attendance of the
Remuneration Committee members is set out below:

BHERE, WHERE
Attended/Eligible to attend

=ILKRIEL

Dr. Wong Kong Tin
B#&tEE

Mr. Bai Xihong
N FE L

Dr. Chu Xiaoping

2/2

2/2

2/2
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The Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration packages
for directors and senior management of the Company for 2019
and the remuneration policy and structure for directors and senior
management for 2020. During the year, the Remuneration Committee
also considered and made recommendations to the Board on the
grant of shares to relevant persons by the Company pursuant to the
share award plan.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr.
Lui Shing Ming, Brian (chairman), Mr. Li Qiang and Dr. Wong Kong
Tin, most are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1. To review the relationship with the auditor by reference to
the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the auditor;

2. To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company's staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the auditor before submission to the
Board; and

3. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’'s
financial reporting system, internal control system, risk
management systems and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held and the attendance of the Audit Committee
members is set out below:

BHERE, WHERE
Attended/Eligible to attend

BB E

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian
FoRELE

Mr. Li Qiang

=ILKRIEL

Dr. Wong Kong Tin

2/2

2/2

2/2
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results and annual report for the year ended
31 December 2019, interim results and interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2020, financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, risk management and internal control systems (including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions), and the re-
appointment of the external auditor. The Board has not deviated from
any recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed final results of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the fiscal year as well as the audit report prepared
by the external auditor relating to accounting issues and major
findings in course of audit.
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HE2020F 128318 EFE - AREHEIT During the year ended 31 December 2020, our Company held one

—RABRRBEFRER—RARERFRAE - general meeting and one extraordinary general meeting, and the

BAREEHERERGHERHNTE attendance of the individual Directors at the general meeting is set
out in the table below:

EEpR EHERE AHERE

Name of Director Attended/Eligible to attend

FEEz+ 2/2

Ms. Wang Meng

BRIETT SR A 2/2

Mr. Yao Xusheng

WL+ 2/2

Ms. Xie Rao

At 2/2

Ms. Zhou Rui

Bkt 212

Mr. Bai Xihong

FREE 212

Mr. Li Qiang

BB EE 2/2

Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brian

FIREL 2/2

Dr. Wong Kong Tin

B 2/2

Dr. Chu Xiaoping

BB BIERERAR /2020 £ 89



EXERKRE

4

<

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EENRESREERBNVHM

HZE2020612A31BLEE  BEFERAR
ANEREREZERIENAFRIEER
BREBE] —f c EEZHIFBRNER
G IREMETO - B ZE20206F12A318 1
FE - ARANEREEE (E5hIN) X
NEEHBA =2 AR 1,000,0007T °

Bk EERAREE

SELPH  EFLEARERTHNAR
BIRRABELHE  LARERERORA R
ARFAMAE  TEFENEHEH AN
-

AEBERYEABRNAREESE - 5
ERERATAFREHAERRE

— BRI R B BRI
AENHHER

- ERARRANIIBEEABHNEE A

T

-  BRAREMRNETRE
- REAFRKENMERME
- HMRIFDBUHHEESERAREL

B EEEEFS > FETRLFMNE
BB ARKRTERERNERX -

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors and the senior
management of the Company’s biographies are set out under the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report. The details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statement. Remuneration paid to
the senior management (excluding Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2020 is within the range of nil to RMB1,000,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

INTERNAL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
for maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard the investments of Shareholders and assets of
the Company and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an
annual basis.

The Group has established a valid and effectual risk management
system, which is designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving the following objectives:

- To control risks in line with overall objectives and within
acceptable level;

- To achieve true and reliable communication of the Company’s
internal and external information;

- To ensure the compliance with laws and regulations;

- To improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the Company’s
operation;

- To ensure the Company's establishment of risk contingency
plans for every significant risk to enable it not to suffer great
losses due to catastrophic risk or human error.
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The Group’'s risk management and internal control team plays a
major role in monitoring the internal governance of the Company.
The major responsibilities of the internal control team are regulating
and reviewing the financial conditions and internal control of the
Company, and conducting comprehensive audits of all branches and
subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis. The Board, the Audit
Committee, the senior management and the internal audit department
are the four levels of structure and main features of risk management
and internal control systems.

The Board has reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and considered the internal control systems to
be effective and adequate. The Board is responsible for the Company'’s
risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve the business objectives of the
Group and to only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

During 2020, the Board supervised the management’s design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group on
an ongoing basis; such review covered all major control aspects of
the Group, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
The Board also confirmed that there are adequate resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems covered
each operation department, to ensure that the Group could effectively
manage the key factors that might affect the Group in achieving
its strategic objectives, such factors including events, accidents or
behaviors with a material impact on the Group's reputation, assets,
capital, profit or liquidity.

The Group has established the Customer Assistant Center, which
is responsible for the daily supervision and inspection of risk
management of each department, continuous supervision and routine
inspection on fire safety, public security administration, human and
technical defense and emergency management conducted by each
department and in each project in accordance with the Company’s risk
management system, and tracking the implementation of rectification.
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The Group has established the legal and audit monitoring department,
which is responsible for the legal, audit and internal violation handling
of each department of the Group. The audit monitoring department
is an independent department under the legal and audit monitoring
department, which is in charge of auditing the risk management,
internal control and financial position of each department, confirming
and assessing the comprehensiveness and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of each department,
and conducting continuous supervision and routine inspection in
accordance with the audit plan formulated by the Audit Committee
of the Group. Meanwhile, the Company arranges full-time audit
monitoring staffs to integrate the Company’s internal audit resources
in response to the needs of audit monitoring projects and set up a
joint audit project team under the leadership of audit monitoring
department to work with the legal, human resource financial and
other professional personnel to conduct regular and specialized audits,
investigate and deal with violations of regulations and disciplines.

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management system,
which specifies the roles and responsibilities of the management
and the Board in risk management work. On the basis of the
system, continuous monitoring has taken place in relation to the
risk management and internal control systems. Based on the risk
management conducted in previous years, the management of the
Company continues to identify and evaluate the risks of the Group.
The management has analyzed the changes to core risks by paying
attention to market and industry changes and communicating with
the company president and relevant senior management. In addition,
the control of core risks is also under continuous monitoring through
monthly self-inspection and evaluation by each risk management
department regarding respective core risks.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information. In practice, employees of
the Group who become aware of any events and/or matters which
he/she consider potentially inside information, will report to the
designated personnel of the Company who, if considered appropriate,
will pass such information to the Board for the purpose of considering
and deciding whether or not such information constitutes inside
information and disclosure of which shall be made as soon as
reasonably practicable.
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INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

The Group's internal audit department plays a major role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The internal
audit department determines the main units, business and items
and high-risk areas included in the scope of inspection based on
the risk-oriented principle. The main units included in the scope
of inspection consist of headquarters of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The scope of risk management and internal control
review covers the principal business and matters of the Company's
headquarters and its subsidiaries, and focuses on high-risk or
important business activities including funds management,
environmental management, quality control, asset management,
business expansion, tender, material procurement, other operations
and human resources management. The internal audit team reports to
the Board at least twice on an annual basis.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee has received a report of risk management
and internal control prepared by the internal audit team, and has
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
remain adequate and effective throughout the year ended 31
December 2020 with no material issues to be brought to the Board's
attention.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the auditor’'s approximate
remuneration for providing audit and non-audit services to the
Company is as follow:

SEAR¥TT)
Amount (RMB)

ZH AR

Audit services

LB R

Non-audit services
- ERER
—Interim result review
—H b *
—Others*

st

Total

1,500,000

900,000

183,000

2,583,000

* HMFREREEIERRERERE  H4E
KBRS B R E MRS -

* Others mainly consisted of ESG report consultant and other
services.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Ms. Leung Suet Wing (“Ms. Leung”,
the manager of the Listing Services Department of TMF Hong Kong
Limited) as the company secretary of the Company. Mr. Kwok Pak
Shing, the chief financial officer of the Company, serves as her main
internal contact person of the Company.

Ms. Leung has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Company’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparently and timely disclosure of information of the Company,
which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the
informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting provides opportunity for the Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the
Company and the respective chairman of the Board Committee will
attend the annual general meeting to answer the Shareholders’
questions. The external auditor of the Company will also attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and contents of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.
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In order to promote the transparency, the Group enables the investors
to understand its businesses and operations through its annual general
meeting, extraordinary general meeting, annual report, interim report
and website.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing an
on-going communication between the Company and the Shareholders
and maintains a website at www.shidaiwuye.com, where up-to-date
information on the it's business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
transparency and designates specialized personnel to maintain regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Company’s operations and developments.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put
forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each
general meeting.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS

The Shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may follow article
64 of the Articles of Association for requisitioning an extraordinary
general meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. Any
one or more member(s) of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or company secretary of our Company to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board to convene such general meeting shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company. More details of the procedures can
be available on the website of the Company.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could email their enquiries to the
representatives of investor relations of the Company at the email
address: sdllir@timesgroup.cn.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles of Association have been amended and restated, which
was adopted by a special resolution passed on 3 December 2019 and
effective on 19 December 2019.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

1.1

1.2

1.3

Overview

This report is the second Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the "ESG Report”) issued by Times Neighborhood
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 9928.HK) based on the principles
of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency for the
purpose of providing information, progress and case studies
on the Company’s economic, social and environmental
performances. This report covers the period from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020.

Basis of Preparation

This report has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the "ESG Guide"”) in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. The Company
has fully fulfilled the “comply or explain” provisions during the Year.

The content of the report is determined based on a systematic
procedure, including identifying and ranking major stakeholders
and ESG-related issues, defining the scope of the ESG
Report, collecting relevant materials and data, preparing and
summarizing the data, and examining the data in the report.

Scope and Reporting Boundary

The report endeavors to present a balanced representation of
the environmental, social and governance performance of Times
Neighborhood, and the policies, statements, information and
case studies of the report cover the operations of the Company
except for otherwise specified.

Unless otherwise stated, RMB is used in the report as its legal
currency.
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Terms and Short Names

For the convenience of expression and reading, “Times
Neighborhood”, “the Company”, “Company” and “we” used
herein shall refer to “Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited”.

Data Sources and Reliability Statement

The data and cases used herein mainly come from the
statistical reports and relevant documents of the Company.
The Company guarantees that the report does not contain any
false information and misleading statement, and undertakes
responsibilities for the contents of the report as to its
authenticity, accuracy and completeness.

Acknowledgement and Approval

The report is approved by the Board upon the confirmation of
the management of the Company on 10 March 2021.

The electronic version of the report can be downloaded from
the following website: http://www.shidaiwuye.com. For any
comments or suggestions on the environmental, social and
governance performance of the Company, please send email to
sdllir@timesgroup.cn.
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MESSAGE FROM ESG LEADING GROUP

2020 was a challenging year, as well as a year for Times
Neighborhood to strive forward.

We adhere to the concept of “impress customers with quality
and warm customers with services (REREFFES @ REER
F &))" and have always been committed to “let more people
enjoy a better life GEEZ AZEFEHEIE)". In the new era, we
will continue to implement the concept to bring better living
experience into more cities and families as a practice pioneer.
In 2020, we actively deployed a diversified business ecosystem
and entered the urban public service sector for the first time,
becoming a comprehensive urban service operator providing
property management services, value-added services for non-
property owners, community value-added services and other
professional services.

In 2020, we actively fulfilled our corporate social responsibilities,
integrated sustainable development into our business and
decision-making, and provided customers, employees,
shareholders, and society and other stakeholders with more
multi-dimensional value services in terms of quality service,
green service, employee care, corporate governance, and social
welfare.

“Low-carbon operation” - Promote environmental
protection during the operation to contribute to a green
life. Times Neighborhood continues to pay attention to the
risks and opportunities brought about by climate change,
and takes energy-saving and consumption-reducing measures
under the concept of green and low-carbon operations in
terms of system construction and operation management. In
the process of operation and service, we actively responded to
the government’s call to promote environmental protection,
such as introducing waste classification, intensified the
application of environmental protection equipment and facilities,
improved operational efficiency, put into practice low-carbon
business models, and pushed forward the establishment of an
environmentally friendly society.
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“People-oriented” - Join hands with employees for a better
future. Through the establishment of Times Neighborhood
College, Times Neighborhood continuously improves its internal
competition and promotion mechanism, and builds a training
and promotion mechanism covering the entire life cycle of career
development for employees to stimulate their potential and assist
with their career development. Meanwhile, we have promoted
employees’ remunerations and benefits and professional well-
being by implementing a benefit-sharing mechanism within the
Company to forge a high-quality service team.

“Refined Governance” - Provide quality property
management with diversified innovations. Times
Neighborhood continues to promote system construction
and gradually improves corporate governance. We internally
promote IT system reforms, intelligent property applications,
talent training programs and other internal governance
improvements to enhance the quality of property management
services and form the core competitiveness of the Company.
In 2020, we won awards such as the “12th in the Top 100
Property Management Companies in China” and the “Top 10
China Listed Property Management Service Companies in terms
of Overall Strength”, and ushered Times Neighborhood into
marketization and internationalization through large-scale and
specialized development.

“Grateful for favors received” — Be grateful and repay the
kindness to build a responsible society together. Times
Neighborhood fulfills corporate social responsibility by actively
investing in community services, medical and health and other
fields, spreading warmth in the community in various forms.

In the future, upholding the concept of sustainable development,
Times Neighborhood will continue to promote a green operation
model to make contributions to a low-carbon and energy-saving
society; continue to focus on employee development, improve
the career development mechanism for them, creating an
equal employment environment; continue to commit to quality
services, improve property service standards and requirements to
provide customers with professional services; continue to benefit
others and fulfill corporate social responsibility to contribute to
the society in diverse ways.
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3.1

3.2

RESPONSIBLE AND GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

As a responsible corporate citizen, Times Neighborhood
attaches great importance to its high-level governance,
and endeavors to enhance the value of the Company while
pursuing comprehensive and sustainable development. On
the basis of meeting corporate governance requirements for
listed companies, we consciously adhere to the corporate
philosophy of “care for your life (F/OM#E{R—4)" and the
business philosophy of “impress customers with quality and
warm customers with services (HEREFEE @ RIGETF R
&))", with the aim to grow into a globally excellent life service
platform to let more people enjoy a better life.

ESG Policies and Strategies

As one of the leading and fast-growing comprehensive property
management service providers in China, Times Neighborhood
is deeply rooted in the Greater Bay Area, and plans to expand
its presence in other cities in China to provide professional and
standardized services to property owners and residents and to
build a high-quality and comprehensive property management
brand. On the basis of meeting corporate governance
requirements for listed companies, we adhered to the
corporate culture of “integrity, efficiency, transformation and
innovation”, and always keep in mind the social responsibility
of an enterprise. By penetrating the concept of sustainable
development into our corporate governance and business in each
respect, we continued to improve our management system and
enhance service quality in cooperation with our stakeholders.

ESG Governance Structure

To effectively implement the ESG governance of Times
Neighborhood, we have established and defined a framework
for sustainable development governance consists of the Board,
ESG Leading Group, ESG Task Group, as well as the Company’s
various functional departments, subsidiaries and branches in
cities, to promote the orderly progress of ESG governance of the
Company.
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As the top decision-making organization of the Company,
the Board is responsible for providing guidance on the
Company's sustainable development, and undertakes
overall responsibility for the Company’s ESG issues. We set
up the Board in strict accordance with the board diversity
policy, which helps the Board to review and provide
independent opinions during the review of ESG reports. In
the future, the Board will strengthen ESG risk management
and assume responsibilities for internal control of ESG risks
to protect the development of the Company and the long-
term benefits of stakeholders.

As a decision-making organization, the ESG Leading Group
will coordinate and lead the overall ESG governance of the
Company, prepare internal ESG policies and regulations,
supervise the implementation of ESG work, review ESG
reports, and regularly report to the Board to ensure the
effectiveness of ESG work mechanism.

The ESG Task Group is responsible for supervising and
coordinating the Company’'s ESG issues, implementing
decisions from the ESG Leading Group, communicating
and coordinating ESG related affairs, organizing the
preparation of ESG reports and regularly reporting to the
ESG Leading Group on the implementation of relevant
work on an annual basis.

As executive organizations for specific works, the
Company's functional departments, subsidiaries and
branches in cities will implement the ESG plan formulated
by the ESG Task Group, effectively record and report ESG
related information, and fully put into practice the ESG
related management work.
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ESG Governance Structure of Times Neighborhood

ReAKE
Top decision-making organization
KABEESS
The Board of
Times Neighborhood

RERE
Decision-making organization
BRMEESGEE N
ESG Leading Group of
Times Neighborhood

EE AR
Supervision and
coordination organization
BRMEESGIE/ A
ESG Task Group of
Times Neighborhood

MiTE
Executive organization
RO M E R AEE0PT -
FARRBH AT
Functional departments,
subsidiaries and branches in
cities of Times Neighborhood

BEESGEEER
Responsible for overall ESG governance
EEMAESGRIR
Supervise and review ESG performance

FEEBESGER I

Coordinate and lead the ESG management work
EBEHUESGEREERE

Supervise and approve the implementation of disclosure of ESG affairs

EERL/NERE

Put into practice decisions of the ESG Leading Group
BB AESGHEBEER

Communicate and coordinate ESG related issues
BERAREESGIRE

Organize the preparation of ESG report

EHEESG T1EETEl

Execute ESG work plans

W EREIRESGIS &

Collect and report ESG information
HITESGE R IIE

Perform ESG management work
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3.3 MEEBELBEE

3.3 Communicating with stakeholders

Times Neighborhood is committed to maintaining close
communication with stakeholders (including employees,
customers/property owners, investors/shareholders, suppliers
and business partners, governments and regulators, media and
non-profit organizations/social organizations) through various
communication channels, such as reports, opinion surveys or
other platforms, to understand their concerns and issues and to
meet the expectations and demands of stakeholders, with a view
to achieving common development.

BRBESHR BB TRBERBNR
T BAALTHEMFE - BFIEA
Mh (BEET  FF /%X RE
&R HEBREBRME  BUF
HEEHE HRNARMES e
MRS REFEER - 7N AR
THBEMERMZEE - @ EMFIA
BAYIEERR - BRARER -

M#EEES BEAR ERHFR

Stakeholders Methods of communication Main demands

8T e RAINEFE R o TEEBEEEES
Employees e Intranet e Improving the vocational training
o BI®H mechanism
e Staff meeting o BBFNMFIMEF
e BEBIETEME e Providing competitive remuneration

e Employee’s email and benefits

o BT REBEREERL S

e Employee interview Ensuring occupational health and
o BTEE - BTHI safety

e Employee activities and trainings FERRNPEXL

e WMLERHAZE

Creating equal and inclusive corporate

e Online opinion survey culture
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Stakeholders

BEARN

Methods of communication

FEHRKR
Main demands

BP /%%

Customers/property owners

KREEBRER

Investors/shareholders

o WIFEMRIEF L

e Property service centre

o EFRIEEE

e Customer service hotline

LR =W

e Official website

s EFMEEHRE

e Customer satisfaction survey

o BHMIERE

e Official Weibo and WeChat Official
Account

o EFE#

e Customer interview

o BB FLAPP

e “Neighborhood Services” APP

o ERKE

e Routine inspection

. BRESE

e Shareholders meeting
o BITEHRE

e Financial report

o B

e Official website

o HITEMH

e Analyst briefing

o NREWE

e Public report

o WHELRTHERE

e Maintaining a safe and livable
environment

o RHELIRFER

e Providing caring service experience

s REEPEALRE

e Protecting customers’ privacy

o MERARBELH

e Ensuring compliant and responsible
marketing

o WFHRTREMDHR

e Maintaining stable returns on
investment

o RANFIMEMEE

e Enhancing the commercial value of the
Company

o ERMPEEREHR

e Ensuring transparency of corporate
information

o RERFIKEEZ

e Protecting investment rights of
shareholders
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FmEEE S BEAR FEFRR
Stakeholders Methods of communication Main demands
HIER REBBH o EEBBIM o JRREEBEBEIM
Suppliers and business e Direct communication and visit e Strengthening daily communication
partners o WEERWE o KEBITERKNE
e Online opinion survey e Performing contractual agreements
o fHEEE: according to law
e Suppliers’ meeting o EBITHESELE
o FEEZKLE e Conducting business with honesty and
e Annual review and assessment integrity
o FEEEE o ITHEBEMHIEE
e Contractors’ meeting e Creating a responsible supply chain

o HERIFAY

e Tendering and bidding activities

IH T B BE A o EHIES e MEEEBEAMREX
Governments and regulators e Regular visits e Meeting regulatory and compliance
o HURER requirements
e Communicating policies o IREEOE TR
o B2 INgE e Paying taxes on time and in full
e Hosting or attending meetings o BERZRHERA
o NFES e Responding to national policies
e Public events o ZRFMAKEER

e Supporting local economic
development
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Stakeholders

BEARN

Methods of communication

FEHRKR
Main demands

e
Media

Nl e Es
Non-profit organizations/
social organizations

o BEEHHE

e Press conference

. RERD
e Media interview
. BBFED

e Media visits

o REAHBEIE
e Engaging in social welfare activities
o EEFE

e Interviews and surveys

o RIANKFBEHE

e Improving corporate transparency

o EfTLREHEEM

e Fulfilling social responsibility of the
Company

o BARREESRE

e Investing in social welfare and charity
activities

o BEGERIES

e Upholding green and low-carbon
operations

e REHEZEZEFT

e Ensuring the safety and order of the
community

o fREEHERILER

e Promoting cultural development in the
community

34 EEMEEEE

B AR B BB Y 2019FESGE E =
BRI B EEFTE  AA2020F MET
HERELEBAGRUABELEIEHN
BEEE URANSEALT EYHM@E
B BEMESEEERN - 2020
FESGRBE BTN - 1E
ERFHII KR EEZEMEM  (EAK

WEANRBLER -

3.4 Management of Material Issues

Times Neighborhood has prepared the list of issues related to
sustainable development through reviewing and evaluating ESG
material issues in 2019, as well as taking into considerations
of its businesses and daily operations in 2020, and evaluated
the significance of ESG material issues in 2020 through
questionnaires, face-to-face communication and field visits. We
have formed a materiality matrix according to the prioritized

ESG issues, which serves as the basis for the preparation of this

report.
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34 1MEEEEMSNBRE

BEEEY

Establishing issue library

Flz=1ER9 75 S EL
Involvement of
stakeholders

AR

Assessment of issues

ERER
Approval and
confirmation

3.4.1 Materiality analysis process of issues

BECGRE w8 REABRERS)RERE - 2F2KBWEEH(GRI, Global
Reporting Initiative) T2RZEA K EZRE - EROE F—FERRBEESGEIRH
B - WASKARBE2020F XBERBNENHAEMAFK - ARERBE
20204FESGETRMERE - HET22784 o

Based on the "ESG Guide”, with reference to the Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI), we reviewed the issues related to the ESG management of Times
Neighborhood in the last year and combined the business development of Times
Neighborhood in 2020 and demands from stakeholders, and established a
library of ESG management issues of Times Neighborhood in 2020 with a total
of 22 issues.

RBMEHEHN  BEFSEEFRAFFEE - NAATAFSHEEIBEE
BE, /BT BF /%Fx #MF /HEE KREE/BEHINE - HEHE
AEE DR REEANS BITRARLEE - HEAEEY  £7Hhe &
¥HiIE - BF (BUIERITESRIN) - BUIERTESUREMEHKLE - B
BREEIE,7241 ©

We obtained original information from stakeholders by conducting surveys.
Stakeholders involved in the surveys consist of ten categories, including
management/employees, customers/property owners/tenants/consumers,
investors/shareholders/analysts, suppliers/contractors/subcontractors/service
contractors, governments and public agencies, media partners, industry
associations/professional institutions, Directors (except independent non-
executive Directors), independent non-executive Directors, and others. A total of
1,724 valid questionnaires were collected.

RIBRNSHBE LD BEER  KTHARNERME M HN B NERE] R
REEETZEERNNG  »TEHERUESZERRERIIEK  EF  SEEE
Has(E  PEEEHAE12ME -

Based on each stakeholder’s concerns, we have evaluated the materiality
of issues from two dimensions, namely “Importance to the Company” and
“Importance to stakeholders”. As a result, we have obtained a matrix and a
list of material issues, including 8 issues of high materiality and 12 issues of
moderate materiality.

BHEBET2ETRERBIENEZEURETHEREREE
RBBER - AREPETEMRE -

TE]

 BERER

The participation and implementation process of stakeholders and the results
of assessment of materiality issues are submitted to the management who will
make key disclosures in the report after approval and confirmation.
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3.42EEMEME 3.4.2 Materiality Matrix
BBAOMAEBETNRARER 5 By analyzing the survey results of stakeholders, the ESG
R A8 E22020FESGE Z M H B E materiality matrix of Times Neighborhood in 2020 is as follows:
T

FRFRABE2020FESGEEE E 4B &
Times Neighborhood ESG Materiality Matrix in 2020

A FEEERE SEEEHE
Issues of medium importance Issues of high importance

o %o

@A AMEERN

Importance to stakeholders

REE2HE
Issues of low importance
|
HATNEE
Importance to the Company
® *tEEA IRIEN @ o HERE ® DU E:S
Corporate Environmental Community People-oriented

governance benefits development
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3AEERBEIREMENERRY 3.4.3 List of material issues and corresponding boundaries
and impacts

RAREBRA - FRRBBEHLFR T22 During the Reporting Period, Times Neighborhood has identified
THESGRERE - WIRHR bt & & MV (h 22 ESG issues. Based on the above results of materiality
HRETR BEEUSSRRLEZZAK assessment, the top 5 materiality issues are the occupational
RRBELZTRER TLRLRE safety and health, well-being, health and safety of customers,
BZE - BEMERSBFERE quality property services/customers satisfaction, prevention of
DitEREE T RG4S T MRES R child labour and forced labour, and anti-corruption and bribery.
B% 0 2020F * M BB THEESR In 2020, we continued to communicate with stakeholders while
BHERE  FERMNZEETEBX focusing on the performance of relevant issues to constantly
o TE T EREERENERK improve our governance on corresponding issues.

ESGEEHRBIRNERTERKE

List of material ESG issues and corresponding impacts and scope

EF/ REE/  HEER BfFE DEES
BT E BE ERBH EERE e Heas
Suppliers Non-profit
Customers/ and organizations/
property Investors/  business  Governments social

Employees  owners  shareholders partners and regulators Media organizations

jq BRRERER y ¥ ¥ | ¥ y

Occupational safety and health

RPRILRBRZZ
9 Well-being, health and \ \ | | y
safety of customers

BENERS/
, BFRE y ¥ y y y y y

Quality property services/
customer satisfaction

BIHERETRHST
18 Prevention of child labour \ \ \ \ \ \
and forced labour
RB5 R
i Anti-corruption and bribery \ | | | | |
N R
p [ y y y y
Corporate governance
BIEMRRER
15 Compensation and benefits of \ \ \ | y
employees

Labour measures/human rights
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EF/ REE/  HEBR BfFE NEES
BT £ BE ERBH EEHE o8 Heas
Suppliers Non-profit
Customers/ and organizations/
property Investors/  business  Governments social
Employees  owners  shareholders partners and regulators Media organizations
AREMEEEER
10 Responsible supply \ \ |
chain management
iBER /28
o | |RRE y J Y Y J J

Social construction/participation
NEREETRRY

= Charity and volunteer services \ | \ | | \ \
g | y J J y
Green operations/property
STEAERE
19 Promotion and recruitment of \ \ | \
E employees
B2 ATHHIRER
2 1lIngllRR
#E 16 Employee training and development \ | | \
Issues of .
moderate 4 Bk R \ \ \ \ |
materialty Water conservation
1=
g ECEMRR Y J y y y y y
Protecting customer privacy
&1
3 [ J Y Y y y | {
Waste management
) FRE AN A J J J J J J
Energy efficiency
BI3TRs / BERE
12 Innovative services/ \ \ \ \ \
intelligent services
#
p PREE J J Y y y y y
Responding to national policies
&R BERIE R
BZ 6 Greenhouse gas and y \ \ | y
Ge carbon emissions
Issues e
oflow ¢ BHRIREL i Y Y y y J |
materialty Combating climate change
TrEER EE e HERERE MARK
Corporate governance Environmental benefits Community development People-oriented
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3.5 BRER 3.5 Promoting Anti-corruption and Good Governance

BRAERITHICRRNEEL
ERET(hEARAMERRER)
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12 ) OB AR B R B RO B TR
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FRABERIBEEETIEAHEHR B
BEREBEZTRBAMEZHE S
J-BEmMTAMNE2EE THERZ
BEEM 20205 HMERMEF
SEBEEABEERAET XRENA
HIIEERIEN EERAEEEE
EMEEENBERTRESE Y
NEP SRR R TE R 8 T 288
EEAENRRZEARBSREH =
FoREEREREY A HEWE
T BMARZSABERRHSE &
BRHEABESOAN - AELS
BRARZBRNEERZE S - Ik
Sh - RPMBFRRBAXREIBRRE - B
W BRERZEEE - 2020F - BR
BN LFREREEREREZINN7H -
28 T #HHE500A - EESA A
EEREIRHRESHEINEBA
1,000/\BF ©

Times Neighborhood adheres to the corporate culture of
transparency and integrity, and strictly abides by relevant laws
and regulations including the Company Law of the PRC (FF%E
ARFEMBEIAFE), the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
PRC (FEARAMBERTEEHFEE) and the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the PRC (F#E ARFEFEIREEX), and
formulates internal management systems including Management
Policy of Times Neighborhood Group on Anti-Commercial
Bribery (R EEBREEHEREEHE), the Management
Policy of Times Neighborhood Group on Anti-Corruption (Bt
HEBEBRERERGE), the Management Measures of Times
Neighborhood Group on Anti-Money Laundering (B #5 B £E
RFESEEEHEE) and the Integrity and Self-discipline Regulations
for the Management of Times Neighborhood Group (B&{{#E
BEBEEBAEBRZAEEEEMRT). We promote workflows
of integrity and transparency, develop employees’ awareness
of integrity, and continue to improve rules and regulations on
integrity. We strengthen internal monitoring, accountability
and reporting mechanisms of the Company, standardize work
standards of employees and continuously enhance education
and training on integrity, with a view to creating a corporate
governance culture that promotes integrity.

3.5.1 Fostering the sense of integrity and self-discipline

Times Neighborhood attaches great importance to fostering
employees’ awareness of compliance, and actively conducts
integrity training and education for different occupational
levels, thus enhancing all employees’ integrity and self-discipline
from top to bottom. In 2020, we organized large-scale internal
work style training for all middle and high-level management
personnel, publicized and implemented the professional ethics
and qualities that the Company advocates for the management,
and warned on internal fraud cases, which strengthened the
management’s integrity awareness and self-discipline, loyalty,
cleanness, and responsibility. Meanwhile, we conducted many
orientation trainings on integrity for new employees with more
than 50 participants in each training, so as to introduce the
Company'’s integrity policy and concept to new employees.
In addition, we conducted 4 special trainings to promote
integrity within the Company. In 2020, Times Neighborhood has
conducted a total of 7 training sessions on integrity and anti-
corruption within the Company with more than 500 employees
and 5 Directors participated and provided them with over 1,000
training hours for anti-corruption.
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Example: Mr. Bai‘s Lecture on Work Style — Professional Ethics
Training for Internal Management Personnel

On 2 April 2020, Times Neighborhood carried out internal work style
training for middle and high-level management personnel of the
Company, which was lectured by Mr. Bai Xihong, the chairman of the
Board of the Group, and had over 200 online and offline participants.

During the training, we studied and discussed in depth the core
corporate culture of integrity, efficiency, reform and innovation,
as well as the professional ethics and work style that management
should have, and warned about the Company's cases of corruption
and fraud. This training not only allowed the trainees to learn about
and master the professional ethics and quality the employees of Times
Neighborhood should abide by, but helped employees to understand
the consequences of violating laws and indiscipline, and to realize the
importance of upholding professional ethics.

SEESREIRAGRLEEANBBEREZTERE
Mr. Bai Xihong, chairman of the Board of the Group,
conducted an internal work style training
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352 BERPERMERG 3.5.2 Establishing an internal supervision and accountability
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mechanism

Times Neighborhood has continuously improved the internal
supervision and accountability mechanism to strengthen
restrictions on employee’s code of conduct and improve the
anti-corruption management mechanism of the Company. From
individuals to corporate governance, Times Neighborhood strictly
complied with relevant state and company regulations, and
fulfilled the anti-corruption responsibility of the Company via
auditing and supervision.

Times Neighborhood has formulated the code of conduct for
employees, including the Employee Integrity Code of Times
Neighborhood Group (B #BE%E & T R <A, the Measures
of Times Neighborhood Group on Dealing with Cash and Gifts
(FRMEEEES - B REEIVE), and the Report Policy of
Times Neighborhood Group on Conflicts of Interest (FFf{#EE
EEFIZERBARSGE) and has added the Employee Red Line
Policy of Times Neighborhood (BX#8E 8 T4I4R%IE) and the
Code for the Management of Times Neighborhood (FFf{#E £ &
I AESTEY) in 2020.

Among them, the Employee Red Line Policy of Times
Neighborhood sets out ten uncrossable red lines that all
employees should abide by, and strictly defines the red
lines against employees’ violations and the corresponding
accountability mechanism. On the basis of the employee red line
policy, the Code for the Management of Times Neighborhood
requires the management to behave properly, emphasize
efficiency, conduct strict control, stick to professional ethics
and integrity, take the interests of the whole into account,
encourage healthy trends and resist corruption.
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Times Neighborhood continues to strengthen corporate internal
governance and improve the Company’s anti-corruption
supervision and management system while making standardized
requirements for employees. On the basis of the anti-corruption
supervision and management system, including the Management
Policy of Times Neighborhood Group on Anti-Commercial
Bribery (M EHEEREHXMEREETIE), the Management
Policy of Times Neighborhood Group on Anti-Corruption (FF
RN BEERFEEEESIE), the Management Measures of
Times Neighborhood Group on Anti-Money Laundering (B #6
BEERKBEEPE), and the Management Policy of Times
Neighborhood Group on Audit and Supervision (BF{#0 2 £
EITEEREIEHIE), we added The Employment and Incentive
Plans for Part-time Supervisors of Affiliated Companies of Times
Neighborhood (RRHETEBRARIRBERERERAEF
Z2), which aims to enhance the Company’s internal controls
by establishing a part-time supervisor mechanism for internal
employees. This policy further strengthens the Company’s
internal audit and supervision capabilities, comprehensively
improves the quality and efficiency of internal audit and
supervision, and strengthens the Company’s third defense line
for internal control, providing a firm guarantee for the stable
and compliance development of the Company.
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353 URERRFERHS 3.5.3 Establishing anti-corruption complaint and reporting
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mechanism

Times Neighborhood implements internal self-inspection and
self-correction monthly, and conducts audits and inspections
regularly. We conducted self-audit by interviewing employees
on 8-10 projects randomly selected each month and reviewing
documents and materials of our management project.
Meanwhile, we carry out on-site supervisions and inspections on
a regular basis to review the daily operations and various internal
documents of various functional departments, branches in cities
and subsidiaries, so as to identify the abnormal conditions and
potential risks in time.

In addition, Times Neighborhood has established various anti-
corruption complaint and reporting channels, and set special
WeChat account, hotlines and emails for reporting purpose.
At the same time, a dedicated staff is assigned to handle the
reported cases. And specialists from the Legal and Audit and
Supervision Center will review and investigate the cases reported
by employees and the clues to violations of regulations and
disciplines identified in the process of audit and inspections
and provide suggestions, so as to further reduce the risk of
corporate corruption. We will also strictly manage the reporter’s
information and the report documents to protect the privacy and
safety of the informant.

Times Neighborhood has strictly abided by anti-corruption, anti-
bribery and other related laws and regulations. If there are any
violations of laws and disciplines, we will resolutely resist them
with zero tolerance, and report to judicial organs for handling to
warn others against doing so.

In 2020, Times Neighborhood has complied with relevant laws
and regulations on preventing bribery, extortion and money
laundering which have a significant impact on the Company,
and no lawsuits involving corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or
money laundering have occurred.
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4 PROVIDING QUALITY SERVICES

As a modern service creator, adhering to the mission of “let
more people enjoy a better life”, Times Neighborhood will
continue to sincerely provide considerate and quality services,
in four aspects, namely scope, considerateness, speed and
concentration; improve the performance of facilities and
equipment in the community by using intelligent digital methods
such as video Al and cloud services to create an intelligent
and convenient life for customers. Times Neighborhood
always regards service as the foundation of the Company, and
continuously provides better services for owners and customers,
creates greater returns for shareholders, and insists on being a
creator of quality services.

4.1 Quality Services for Happy Life

4.1.1 Our quality concept for high quality services

Times Neighborhood always adheres to the business philosophy
of "impressing customers with quality and warming customers
with services” to provide quality basic services for property
owners, as well as developing various featured services oriented
by customer satisfaction and based on customer needs. While
controlling the quality of services, we also attach importance to
the supervision of project operations to ensure that each of our
projects will have the service system and service standards in
place.

Example: Establishment of Monthly Service Inspection
Mechanism for the President Team to Effectively Guarantee
Projects’ Quality

Times Neighborhood focused on carrying out weekly president
inspections in 2020. The chairman and three presidents lead inspection
teams respectively to conduct on-site inspections over projects each
week. The inspection scope covers all residential projects under
management. The inspection content includes cleaning and sanitation,
decoration management and application of cleaning tools and
facilities, and puts forward deductions and rectification requirements
for substandard projects, and each of such projects shall complete
rectifications supervised by the company in the city where the project
is located, and the certification documents supporting the rectification
results shall be submitted within one week. In addition, each project
is required to prepare an inspection report monthly to ensure that the
project’s quality is effectively guaranteed.
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Times Neighborhood strictly controls service quality and
continues to improve the property management system to define
various service standards. In 2020, we refined the property
management standard system according to the existing ten
different business operations and the needs of property owners,
to ensure the management system fits to all business projects
(including external and acquisition projects) of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

Times Neighborhood has issued refined management standard
system for different types of operation, and formulated work
instruction manuals for each business type, which clearly
stipulates the service standards, inspection standards, risk
management standards, security and environmental service
standards, to ensure that each type has its own authority and
guarantees the quality of service.

In addition to continuously optimizing and improving the
property management standards and systems for every type of
operation, we have also strengthened the management and
control of different types of projects in the operation process
through Full Lifecycle Management System for Project Operation
of Times Neighborhood (FFR#EHER B £ MEBEREEGE),
and formed a closed management cycle from project acquisition,
entry, operation, renewal to exit, so as to improve project
management granularity.

118 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



413B0RE  =FTER

BTRARIEE=RE  TEFE
BENHELERR  KRBERu
BEREHR-UAENCERRS
REBEFPITEEESEMNEERE

e

EERANENRESE -

=4 AIFRRZSEROERRE

RRME/E-—SRAXEIEER
B EdEFREEZ AR
% RAXEIEEFRRE -

BERY BAMEAEER
HEBMIEERS  £XEHE
HIEERRTSZ - METEAR
SRAVERIK  EFEY
NE AR RIEREITTE(LE
# - WEEF A D REHRATH
B TRESEMIERFT - [
B - BAMISER AEAERES
BEFREMEE XS ERR
% o HE2020F K - BAAS
BELARSNEFRETZE
RIS - UBRIBERD R AAE
Bl - R API 5 68 B 3 AR 4
THEERT - WRETERE
EHES o

BER  SRAERASLRE
SEAEMFEFRES  EEAp
BESERRNEEARAES
PRI B EERR - REERET
A& —EFT MR - IEARRH
& - BRTRRAEE T Z @k
BHRABELDRERRS
IS - 24284t - BREEE -
ERA - RBFERA E 35 A4
c

4.1.3 Heart-warming service for happy experience

In order to enhance the owners’ happiness and create
a comfortable and high-quality living experience, Times
Neighborhood provides its residents with one-stop customized
convenience services, as well as other rich and diverse resident
services, forging a harmonious neighborhood atmosphere.

Example: Multiple Innovative Heart-warming and Convenient
Services

In order to further enhance the living experience of the owners,
Times Neighborhood provides innovative services in the community to
enhance the happiness of the owners.

o Wedding services: Times Neighborhood provides free wedding
services for the owners. After the owners make an appointment
for the wedding service, the property management staff will
decorate the gates and buildings of the community in advance
using colorful balloons and Double Happiness, and roll out
red carpets, place Roman columns and wedding arches at the
entrance of the building. We will also provide party poppers
and guidance services for the owners when newlyweds enter
the building. As of the end of 2020, Times Neighborhood has
provided such services to many owners. Taking the Changsha
branch of Times Neighborhood as an example, we have provided
68 newlyweds with wedding services and received praise from
the owners.

o Fun Clubs: Adhering to the philosophy of injecting a better life
into the community, Times Neighborhood invites like-minded
owners in the community to form the Times Fun Club, creating
a fun and ideal community for the owners. At present, many
communities of Times Neighborhood have totally set up 35
societies including Times choir, musical instrument club, Times
dance group, basketball club, and air volleyball clubs in their
Times Fun Clubs.
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Times Neighborhood always pursues high-quality and innovative
services that meet the needs of our customers by variety of
informational and digital means to build a smart community,
allowing owners to have a convenient and easy living experience.

4.2.1 Intelligent life for happiness

Times Neighborhood is committed to providing customers with
intelligent life services and building intelligent communities.
Apart from community property services, we also provide
intelligent supporting services in communities, such as intelligent
garage, intelligent access control and community integration
platform. In 2020, Times Neighborhood continued to promote
the application of intelligent technology in the community,
sorting out and upgrading the original intelligent system
standards. Meanwhile, we have added and optimized more than
20 intelligent business scenarios, such as intelligent movement
trajectory, remote meter reading and unmanned barriers, and
other detailed services to provide owners with convenient lives
and build intelligent communities all around.
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Example: Intelligent Property Management

In 2020, Times Neighborhood, through all-round introduction of
intelligent technology into all our communities, realized remote
monitoring and deployment of all projects via the integrated middle-
ground property management and control center in the headquarters.
The integrated management and control center is a three-dimensional
visualization platform established through the integration of multiple
technologies. The platform can be divided into three management
and control levels: headquarters, cities, and communities. It has six
functions and implements comprehensive supervision and control over
its properties.
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Smart Party Building: Manage the information of communists in the
community in a unified way through the platform, and learn about the
distribution of communists in the community in a timely manner.

Housing and population management: Conduct statistical control
over rental houses in the community, monitor the total number of
rented houses and the number of tenants in real time, visualize the
connections among the community spatial model, rental data and
business data.
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People passage system: Monitor the passes of people in and out of
the community in real time, and calculate the proportion of different
types of personnel (owners, property management personnel and
visitors), so as to monitor and manage personnel entry and exit data in
real time.

Vehicle passage system: Monitor the passes of vehicles in and out
of the community in real time, calculate the proportion of different
types of vehicles, monitor abnormal passes of vehicles in real time, and
allows passage of vehicle via remote control.

Video Al: Combine security cameras with Geographic Information
System (GIS)/Building Information Modeling (BIM) technology to record
people’s walking paths in order to track emergencies and fully secure
community safety.

Monitoring equipment: Count and analyze the number of inspections
conducted over elevators and the equipment in fire pump house and
the completion rates, discover and deal with equipment safety issues in
time, and carry out fine management to safeguard the community.
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Times Neighborhood has been pursuing the integration of
intelligent technology applications with our services. In 2020,
we continued to improve the intelligent application platform,
improved our efficiency and provided customers with diversified
community life services.
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In 2020, we upgraded our Neighborhood Services APP, rendered
basic services of property management online, and created a
one-stop platform for operating community private domains and
redirecting traffic to community value-added services.
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Example: Neighborhood Services APP

Times Neighborhood has continued to optimize the functions of
Neighborhood Services APP to provide more convenient services for
property owners. The updated APP provides property owners with
services such as online view and payment of property management
bills, unlocking the door via Bluetooth or QR code, online repair
applications, contacting the butler and submitting complaints.
Meanwhile, the APP also has different value-added services, including
customized tourism and community shopping, which provides property
owners with better resident experience.
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Meanwhile, we further optimize Neighborhood Home APP
to match the business and services on the application for
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employees and the application for clients, promote intelligent
interconnection of neighborhood services and owners, and
provide services for owners in a more efficient and convenient
manner.

Example: Neighborhood Home APP

In order to improve the work efficiency of employees, in 2020, we
comprehensively upgraded Neighborhood Home APP. We improved
inspection task records and statistics to strengthen supervision
and management of community quality; established a resident file
system with privacy protection functions so that the staff can provide
customized services to the residents in time; set up smart access
control, decoration application and other service functions to simplify
the work process for employees.
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Times Neighborhood pays attention to the happiness of
customers, actively communicates with customers, listens to
their requests and identify the needs of customers in a timely
manner. As for the complaint handling mechanism, we continue
to record and classify customer requests via 400 National Service
Hotline. At the same time, we continue to adopt accountability
system to solve complaints at first inquiry to clarify the person
responsible for complaint responses and the time limit for
complaint handling. After the complaint is handled, we will
conduct a second visit to the customer via 400 Service Hotline
to confirm the results, and upgrade the complaint to a higher
level of significance based on the feedback, ensuring that all
customer requests will be answered and handled in a reasonable
and timely manner.

In 2020, Times Neighborhood received a total of 5,217
service-related complaints under the property category, 1,045
engineering-related complaints, and 1,024 security-related
complaints. 100% of the above complaints were handled
properly, and over 93.4% of complaints were handled in a
timely manner.

In addition to following up on customer requirements in a
timely and effective manner, we also explored innovative

BEHEeE IFPBRETPLENR (BB ways and channels proactively, such as owners’ seminars, to
¥xmdEanEs  RBRSEEE - actively identify customer needs, listen to the voices of owners
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and communities, give thanks to owners, and actively deliver
customer care.

Example: Care for the Elderly Living Alone

Given the increasing number of the elderly living alone in communities,
community service centers of Times Neighborhood have paid more
attention to the elderly living alone. We has set up an account for the
elderly living alone in the area under our control to record in detail
their current living and physical conditions, visit them every month

and

measure blood pressure and temperature for them, delivering our

cordial care for them with practical action.
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4.3.2 Careful maintenance for safer life

In order to ensure the confidentiality of customer information
and protect the interests of customers, Times Neighborhood has
formulated management systems such as the Regulations on
the Management of Property Owner Information (2F{Z8%E
IBFRIE) in strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations
including the Administrative Measures for the Graded Protection
of Information Security ((EBLZ2ERREEEIE) and the
Cybersecurity Law of the PRC (FIEAREMBPK L),
which stipulates that the electronic document of customer
information shall be encrypted and protected with restrictions
on the access and modification of such information and that
customer information shall managed by dedicated staff.

To prevent leakage of customer information, the Company
requires employees to follow the Emergency Plan on Information
Security (EEBZ2EZ&FBER), and sign a confidentiality
agreement on information security. Where there is any leakage
of customer information, the back-office system will initiate
blocking functions, blocking and remedial measures will be taken
timely to prevent the transmission of encrypted documents. In
order to improve the preventive emergency measures, we have
also set up an emergency response mechanism for customer
privacy disclosures.
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Set up an emergency group

HREMFARES

Confirm incident details

L REEERPT
Report to the
regulatory authority

Is it a major data
security incident?

REMEOL -
RIREE
Draft interpretations and
handling advice

AR HHR RS
Submit report to General
Manager Office

Communicate the Company’s
decision-making recommendations
to relevant departments
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Flow Chat of Emergency Response for Customer Privacy Disclosures
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At the same time, we adopted the following measures to
strengthen data security management:

o Data leakage prevention software must be installed when
external devices are connected to the internal network

o Two-factor login verification is required to log in from the
external network to the internal office system

o The firewall security protection system must be improved
continuously to block abnormal data flows

Meanwhile, in order to enhance employees’ awareness of data
security protection, Times Neighborhood formulated the IT
Manual (ITEL##:%) to help new employees fully learn about
the Company’s IT system, service procedures, and rules and
regulations, and to improve their work efficiency. In addition,
we offer Azure security training for all existing employees. The
training content covers identity verification, application and
data security, network security, threat protection, and security
management and other modules so as to cultivate employees’
awareness of protecting the internal data security of Times
Neighborhood.

In 2020, Times Neighborhood has protected customer
information in strict compliance with related regulations. We
received no complaints on infringement of customer privacy
or loss of customer data, nor complaints from regulatory
authorities, and there were no proven complaints on customer
privacy from individuals or external institutions.
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STAFF CARE

Every outstanding employee is a key engine to the Company’s
growth. Times Neighborhood cares about every employee. We
are dedicated to maximizing personal value and potential of
employees through equal employment, professional training,
careful attention and people-oriented protection. In line with
the people-oriented and employee-oriented (JAABK - ET A
1) employment concept, we strive to build a harmonious labour
relation to enhance staff morale and contribute to long-term
and healthy development of the Company.

Equal employment and rights protection

In the recruitment process, Times Neighborhood strictly complies
with the Labour Law of the PRC (F#EARKEMELEE) and
the Law of the PRC on the Protection of Rights and Interests of
Women and Children ({FZ ZEZ#z=R#E)%). On this basis, we
formulated a detailed internal management system, such as the
Personnel Management Manual of Guangzhou Times Property
Management Co., Ltd. (BN TRRYEEEFRARNATERETF
fit) and the Talent Training Manual (A 555 Fff1), to improve
the Company's internal human resource management and
protect the legitimate rights and interests of employees.

We strictly implement the concept of equal employment to avoid
staff from experiencing unfair treatment relating to gender, age,
race, belief, language and location of residence, so as to protect
employees’ rights. Besides, we strictly implement the approval
process for employee employment to avoid illegal labour
practices such as forced labour and child labour. During the
Reporting Period, the Company did not record any forced labour
and child labour.
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As of the end of 2020, Times Neighborhood has a total of 8,129
staff members, including approximately 40% of female staff,
and 2,104 staff members aged 29 years old and below, 3,655
staff members aged 30-49 years old and 2,370 staff members
aged 50 years old and above.
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5.2 Professional training for employee development
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Times Neighborhood has established the “Times Neighborhood
College” to cultivate excellent property service personnel and
provide every new employee with systematic and professional
trainings. We also developed the talent training manual to
provide organizational basis and policy guidance for employees
throughout their careers and long-term development. In
addition, the Company established a multi-channel and multi-
direction promotion system, which provides an effective
reference for employees’ growth and promotion to motivate
employees to strive for excellence.

Example: Online Learning Platform “Times Institute”

Times Institute is the online learning platform of Times Neighborhood
College, with rich online functions and resources to help employees
master professional and vocational skills in an efficient and convenient
manner. After the induction of each newcomer, Times Institute will
automatically trigger the online training mechanism to provide the
employee with targeted trainings to learn job skills, learn about
corporate culture, and assist the employee to quickly adapt to job
responsibilities and requirements. As of the end of the Reporting
Period, Times Institute has helped 2,954 new employees quickly

BTIREREARFRHE - integrate into Times neighborhood.

BB BIERERAR /2020 £ 129



4

- BE  HERERBS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

5.2.1 EiIEG > WEHR 5.2.1 Strategy training for common development

RRBEFXSZEEITEEE - TF
A E THEEXENFMIIEFT R ED
NREFE - B THEENEIES
RERTREBEEOEIER - 5
FEKRENBETL - EEAR - HK
TERABMEBMABRE2HET R
- BAFURBA D 5 S RE B RS
B RABTIRBNEBRE
MIERE  UnEERBERNER

Ko

RO BRMBEIMEE | BE D
RE &

RARHZE TS | R RARE 2R
ITEMRE NERGTE - %t 88
HRRMETRABHNETIRET
HEIZIIFEIERE - DHA [’
st &l (B E) ~ [ Bt &) O’
REZE  REEZER) [EMst
g (ETE)  [EMatdl] (5E
B [Mst8 | AEERE TRH
RABGEXEZREREEENTA
R - RERBENRRERRMA
BREEAAT -

RP  HEFIEIETE

FEABIERRRMEERR
9855TEI M2 11 M EXEAEREM
BRUEATIBEE -  BENER
i - ZAE - sTHMERT A INREE
ERAIREEEAT - BRAZES
BT AT 1 A R s = AR B A B AR
ke - BBARRZEED - BB
EEERRBMARA - AR - EH
ERTABENREBES - BR
MEBGSeFERENEATEE
fER  BRTHREESTHE -
VA Bl 75 26 1 1R 3R i JE s (R0 22
AREMEE o

Fully taking into account the different characteristics of
employees at different stages and positions in terms of learning
ability and work needs, Times Neighborhood has formulated
targeted training activities and projects for different business
lines, covering new employees, on-the-job employees, employees
of special works and transfer employees. Meanwhile, we have
improved the overall service quality and employee’s work
efficiency by refining the trainings and conducting the targeted
training for the increasing customer demand.

Example: Times Neighborhood’s Leadership Plans

Times Neighborhood's Leadership Plans are a series of leadership
development plans designed by Times Neighborhood College. These
plans have training plans and courses in place for Times Neighborhood's
employees of different levels, namely, Sailing Plan for management
trainees, Aid Plan for project operation officers and regional operation
officers, Voyage Plan for forerunners and Navigation Plan for directors.
These plans aim at providing employees with a platform to improve
their professionalism and management capabilities, while at the same
time reserve high-quality talents for the stable development of Times
Neighborhood.

Example: Elite Training Program for Newcomer

The Elite Training Program for Newcomer is a strategic talent training
program set up by Times Neighborhood for the graduates of Project
985 and 211 Universities. It aims to accelerate the cultivation of
company reserve management talents in an all-round, multi-angle, and
targeted approach. Times Neighborhood College designed a three-
stage training camp to help management trainees, by conducting
various activities, assimilate into the Company as soon as possible.
Meanwhile, during the rotation of these new elites at different stages,
Times Neighborhood College will continue to follow up on their on-
the-job training performance and learn about their progress in real
time, so as to assist new elites to quickly integrate with the teams of
Times Neighborhood.
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5.2.2 Equal promotion for common development

Times Neighborhood has established a standardized employee
promotion and development mechanism and detailed
management measures on employee promotion to guide
and regulate the equal promotion within the Company. The
Company provides diversified promotion opportunities for
employees with responsible and excellent performance as well
as provides fair, open and just competition opportunities for
all employees, so as to enhance the Company cohesion and
employees’ competitiveness effectively for promotion.

Principles on Promotion

o Morality and performance: we will comprehensively
consider the personal qualities, capabilities and
achievements of employees for promotion.

o Combining level-by-level promotion with skip-level
promotion: employees are generally promoted on a level-
by-level basis; employees who have made outstanding
contributions to the Company or with special talents can
skip ranks for promotion.

o Combining vertical promotion with horizontal promotion:
employees can be promoted along the line, or via the
promotion channel of another development direction.

o Promotion and demotion: the position of an employee
may be upgraded or degraded based on the performances.
Where vacancies occur, internal staff will be prioritized for
consideration and external recruitment will be considered
when no suitable candidate is available.

o Internal competing promotion will comply with the
principles of open, fair and just competition.
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In order to ensure the fair promotion of each employee, Times
Neighborhood has formulated practical promotion paths for
different business lines, covering the lines of management, sales,
professionalism and Work. In addition to the regular promotion
process, Times Neighborhood has built an internal competition
channel and pushed internal vacancy information for employees
through the online system. We will coordinate and confirm
internal vacancies every month, and make them open to internal
employees through online systems such as “Times +" APP ([
{Z+]APP) and our official Wechat account “Neighborhood
You+" (#BEEZX), and publish the internal positions of the
month to employees so that they can put themselves in for
such positions online on the platform. The online system can
not only provide detailed information about vacancies, but also
push them according to locations, ensuring the promptness of
extraction of post information and the accuracy of talent data
capture. While satisfying the need to provide employees with a
diversified platform of career development, this online system
further optimizes the efficiency of decision-making on talent
management of Times Neighborhood. Within 3 months since
the system’s launch, 365 vacancies positions were successfully
released, with 266 applicants and a high registration rate of
73%.
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Times Neighborhood has defined the responsibilities of our
employees, and set the corresponding assessment KPI according
to the characteristics of different business lines to standardize
the scope of assessment. For the follow-up work, we have
set the assessment rules, point deduction and scoring basis
which are based on the scope of assessment. Finally, we
would evaluate employee’s overall work performance and
set corresponding rewards and punishment according to the
score. During the promotion assessment, in order to motivate
employees to perform their duties with due care, we ensure that
employees will be entitled to the remuneration equivalent to the
promoted position.

In 2020, in order to motivate employees’ enthusiasm for work
and enhance their sense of responsibility and sense of purpose
for project operations, Times Neighborhood has formulated the
Benefit Sharing System (Fllzz £ Z #/E), which takes the profit of
each project as an indicator, and shares the excess profit of the
project with the employees involved, so as to further increase
employees’ remuneration.
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5.3 Caring for employees’ health and safety

Since employee is the core participant of property services,
Times Neighborhood takes primary responsibility for employees’
occupational health and safety. To this end, we have formulated
documents related to occupational health and safety in
accordance with the Work Safety Law of the PRC (% AR I
MBE L 24 ESR), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases (FZE A RLMEIR 2R A
%) and the Emergency Response Law of the PRC (FREE A R 71
BZe g E{FEENK), so as to identify the source of danger and
supervise and manage occupational health and safety accidents
in a timely manner, so as to protect the occupational health and
safety of all employees.

o Policies and measures: the Management Manual on
Quiality, Environment and Occupational Health and Safety
(EE BB BERRLE2EEFM), the Procedure
Document on Quality, Environment and Occupational
Health and Safety (BE£ : R3% - BERRELT2REF XF),
the Control Procedure for Environmental Factors, Hazard
Source Identification and Risk Evaluation (GB3EREZ - &
B IR 9 Rl B R B S B HE #I#2 ), the Control Procedure for
Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety (3R3%
MEEEERZ 22572 +), and the Control Procedure for
the Monitoring and Measurement of Environmental and
Occupational Health and Safety (3R¥% - B¥RRZ 2 ER
A SRR T).

o Organizational structure: conducting regular safety
work meetings and implementing the mechanism of
responsibility for safe production.

o Hazard identification: timely identifying the places, types
of work, and equipment with potential occupational health
and safety hazards.

o Safety training: normalizing the safety training and
education for all employees and providing post trainings
for special operators.

] Emergency measures: carrying responsive measures to

protect the occupational health and safety of employees
when accident occurs.
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In order to effectively monitoring the conditions of construction
sites and handling safety issues in a timely manner, Times
Neighborhood has set up a response mechanism for
emergencies, which requires frontline personnel to report to
the person in charge of the project as soon as possible after
discovering the problem, and requires the person in charge
to respond and report to the system within the specified time
according to the nature of the incident.

5.4 People-oriented protection and caring

Times Neighborhood pays attention to the physical and mental
health of our employees, and shows our care in daily work. In
2020, we launched a series of activities such as "Festival Care
Activities” and “Health Lecture” to show our day-to-day care for
employees. In case of any emergency, we will provide staunch
support for our employees with emergency assistance within our
capability such as the Times Foundation and internal fundraising.

Times Neighborhood remains vigilant at the COVID-19 epidemic.
We track and monitor the physical conditions of all employees
on a daily basis, and follow up the health, travel, resumption of
work and material allocation of all employees by recording daily
health data, monitoring and reporting the daily health conditions
of COVID-19 related employees. Meanwhile, we provide
masks, disinfectants and other necessary supplies for epidemic
prevention on demand, and attach importance to the protection
of employees’ occupational health and safety to ensure a safe
and secure working environment.

Example: Interpretation of Physical Examination Report and
Health Advice Lecture

Times Neighborhood attaches importance to safeguarding the
occupational health of employees and provides regular physical
examination services for them. This year's physical examination results
show that the Company’s employees were in good health as a whole
and there are no major occupational health problems. In addition, upon
the physical examination, many regional offices of Times Neighborhood
actively invited doctors from physical examination centers and hospitals
to interpret the physical examination results for employees, and
provided channels such as open one-to-one consultation via telephone
for employees to seek consultation and report interpretation, so
that employees can have a clear understanding of their own health
conditions.
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6.1

BUILDING RESPONSIBLE SUPPLY CHAIN

Times Neighborhood attaches great importance to the
supply chain management, and has formulated the Partner
Management System of Times Neighborhood Group (FSft#EE
EEAEHEESE) and the Tender and Bidding Management
System of Times Neighborhood Group (B§{{#EE & ERBIRIZ
EIEHE), and improved the application of our tender and
procurement systems including the “SRM Procurement System of
Times Neighborhood Group” (B #PE £ E SRM B R #), the
“EBS Contract Management System” (EBS & REE X&) and
the “Cost Control System of Times Neighborhood” (Bft# &
BT ZE4R) in the internal tender and procurement management
work. We strive to carry out responsible, integrity and green
procurement through standardized tender and procurement
system. Also, we regulate the environmental, social and
regulatory measures of suppliers through additional procurement
clauses. We are committed to driving responsible operation
across industries and along the whole supply chain to build a
sound industrial ecosystem.

Regulating and controlling procurement

Times Neighborhood has developed a series of procurement
management and control procedures for the entire procurement
process, which involves storage management and partner
inspections, defining inspection plans and responsibilities,
and issuing inspection reports. Once the procurement goals
are clarified, the procurement department will organize and
establish an inspection team to work with members of the
supervision department of Times Neighborhood Group, various
line departments and branches in regions, etc. A standardized
procurement network consists of cross-department cooperation,
joint inspection and multi-sectoral participation is formed to
provide stringent control over the storage standards for our
partners.
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Storage procedure for suppliers

o Management before storage: preliminary qualifications,
operating conditions, personnel structure, corporate
background, major equipment, compliance review, etc.

o Forms of inspection: factory visit, company visit, results and
case inspection, and supplementary visit

o Inspection plan: identifying the type of partners, determining
the form of inspection and its focus

o Inspectors and their responsibilities: preparing inspection
guidelines for partners, maintaining the database of
partnership, and establishing inspection team

o Storage after inspection: issuing inspection report,
submitting online storage approval, and issuing notification
on follow-up storage

After the suppliers being put into storage enter the performance
evaluation process, each functional department, branch and
subsidiary is required to conduct evaluations on them in
such aspects as qualification, professionalism of team and
business conditions, and adjust the rating of suppliers based
on evaluation results according to the Rating Standards for
Qualified Suppliers (& &4 FEPRT MIZ ).

In addition, Times Neighborhood will also evaluate the rating
of partners based on the scores and rankings and performance
evaluation according to the types of partners. The Company will
provide incentives to outstanding partners, remove unqualified
or blacklist the problematic partners.

In addition, Times Neighborhood has enhanced the efficiency
and mechanism of the supply chain management by establishing
regular supplier communication channels, organizing supplier
training activities and improving the tender and procurement
system.

138 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



A HERE I

202012 A - BB B AR B R
POABHER RS RIEREESIB
Bl Bm120 K@ HMBRE EE
NEEARBRSNR LEGHS
B o SEFIEE IR AT ZERITH
EBREREDN  RERBARER
MEEZTBERMR - HARBRGE
MEGHTE TEARBWRIES
Mo

6.2 BRKRE HEAQAF

REE

RRBE+DIERFEETHREZ
BIE - BBZAMBAEE  ZEE
ALREZ  BFEREBAS T
BRTBERARETNERRR - £
HEHERREN (REBZ) 7 &M
BRRETEZBES TG UEMNEH
A %1 75 S R AR (T 2 20 9 B EE 1 S 3R B
ENNE  MARERLTRENE
MEBEMREMEBR - to - Bl
BEERESREMITASTRFED
RATRMANREARE  HPRE - £
fa] B T &R JE 5 5 B 45 1 18 7 A0 i
BEANEBAIEBFNNE  Bm
T o RPIEERIFEERAER
THRESH BERBETRERR &
HEBRA - HMHLRBEFMBENER
THEEMEREMAOHLEBERERE
AR RS AR EAE -

s

BRBEXHATHF  ABRIE
AR R RBFTA - SR 58
EREHBENAL - RABEY
FORFHP) BMETTRERE
BOEBRMEALETETANE
o

Example: Supplier Training

In December 2020, the Cost, Tender and Procurement Center of
Times Neighborhood organized a training regarding the operational
guidelines of the tender and procurement system. More than 120
heads of headquarters and regional cooperation units participated
through on-site or online cloud meetings. Themed by accelerating
the understanding and mastering of the latest business operation
procedures, enhancing the performance of tender and procurement
business and so on, the training was clearly instructive for the
improvement of the Company’s tender and procurement system.

6.2 Clean procurement and fair cooperation
Anti-corruption

Times Neighborhood attaches great importance to integrity
and uprightness, strictly forbids corruptions in the procurement
through multi-department monitoring, joint review by multiple
responsible persons and the signing of integrity agreement.
We entered into the Integrity Agreement (FEZ1:%) with the
supplier, which stipulates that neither party shall render property
or non-property interests in any form to the other for any
reason. Any violations of laws and disciplines shall be promptly
reported to the supervisory unit. In addition, our anti-bribery
and anti-corruption policies and codes of conduct clearly state
our anti-corruption commitments. No employee shall accept any
benefits, gifts or hospitality from business partners, including
suppliers and contractors. We also focus on raising employees’
awareness of integrity in training, and require them to build
a firm occupational bottom line. During the Reporting Period,
to the best of our knowledge, we did not cooperate with any
supplier or contractor who violated our anti-bribery and anti-
corruption policies.

Anti-competition

Times Neighborhood supports fair competition and prohibits any
form of anti-competitive behaviors to ensure that supply chain
management remains prudent and fair. We strictly abide by the
Competition Regulations (#F &%) and encourage employees
to learn about relevant regulations to raise their awareness of
preventing such misconduct.
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Green procurement for win-win cooperation

During the procurement process, Times Neighborhood has
fully considered the importance of green procurement to the
environment. We inspected suppliers with great impact on the
environments according to the supplier types of environmental
services, engineering services and cleaning services, and strictly
regulates their capabilities on greening and maintenance,
preventing dust and noise and saving water and electricity,
thereby contributing to environmental protection and green
environment in the procurement process.

In addition, in 2020, we conducted green environmental
protection assessments on greening and disinfection,
disinfectants storage, construction, sewage and other
services provided by suppliers, and implemented standardized
requirements, random inspections and self-inspections on
services provided by suppliers to safeguard communities and
maintain a green environment.

ADVOCATING GREEN SERVICES
Green operation to protect environment

As a proponent of green services, Times Neighborhood believes
that both green technology and intelligent technology will
become the development trend of the property industry.
To better integrate green operations and environmental
management into daily work, we are committed to establishing
a sound environmental management system to improve our
environmental benefits and promote green development, to
provide comfortable, beautiful and healthy working and living
environment for projects where our business operates.
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The Company strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations including the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC (FpZE AR KEMBIRF(REL), the Energy Conservation Law
of the PRC (hFZEARIMEEILEEIRL) and the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Wastes (% AR E 8 REYT R RENRE), and
formulated manuals related to environmental quality control
including the Procedure Document on Quality, Environment and
Occupational Health and Safety (B2 - 3% « BERFEL 2R
FFXX 1) and the Management Manual on Quality, Environment
and Occupational Health and Safety (H& I35 - BEE
EZ2EIRFM). At the same time, in order to reduce the
energy consumption during the operation of the Company, we
adopted measures such as using adapted energy-saving lamps
in public areas and replacement of central air conditioners
with energy-saving ones to create an environmentally friendly
corporate image. In addition, we also established comprehensive
energy conservation and consumption reduction goals,
analyzed and compared data, and defined environmental
protection responsibilities of each functional department. These
actions promote efforts in emission reduction and maximize
consumption reduction.

In addition, Times Neighborhood, also issued documents on
environment management system for green environment
management, including the Control Procedure for Identification
and Evaluation of Environmental Factors (GRIEEZ# R EHTE
2 H|F2F7), the Control Procedure for Environmental Monitoring
and Compliance Evaluation (3R3EESBIEAERIEFTEIEHIREF),
the Control Procedure for Environment, Occupational Health
and Safety Non-Conformance (3R3% - BiEERZ2THEEH
F2/%), the Regulations on Noise Management (K& IEIRF),
the Regulations on the Management of Three Wastes Emission
(ZEEHEME R E) and the Regulations on the Management of
Energy Conservation and Monitoring (Ei#EE5RIE R T). Times
Neighborhood enhanced its green development by standardizing
the environmental KPIs and their implementation.

Example: Installment of Rainwater Recycling System in Times
King City Project

Focusing on sustainable development in the future, Times
Neighborhood pays attention to raising the utilization rate and
conservation of water resource in the community. With the installment
of Rainwater Recycling System, Changsha Times King City, a project
under the management of Times Neighborhood, has played a
demonstrative role. The system filters and disinfects rainwater by
splitting it through pipelines, and finally sent it to the pipelines used
for irrigating green belts and cleaning in the community. After the
system was installed, the annual water saving is about 5,040m3 and
the annual water cost saving is about RMB12,801.
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7.2 %A SERT 7.2 Green office for joint collaboration
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To achieve the energy saving and reduction initiatives, Times
Neighborhood has conducted reasonable resource allocation
and actively promoted green operations. Meanwhile, we
promoted green environmental protection in our daily office
operation to improve the utilization of resources and create
an environmentally friendly workplace. Our main green office
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initiatives are as follows:

Recycling and reuse of papers to protect environment
and save energy

In order to reduce the consumption of office supplies,
Times Neighborhood advocates paper saving by limiting the
purchase of paper and setting a special area to recycle used
papers in the office area to enhance employees’ awareness
of environmental protection and avoid inefficient use of
resources;

Remote conferences to reduce costs

To reduce traffic consumption and transportation costs,
Times Neighborhood have installed remote conference
systems in all branches in cities. Regular meetings are
conducted through video conferences to reduce business
trips, travel expenses and carbon emissions caused by
transportation;

Energy-saving lighting to reduce energy consumption

To reduce the high energy consumption of the lighting
system and reduce the electricity costs of properties,
Times Neighborhood continues to carry out energy-saving
renovation projects for properties by replacing the original
high energy consumption bulbs with energy efficient ones
and posting energy-saving and environmental protection
tips in the office area. The measures are a great step
to achieve the Company’s reduction target of energy
consumption.
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7.3 ZBEE  RKKAH 7.3 Promoting green environment for the future
BFRME -—BHREAHRBENITSER Times Neighborhood upholds the sustainable development of the
BES BOIRITEGELRE B environment, it is committed to building green communities and
BAREERESS AR ER integrating the concept of green and sustainable development
O BEETITHAAL2E4BRRE to community management. We actively invited property owners
B EBFITEGOHRE - to participate in environmental protection activities for building

a green community together.

2020%F » F @B EA 2 o TS 10 i In 2020, we actively carried out waste sorting in communities to
WIRDIETIE: UABRIBEETE rationally dispose of solid waste. In addition, during the period
BERREEY) o bAN - TR B I HIR - of epidemic prevention and control, we allocated trash bins for
EMESHESREREEDS LK used masks in each community to ensure reasonable placement
W AmREBREEVNSIENE - of medical waste.
A1 RRIMNEIIR D EEE Example: Garbage Sorting Activities at Times Bund
R X 24 52 75 1 22 E B0 SRR IS Y S5 Times Neighborhood actively responds to the call of the state and the
B BEEEMREHTERT = TE local government, and has completed garbage classification in over
fEEABIIR D FETE - AP ERIN 20 communities in the Guangzhou area. Among them, Times Bund
BT BERE C £ERKR] N promotes “Packaging Reduction for Ecological Environment Protection”
EEEEBEHRSENESE o BA to encourage owners to actively participate in waste classification. At
RRIMNEECKRREBDRER R K present, Times Bund has become the first demonstration community
EENFEAD BRI BEERE which has designated well-equipped waste collection points in Shaxi
ZRARE/NE o area of Panyu District.
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7.4 ZBERE > EYHEL

7.4 Green ecology to cope with changes
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Climate change and protecting biodiversity are the hot topics
nowadays. Keeping pace with the trend, Times Neighborhood
actively promoted environmental protection to property owners,
employees and other stakeholder to address climate change,
protect biodiversity and advocate low-carbon life, so as to
construct a low-carbon society. To begin with, we promoted
waste classification and recycling, reduced water pollution
and energy consumption, increased environment afforests and
improved environmental protection facilities in our business
operation. We are committed to reducing the adverse impact on
the ecological environment and creating a harmonious working
environment and living environment for our employees and
property owners.

PROMOTING SOCIAL WELFARE

Adhering to the concept of “let more people enjoy a better life”,
Times Neighborhood spares no effort in integrating its quality
services into the community, and endeavors to promote more
advanced service to social welfare. In 2020, we optimized the
internal management mechanism, leveled up property services,
enriched community culture, actively organized and conducted
social welfare activities to fulfill corporate social responsibilities.
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8.1 Engaging in the community to share fruits

The community is the carrier of the property, and the property
is the guardian of the community. Times Neighborhood devotes
itself to community services and implements the mission of
“let more people enjoy a better life” continuously. In terms of
internal management, we adhered to the concept of property
service by implementing service management standard system,
promoting model employees, strengthening the allocation of
property management workers, as well as improving project
service quality and property operation efficiency. In terms of
external services, we actively organized community activities,
showed our care proactively, continuously responded to
the community demands, strengthened community safety
management and built platform on smart resident services, and
enhanced the neighborhood and community cohesion.

Example: Activities to Offer Greater Convenience to Residents

Times Neighborhood gives full play to the advantages of property
services and implements customer care actions. In 2020, the property
management center of each real estate organized activities to offer
greater convenience to the residents on the eve of Thanksgiving,
including but not limited to: sharpening kitchen knives, cleaning fans,
cleaning carpets, cleaning showers, tailoring and sewing, repairing
shoes and umbrellas, free haircut, free medical consultations, etc.
These activities and services were totally free and were well received by
the owners, and effectively met the daily needs of the owners.
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8.2 HERE  HEEHE

8.2 Charity donations to contribute to the community
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As a pioneer in property services, Times Neighborhood strives
to integrate standards of property services into public welfare
actions. We carried out charitable activities such as “Caring for
Special Children” through the Times Foundation with a total
investment of approximately RMB3.91 million. While fulfilling
our corporate social responsibility, we have also bridged the
distance between Times Neighborhood and the society. In the
future, we wish to increase our participation in the charitable
activities organized by the Times Foundation, such as poverty
alleviation and disaster relief, education and charity, medical and
health, art cultivation and caring for special children, to show
our love and care to the society.

Example: “Sunshine with you” Free Medical Consultations

In 2020, the Neighborhood Project Team of the Times Foundation
carried out free medical consultations “Sunshine with You” in Foshan
City Times community at Sanshui District, Foshan City. We cooperated
with the medical and health management center to provide on-site
diagnosis and treatment, health management services, as well as
health management suggestions for 120 owners in the community. The
professional attitude and quality service of the medical staff received
high praises from the residents.
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9.1 BUR%I&

ESGISZ
ESG Indicator

9 AN OVERVIEW OF SUSTAINABLE

DEVELOPMENT

9.1 A list of policies

EFEFHE

Compliance with National Policies

A EBBUR

Internal Policies

A RE
A Environmental

B1.{Ef&
B1.Employment

o (FREARAMBEBEMIRAREN L)

e Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Wastes

o (BEIRBHZAHKIERZRE)

e Evaluation Standard for Green Construction
of Buildings

o (FREARLFMEBEILEE)

e Labour Law of the PRC

o (FREARKMBLEERE)

e Labour Contract Law of the PRC

o (HPEARLFBIBEREE)

e Law of the PRC on Employment Promotion
o (HIEARKMBIMLEREE)

e Social Insurance Law of the PRC

o (EIFEREIHRE)

e Prohibition of Child Labour Provisions

o (HE B BERELZEETM)

e Management Manual on Quality,
Environment and Occupational Health and
Safety

o (HE B BERELEEFXMH)

e Procedure Document on Quality,
Environment and Occupational Health and
Safety

o CGREHEZZREFBENIERF)

e Control Procedure for Identification and
Evaluation of Environmental Factors

o (HRIRERMERIENEIEHNIZRF)

e Control Procedure for Environmental
Monitoring and Compliance Evaluation

o (RIE BEREBEZEIAERRER)

e Control Procedure for Environment and
Occupational Health and Safety Non-
Conformance

o (RBEITE)

e Regulations on Noise Management

o (ZFEHIHEERE)

e Regulations on the Management of Three
Wastes Emission

o (ENREEDRIBEIBFE)

e Regulations on the Management of
Energy Conservation and Monitoring

e (BMNMRRYEERBERATNAZTEREF
ity

e Personnel Management Manual of
Guangzhou Times Property Management
Co., Ltd.

o (AAEEFM)

e Talent Training Manual

o (FlmHA=HIE)

e Benefit Sharing System
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ESGERE BFEREE AETe
ESG Indicator Compliance with National Policies Internal Policies
B2. @ERHEZ S o (BEERGEREE) o (HE BR BERELZEZEETM)
B2.Health and e Law on the Protection of Labour Rights and e Management Manual on Quality,
Safety Interests Environment and Occupational Health and
o (HhEARIMELEE) Safety
e Labour Law of the PRC e (HE2 BRE BERRZZEFRXH)
o (HEARILMBIHEEE) e Procedure Document on Quality,
e Fire Protection Law of the PRC Environment and Occupational Health and
o (HhEARHAMBELZEEEE) Safety
e Work Safety Law of the PRC e (RRAMEEEZZEEFE)
o (REAREMBBERLAE) e Safety Management System of Times
e Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Neighborhood Group
Control of Occupational Diseases o (HRMEEERREERHZE)
o (hEARAMB B E(FEENE) e Risk Management System of Times
e Emergency Response Law of the PRC Neighborhood Group
o (IBREED) o (HRIEEZE - Ry E R E P IR
e Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance F)

e Control Procedure for Environmental
Factors, Hazard Source Identification and
Risk Evaluation

o (RIBMBERRLTZIEGERRF)

e Control Procedure for Environmental and
Occupational Health and Safety

o (BIE - BERRZZERMASITHIRE
53

e Control Procedure for the Monitoring
and Measurement of Environmental and
Occupational Health and Safety

B5. fitFEE E I o (hEARAMBEBREE) s (BRMEEESIFRERHE)
B5.Supply Chain e Tender and Bidding Law of the PRC e Partner Management System of Times
Management Neighborhood Group

o (HRBEEFBRIEZEEHE)
e Tender and Bidding Management System
of Times Neighborhood Group
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ESGIEE
ESG Indicator

BFEREE
Compliance with National Policies

WER R

Internal Policies

B6. EmEIE
B6.Product
Responsibility

(FREE A R AFBIRIRE)

Trademark Law of the PRC
(FREARKMBIESE)

Advertisement Law of the PRC
(FREEARKFMBIZEFE)

Patent Law of the PRC
(RFEARKAMBEERBEEE)

Product Quality Law of the PRC
(PEARAFMBEEERRRESL)
Consumer Protection Law of the PRC
(BB ABRNMEE R ERERRE R
BWER)

Opinions of the General Office of the State
Council on Facilitating Continuous and
Healthy Development of the Construction
Industry

CEBE R ABRANA N #ERERNEENE
BER)

Guiding Opinions of the General Office of
the State Council on Promoting Fabricated
Construction
(AREEETELERR(LRESETESET
25D

Certain Opinions Concerning the Promotion
of Industrialisation of Building Materials to
Improve Housing Quality

o (RRMEBEBEELDAKEEERE)

e Management Procedures of Times
Neighborhood for Project Operation and
Decision-making

o (RRMEIMBZ]RERRBIZE)

e Quality and Service Standards of Times
Property for Sunflower Model

s (RRWEI2AE]nERRBERE)

e Quality and Service Standards of Times
Property for Golden Lily Model

s (BRMEIELE]IRERRBZRLE)

e Quality and Service Standards of Times
Property for Tulip Model

o (HEPEEEEHRE)

e Regulations on the Management of
Property Owner Information

s (ERZBESER)

e Emergency Plan on Information Security

o (BRMEBEBEL S S AMEEHE)

e Full Lifecycle Management System for
Project Operation of Times Neighborhood
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ESG Indicator Compliance with National Policies Internal Policies
B7. RE& o (PEARKMBEAFEL) o (RRBEEBREHEBBEEFE)
B7.Anti- e Company Law of the PRC e Management Policy of Times
corruption o (FEARKMBIREEE) Neighborhood Group on Anti-Commercial
e Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC Bribery
o (PEARHKNMBRELEE) o (RRMEEFERERERHE)
e Anti-Monopoly Law of the PRC e Management Policy of Times
o (FEARAMBRTEZHFE) Neighborhood Group on Anti-Corruption

(R EEBEREEERIE)
Management Measures of Times

e Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
o (FARZEIEEMBRITRNEITHRE)

e Interim Provisions on Prohibiting Commercial Neighborhood Group on Anti-Money
Bribery Laundering
e (HRMEEEERAERZRAEEER
)

e Integrity and Self-discipline Regulations
for the Management of Times
Neighborhood Group

s (BRMELEES  BEEEIE)

e Measures of Times Neighborhood Group
on Dealing with Cash and Gifts

o (HRMEBLEETN ZERBREIE)

e Report Policy of Times Neighborhood
Group on Conflicts of Interest

o (RRBEEESEAEREENE)

e Management Policy of Times
Neighborhood Group on Audit and
Supervision

o (HRBEEBEETRZNEARS)

e Integrity Undertakings of Times
Neighborhood Group Employees

o (BRMEKEETERZTAD

e Employee Integrity Code of Times
Neighborhood Group

o (BRMEETAKHE)

e Employee Red Line Policy of Times
Neighborhood

o (HRMEBEEASTHD

e Code for Employee Management of Times
Neighborhood

e (RRMETELAFRBERERE LA
T

e The Employment and Incentive Plans
for Part-time Supervisors of Affiliated
Companies of Times Neighborhood
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9.2 Tables of Key Performance

Subject: Presenting the Key Performances related to Times
Neighborhood ESG Report in compliance in the form of

o following table.
RIBEEHEIIXR
List of Environmental Data
ESGIEE B 2019F & 2020 FHiE
ESG Indicator Unit Data of 2019 Data of 2020
A1 HERW
Emissions
A1.1 B E R E R R
The types of emissions and
respective emissions data’
REY Fr - 440.84
Nitrogen oxides Kilogram
matyw Fr - 0.17
Sulfur oxides Kilogram
FERLY) T - 41.76
Particulate matter Kilogram
A1.2 BERBEFREREE?
Greenhouse gas emissions
in total and intensity?
& B E e’ U7 18,608.33 33,256.18
Total CO, emissions? Tonne
R bR R E WE BB 17.21 18.91
Intensity of CO, emissions Tonne/
RMB1 million
BEEZS/mERE i 323.18 197.98
Direct CO, emissions®# Tonne
8 — | bR e =3 U7 18,285.15 33,058.20
Indirect CO, emissions®* Tonne
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BRIBEHEIIX
List of Environmental Data

ESGIE®E By 2019F & 2020 FEE
ESG Indicator Unit Data of 2019 Data of 2020
A1.3%A1.4 FIELXBEYHRES

Total Waste produced®

BERXEE 18 31,669 23,522

Total Waste fluorescent tubes ltem

FTENHERR % & 305 378

Toner cartridges [tem

B T= 482.79 1,650.76

Batteries Kilogram

VNN T 12,034.66 13,643.66

Office paper Kilogram

A1.6 REEEREZEREYRRS
Results of handling hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes®

BHERE (FF) TR 240.21 374.99
Battery recycling (hazardous) Kilogram
WREUE (|F) T 4,357.59 3,608.96
Paper recycling (non-hazardous) Kilogram
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BRIBEHEIIX
List of Environmental Data
ESGIE®E By 20195 8B 2020 FEE
ESG Indicator Unit Data of 2019 Data of 2020
A2 ERER
Use of Resources
A2.1 RERNESHWEER %
BERERAREREE
Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total
and intensity
REREFEHFERS KB 30,543.49 39,786.47
Comprehensive energy consumption® MWh
FERERRE KR,/ BET 28.25 22.63
Comprehensive energy consumption MWh/
intensity RMB1 million
EEEERES KBS 1,535.57 750.74
Direct energy consumption MWh
[OEEEy =i ca KBS 29,007.92 39,035.73
Indirect energy consumption MWh
SORERES van 88,043.52 65,567.74
Diesel consumption Litre
FREFEST van 41,072.01 11,799.15
Gasoline consumption’ Litre
BIEE JK LB 29,007.92 39,035.73
Total electricity consumption MWh
A2.2 BEKEREE
Water consumption
in total and intensity
FEKE SR oK 3,252,835.13 3,890,705.62
Water consumption m3
FKEE SNHKSBET 3,008.26 2,212.64
Water consumption intensity m3RMB1 million
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HEREYBIR
List of Social Data
ESGIEE By 2019 F &% 2020 F EiE
ESG Indicator Unit Data of 2019 Data of 2020
B1. {Ef&
Employment
B1.1 MR EREEE  FRANRHMEZSINESLEH

Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region

REHEH A 8,050 8,129
Total number of employees Headcount
145 BHEREAK A 3,225 4,882
Gender Number of male employees Headcount
ZIERBEAR A 4,825 3,247
Number of female employees Headcount
EERR SREEEH A 21 31
Employment Number of senior management Headcount
Type
FREREH A 170 276
Number of middle management Headcount
EEETIH A 7,859 7,822
Number of entry-level staff Headcount
FH 29 MIA T RE AR A 2,689 2,104
Age Group  Number of employees in age 29 and below Headcount
30-495%(E B AEK A 3,542 3,655
Number of employees in age 30-49 Headcount
S50mMIALERE AR A 1,819 2,370
Number of employees in 50 and above Headcount
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HEEBEIIR

List of Social Data

ESGIE®R B 20195 8 2020 F BB
ESG Indicator Unit Data of 2019 Data of 2020
HE TEAMEER AR A 8,048 8,125
Geographical Number of employees from Mainland China Headcount
Region
ERENEE AR A 7,644 7,663
Number of employees from Guangdong Province Headcount
EREIMEE AR A 404 462
Number of employees from outside of Headcount
Guangdong Province
BRAEE AR A 2 4
Number of employees from Hong Kong, Headcount
Macau and Taiwan
B2. REHZZ
Health and Safety
B2.2 EIBEEATHERE
Lost days due to work injury
ATHBERNOTHEEE PN 957 889
Number of working days lost due to work-related Day
injuries
ITHBR% R 39 43
Number of work-related injuries Case
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HEEEEIIXR
List of Social Data
ESGIEE By 2019 F &% 2020 F EiE
ESG Indicator Unit Data of 2019 Data of 2020
B3. ZRERIEI
Development and Training
B3.1 B REEERNESNZIEET S

The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category

XIRBADLL % - 100
Percentage of employees trained %
5l it % 62.60 60.06
Gender Percentage of male employees trained %
i3 % 37.40 39.94
Percentage of female employees trained %
EEEA BRERE % 0.30 0.38
Employee Percentage of senior management employees trained %
Category
hRERE % 13.50 3.40
Percentage of middle management employees trained %
EEET % 86.20 96.22
Percentage of entry-level staff employees trained %
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HEREBYX
List of Social Data
ESGIE®R B 20195 8 2020 F BB
ESG Indicator Unit Data of 2019 Data of 2020
B3.2 ZUHBIRESERED  SEEETRZIN TGRS
The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category?®
BTYOXFIRE AN 24.58 60.07
Average training hours for employees Hour
15 SUHE I FHRIE N 37.04 60.71
Gender Average training hours for male Hour
ZHEB T FHREE AN 16.25 59.10
Average training hours for female Hour
EEER RRERE TR B 29.19 31.48
Employee Average training hours for senior management Hour
Category
hARE IR E R B N 149.21 14.28
Average training hours for middle management Hour
HEEE T FHXIIRE N 21.87 61.80
Average training hours for entry-level staff Hour
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HEEEEIIXR
List of Social Data
ESGIEE By 20195 HiE 2020 F HiE
ESG Indicator Unit Data of 2019 Data of 2020

B5. fiEHEEE
Supply Chain Management

B5.1 BRI NHERHE
Number of suppliers by geographical region
HERAEE 1 140 453
Total number of suppliers Entity
& Wi - BRENHEEEE 1 109 375
Geographical Mainland: Number of suppliers in Guangdong Province Entity
Region
Wi BRERENEEA N HERRE 1 31 78
Mainland: Number of suppliers in other provinces Entity

except Guangdong Province

B6. EmMEf
Product Responsibility

B6.2 BERRERRBBNRFRREEE
Number of products and service related
complaints and praises received

ERERFES R 8,329 7,286
Number of total complaints received Time
PR X &G T B2 28R R 600 1,024
Security-related property complaints received Time
Pz R M EBIE T 8 RIS RIGR R 5,607 5,217
Property complaints on services received Time
Pz &R MEEBIE T B TIRRIGH R 2,122 1,045
Engineering-related property complaints received Time
BEEETRBRE R - 747
Number of praises received from property owners Time

158 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



ESGIEE
ESG Indicator

HEEEEIIXR
List of Social Data
By 2019F BB
Unit Data of 2019

2020 €8
Data of 2020

B7. RES
Anti-corruption

B7.1 HETARHEEREYCEENE SHARGEAE
Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its

employees
EEENESFARTHNEE 1 0 0
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Case
practices
B8. #HERE
Community Investment
BS.2 EETEBRABAER
Resources contributed to the focus area
HERA REAERELARA B 0.6 391
Community Total investment in charitable donations Ten thousand
Investment
BT2HRs /&L EDHRE NN 51 2,613
Statistics on employees’ participation in charitable/ Headcount
volunteer activities
7 Notes:

2020F ER2FESGEUERER R ENM A
@i (BEARMAE - SWMARUKETE
% A) AARRHETYETERENMEL
@%F(@%%%ﬁ@ﬁ&#@%%@m
BEZEY) - BORALHE - OEFERIRBERE) -
FEF - RIS HA R AHD Bk BN &R -
BN & EERIETR R GHEE TS - S ETIE
ZEAEEEE - FESGEEEE2019F L
HERARERER

1. ASMLEY  mACHRERDHRE
EERBRBENDBERITER -

2. REREHREEE = AICHER
£ FaBACHHORAIERG T
B A BASREREER -

The annual ESG data for 2020 covers Times Neighborhood's office
areas (including headquarters of the Company, branches in cities and
subsidiaries), and the property business data of properties managed
by the Company (including the waste, energy consumption, water
consumption and carbon emissions of the property management office,
and non-shared areas). Meanwhile, during the Reporting Period, Times
Neighborhood completed the acquisition and merger of Guangzhou
Haoging, Guangzhou Yaocheng and Shanghai Kejian, and had more
projects under management. As a result, there was a significant increase
in the ESG data as compared with 2019.

1. Nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxide and particulate matter emissions
are generated from business vehicle emissions of Times
Neighborhood.

2. Greenhouse gas emissions merely refer to the emission of carbon

dioxide, excluding the greenhouse gases from other emission
sources, such as methane and nitrous oxide.

R EIER AR A A / 2020 FFHR
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2020F @ LAk BE R 2 =R IR B
RERT (AHBREELBEN (F)
BEREERIZE HEAMREIER
(FRAT)) EITRE AR AEHES
NEEREAEF22E QO17FEE A
BrEESEFAEERERAT) Z
A BH2019F AN INEE N HEK
HAF AR FI2020F 0 EERE
REFRRTFEAER -

RIKISO 140648 EREBEITA -
EEAREREHN (BE—) #YE
BERAREBTES RIEH R PR
BB EMEAENRBIANE
W FEEREREHN (8 ) &
HERMBEBEROR - B AT s
PR 2R EREBHER

REBRBEOXBELGNERE
EEN BEVWIZREMEES
HB  MARE BRAEEEC(PEA
RAMBERBRERY R BNER
o

i CER e seFERT EimA) (GB2589-
2020 T B HRAE S - 45 5
W RARREMBER LR (B -
KR o

2005 ARERBETE  BHRAR
B ERHTT - BB EER2019
FHRABTE -

200F B A R ER IR RER
BR - ARRERTMAYEEERD
BIlR#EEER - FALE2019F 5
BEAMIER o o 2019F G ot
FEEEEMARE2RMELE %
019FFBERE FHEIHER
2020F BRI RR S -

4

<

The CO, emissions in 2020 are calculated according to the
Calculation Methods and Reporting Guidelines for Greenhouse Gas
Emissions of Public Building Operating Organizations (Enterprises)
(for Trial Implementation) published by the National Development
and Reform Commission. Since the electricity emission factors in
Mainland China which are used by reference to the standard 2017
Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China 2017
FEREIEE R R EREELPEET)) are different from the
purchased electricity emission factors used in 2019, and therefore,
there is an increase in the indirect greenhouse gas emission in
2020, as compared with the previous year.

According to the ISO 14064 Greenhouse Gas inventory standards,
direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) refers to direct
greenhouse gas emissions, particularly direct emission sources
owned and controlled by the organization, such as emissions
from its own vehicles; indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope
2) refers to indirect energy emission sources, such as indirect
greenhouse gas emissions from purchasing electricity.

According to the business nature and actual operation of Times
Neighborhood, its waste mainly originates from property operation
projects and office, with no generation of waste under the
“National Hazardous Waste Inventory of the PRC” (FRZE A R FN
BfERERYEE) .

Comprehensive energy consumption (unit: MWh) is consolidated
from the consumption of electricity, diesel, gasoline and natural
gas, is calculated according to the “General principles for
calculation of the comprehensive energy consumption” (474 REFE
sHE®AI)) (GB2589-2020).

Affected by the pandemic in 2020, Times Neighborhood reduced
the number of business travels, resulting in a significant decrease
in gasoline consumption as compared with 2019.

In 2020, in order to support the rapid transformation and
development of Times Neighborhood, the Company increased
the number and duration of training sessions for its employees
at all levels, which rose significantly as compared with 2019. In
addition, in 2019, all-staff reading activities were carried out for
middle management. This increased the average training duration
for middle management in 2019 as compared with 2020.
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10 ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE

STOCK EXCHANGE

it 15 EEEH E
Indicators Details Report Section Remarks
A. RIE

Environment

EBEA1: iRy

Aspect A1: Emissions

—RIKE

General Disclosure

7 HeR%ESSE
Advocating
Green Services

9.2 B NTIE
Tables of Key

Performance

A1.1 HERUiE SR N AR B HE R R 9.2 BRENIIF
The types of emissions and Tables of Key

respective emissions data Performance

A1.2 RERBASINE (ABEE) R (0 9.2 BRENTIK
HR)RE(NMABESEAM - §18 Tables of Key

&Rt H)

Performance

Greenhouse gas emissions in total
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FREABZEEYES (EFHE) 9.2 lRERNSIX
N (a0 ) mE (MIAES B Tables of Key
HR s E) Performance
Total hazardous waste produced

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,

intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility)
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b B EEEH o E
Indicators Details Report Section Remarks
Al.4 FRE+BRZEEYES (LEFE) 73&6E58 - KK
N (o) B E (MIAESER - AT HA
THR BT E) Promoting green
Total non-hazardous waste environment for
produced (in tonnes) and, where the future
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit 9.2 BE#RAE LTI K
of production volume, per facility) Tables of Key
Performance
A1.5 IR EHERENHERLAEHIER 71868 % T
Description of measures to mitigate RIR
emissions and results achieved Green operation
to protect

environment
9.2 BARENYIE
Tables of Key

Performance
A1.6 HEEEERESEEMNGE - 73HEEE KK
WIREE SRR RFTEKR A &
Description of how hazardous and Promoting green
non-hazardous wastes are handled, environment for
reduction initiatives and results the future
achieved 9.2 FAE MY K
Tables of Key
Performance
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Indicators

B3 ]

Details Report Section

B

Remarks

BEA2: ERER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

—RIKE

General Disclosure

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

7 HERFESE
Advocating
Green Services

RERAEI D B SRR (10

B moh) B2 (ATETEF
AE)NREE (NMABESEM -
BRMEAE)

Direct or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)

9.2 BARENYIEK
Tables of Key
Performance

BFRKEREZE (MAGESEM -
FrERMAE)

Water consumption in total and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)

9.2 BARENYIE
Tables of Key
Performance

HgeRERAMRABLAERR 71 0EEE  BE

Description of energy use efficiency RIR

initiatives and results achieved Green operation
to protect
environment

9.2 BAREMIIR

Tables of Key
Performance

HHCREGERKR Al B ERIHERE - 7.1 &6B8%  BiE
LA R SRF K s 5T 8 R PRIS AR RIE
Description of whether there is any Green operation
issue in sourcing water that is fit for to protect
purpose, water efficiency initiatives environment
and results achieved 9.2 FAREANYIE
Tables of Key
Performance

B mATABEM RS (LG
)R (WER) 8EESUGE
Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and,
if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced

A5 A
Not applicable

NAEBHNEMNRERBREME - &)
A2.5iE M

A2.5 is not applicable, as the products
involved in the Company’s business do
not require packaging material
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518 B oy r:

Indicators Details Report Section Remarks

BHEA3: RERRARER
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural

Resources
— M= 7 HRERBESE
General Disclosure Advocating
Green Services
A3.1 MM EBEHEHRBERARERNE 7 KERFESE
AFERERDNEBEEETZENTTH Advocating
Description of the significant Green Services
impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources
and the actions taken to manage
them
B. #&
Social
BHEB1: EE
Aspect B1: Employment
—RIFE 5.1 FERER - #a
General Disclosure 1REE
Equal

employment and
rights protection

B1.1 IR - EEEL - FRAREME 51 FTEER  Ex
o miEEEH RIE
Total workforce by gender, Equal
employment type, age group and employment and
geographical region rights protection

9.2 FRENTIF
Tables of Key

Performance

B1.2 IR - FicAN R DNEE 9.2 BRENIIER
MK L& Tables of Key

Employee turnover rate by gender, Performance

age group and geographical region
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B

Details

]

Report Section

B

Remarks

[EMEB2: REHEZE
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

—RIKE

General Disclosure

B2.1 ATEBEMILTHAZB KL=
Number and rate of work-related
fatalities

B2.2 ATEERATIERH
Lost days due to work injury

B2.3 FRIFTER AN B B R B B FE e -

AR EBITRERTTE

Description of occupational health

and safety measures adopted,
how they are implemented and
monitored

S53EEREE k2
B &8
Caring for
employees’
health and safety

5.4 B sriE - BAIE
[CES
People-oriented
protection and
caring

RIFE

Not disclosed

9.2 BARENYIE
Tables of Key
Performance

S3FTRE 2
B &5
Caring for
employees’
health and safety

5.4 BA0LSTRE  BE
GES
People-oriented
protection and
caring
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BR B3 ] B

Indicators Details Report Section Remarks

[BEB3: BEREI
Aspect B3: Development and Training

—RIFE 5.2H¥EEE B

General Disclosure DS
Professional
training for
employee

development

B3.1 BRI REEER (e REEE - 9.2 BRENYIE
RRERES) ASNXIEERS Tables of Key
t Performance

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management,
middle management)

B3.2 BRI REEHEFIED - 8REET 9.2 MBRENTIR
B A T R B Tables of Key
The average training hours Performance

completed per employee by gender
and employee category
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Indicators

]

Report Section

B

Remarks

[EMEB4: B TAH|
Aspect B4: Labour Standards

—RIKE

General Disclosure

51 FEERE - #x

REE
Equal
employment and
rights protection

B4.1 i BB EPINERABRET 51 YEHER  #x
Ko 58 il 85 T REE
Description of measures to review Equal
employment practices to avoid child employment and
and forced labour rights protection

B4.2 RO EHRERBEAREREABER 510 FERERE  #x
FRERERE) 2 B REE
Description of steps taken to Equal

eliminate such practices when
discovered

[ETEBS: HEHEE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

—RIEE 6

General Disclosure

B5.1 iR E S NHEREE
Number of suppliers by geographical
region

B5.2 HEER - mEH 6

ML BRIERMHtE
TEREMNNHERBE  UREH
BHINBITRER A

Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored

o e

employment and
rights protection

BEHERRES
Building
Responsible
Supply Chain

9.2 BREMIIE

Tables of Key
Performance

BEEHEERE
Building
Responsible
Supply Chain

WEHNDETTEEBIEEL - &
SIZEREENEHARABEATE
BOERER

During the Reporting Period, the
Company complied with the laws

and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Company concerning
such employment, such aspects as the
prevention of child labour and forced
labour
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B

Details

]

Report Section

B

Remarks

[EEB6: EmEE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

—RIKE

General Disclosure

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

4 mERBITESE

services

6.1 FREIRIE - B
Eiared
Regulating and
controlling
procurement

BEERDEXERAHEPER 2 HE
IR mRm U E B 9t
Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons

TiEA
Not applicable

EEANERLRGHIRFEE AL 43B0E

CEHE

JESI 5% ik
Number of products and service Caring for
related complaints received and how residents

9.2 BRENTIR
Tables of Key
Performance

they are dealt with

it BL AR R (R E AN AR S BRIE -
1

Description of practices relating to

observing and protecting intellectual

property rights

MiEEREEEMERDYIERF 6.1 RERE - BR

Description of quality assurance o

process and recall procedures Regulating and
controlling
procurement

i

BB EBISRERLERE - b 43BOBR - HE

\

FABBMAT RE R A g
Description of consumer data Caring for
protection and privacy policies, and residents

how they are implemented and
monitored

Providing quality

RERARNLBHNBIEEREATEN
PR% =M - tB6.1 T E A

B6.1 is not applicable, given no service
event occurred during the Reporting
Period that had a significant impact on
the operation of the Company

WERANBRRETANBERRERRE
BER

The Company strictly complied with
the relevant laws and regulations on
protecting intellectual property rights
during the Reporting Period
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EEEH
Report Section

B

Remarks

BHEB7: RES
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

—RIKE

General Disclosure

B7.1 RERHANEET AR EEIRET
EEENEISFREMHNBE LFD
BmR
Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases

B7.2 AP S i R B AR T - A KR AERE
WITREESEITE
Description of preventive measures
and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and
monitored

[EmEBS: HERE
Aspect B8: Community Investment

—RIKE

General Disclosure

BS8.1 EIEREE (NHE BRFE
BIFK - Xt 85)
Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport)

B8.2 EZIHEMEAEIR (NS ERE
fid)
Resources contributed (e.g. money
or time) to the focus area

3518RER
Promoting anti-
corruption and
good governance

351ERER
Promoting anti-
corruption and
good governance

9.2 BARENMTIK
Tables of Key
Performance

351ERER
Promoting anti-
corruption and
good governance

8 MHERHMEEE
Promoting Social
Welfare

8 HERHMEEE
Promoting Social
Welfare

8 HEAEMES
Promoting Social
Welfare

9.2 BAfRE YR
Tables of Key
Performance

WEHNRBESRES - BE - 9R -
HEE R BB R AR EE

The Company did not incur any
litigation cases involving corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering during the Reporting Period

BB BIERERAR /2020 £45% 169



B M B BRI S

4

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

EY:

BERBEZRERDRARR
(RFESHEZMA LA FRAA])

=z
/%\

BMEEZRARBBZERBER AR ([EAQ
al) REMBAE ([EX£E]) H#RNFE180E
298 B MR A BT TSR - ERBER20204F
12 A31 BN EMBMRRE - REBEZEZB L
FEMNGAIERER  TBA2EKRAR £46
EXEHRREARERER  UREBREE
REABRMENLGR A P IERENE

BMRE  REVBHRERBEEE 2R
BE2HMMN BRI EHREER (B
BHEER D EEmMR sRE E5E
2020912 A 31 B RERE B TSR S0 LA R 8
EZALEFENGREVBRERMEESR
2 WEEBBRBESRIKINEREEZREZA
¥ -

RRER

BRMEREEESHAMAS ([FESHA
g ) mmmEEEER ([FAFT LR
EITEZ - BAIRNZFENTHRENAR
TR E RSB REBAENE
E—fE—TRl - REFESTMAGH
FEEERZTA (R BB
R ERE YERBTABRTHEMBERER
£ - HAHRE - RAMESHEZRELR
RMEEMASEFNE R AR -

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Times
Neighborhood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 180 to 298, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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(RESHEZMELZEFRAA])

FEAREFXEE

RREBEZFEEREBAMNEXHE - BB
UAHEEVBRERNERRREENS
B REEREEHSEMERRERET
ERAFULTRE RS R TETRIEN
BRMTEUREFREREBNER - &
METiiE —FREEZD ZNAERIENHE
MHARRE = -

BPMERTARENEHEIR E LA
BRAFENEE—SAHANEE - B4
HZEEBRAENEE - Fit - RANEX
TEBRERANTAEHFGGEAMBHRRTE
A$ERRERL ) R R MR At AR T o HPIEEK
BEFNER (BREMEE TR EERITHE
FF) BB PIBBEM AR S RN ERE
SIRGLERE -

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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BERBEZRERDARR
(RESHEZMELZEFRAA])

FAREXEE (&)

HEEZEE

Key audit matter

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMANBERNAEERREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BER B

Goodwill impairment assessment
2020612 A31H » ESEEAEBKWEFENEE/A
[ #283,957,0007T °

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had goodwill of
RMB283,957,000 in relation to the Group's acquisition of
businesses.

BESFETRENR - SEEEEEMETHNHERER
B R AEBERHE R (BEEZNReEEEM ([3]
SELBEM]) MKREMNBERA  FERAERXRFTAEXE
RAROHI T R fh 5t -

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. The goodwill
impairment review performed by the Group’s management
includes a number of significant judgements and estimates,
including those regarding the identification of operating
profit forecasts, annual revenue growth rates and discount
rates of cash-generating units ("CGUs").

BRI ZES - TARBESHRNEREALEEERE
ZRRAELNERERTBEEIRE MG -

We focused on this area because of the materiality of
the goodwill balance and the complex and subjective
management estimation made by management on the key
assumptions.

ARRERETENEASHEA R EEHNES
MFE3 K16 °

Bk

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about
the goodwill impairment assessment are included in notes 3
and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

B EEHERENETEFEEA TSR

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of goodwill
included the following:

o HENBHEETRHHRATE FLAREETME
SEFRANIARITER

° Involving internal valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluating the methodologies and discount rates
used by the Company for determining the recoverable
amounts;

o ENMAMNBEBEEIE - fINEIREHRRBA R
BRIER - DARPEAHBEARTHE2020F8R S
EABAMMBRE B

° Examining the underlying data used, such as
management’s projection on the future revenues
and operating results by investigating whether
the forecasts were consistent with the financial
performance of each CGU during the year of 2020;

o EHERSELBNMEBERANLBEEENE
SHER RS AT B AEER ;

o Examining the business development plans and
historical annual growth of each CGU to evaluate the
growth rate of each CGU;

o  iHMh BEEEEEENTIEZERREDNTEM
REDH + R

HEITHE

o Assessing the sensitivity analysis performed by the
Group’s management on the impact of changes in
the key assumptions; and

o  AHEBANREENEERBHERAPHBEFE
REEEHI NI SRNGETREREELSE uE’JﬁEﬁ
B °

o Testing the mathematical calculation of the forecasts
and carrying values in management’s impairment
model and compared management’s estimate of the
recoverable amount with the carrying amount of each
CGU.
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Key audit matter

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMNBERNAEEBREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

M20205F12A31H - ESERELEBEEREBARYE
11,974,000 &R EWE 5 HIBEAAREKS574,082,000
Lo BEBFEAREERIERKE SFENEREEEE
([FBHEEEE] - BEXDHEREFEUEBEBEANZ M
BEDEMARNNBHRASET - BEEREEVIER B&

S-S
ErBEBREOXRMEL - SEESREERBIIRAIE T
ERARATEEEELR -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables
of RMB574,082,000, after making loss allowance of
RMB11,974,000. The Group uses a provision matrix
to calculate expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially based
on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group
calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information.

B NE HHOROTREERRABREREE - FH
BENESRALRY REEHEBEA  HRBEES
BEERAL LAY AREEEEEREAHNR
fékt -

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the balance of trade receivables
was material to the Group and the recognition of expected
credit losses was inherently subjective and required the
exercise of significant management’s judgements and
estimations.

ERERYEEZFENRREEBBRENERNGFH BT
BRI Re M BmRMEIR21 -

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about
the provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
are included in notes 3 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BAFEEKEZFRENEREEEERENEXZIF 2
A& :

Our audit procedures to assess the provision for expected
credit losses on trade receivables included the following:

o MEARAREBEEMAFEREE 2% BEBEE
EHEER - ENERIBHEER

° Evaluating and testing the methodologies and data/
parameters used by management, including historical
loss information, probability of default, and expected
losses;

e BBNMIBREFPAEBEEAHNENEZIFEREHHK
B ENIERMITERDMTIEERER

. Executing substantive analytical review procedures
by analysing the fluctuations of major customers’
outstanding balances and trade receivable turnover
days;

0 AR R R EN RS  HEREREM
R E IR E iR 28 E W E 5 R IB R 20204
12 A31 BMERIRMERN RS - &

. Assessing, on a sampling basis, the correctness of the
ageing report of trade receivables at 31 December
2020 prepared by management by comparing the
sample items with the demand notes, sales invoices
and other relevant underlying documentation; and

o RHMEEEHLRSWIERBEEAXMARERE S
FIRHBERAEE BN

. Testing, on a sampling basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables to cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation.
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Key audit matter

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMNBRNNEERRERSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEBEHETZEEER SR

Purchase price allocation for business combinations

REZE2020F12A31BILFE - SEE TAKRES T
MEETENR  c EEREEZREBYA é%ﬁﬁﬁ%%&i%
FEFEERNFESS A RERDBHEMEEARMNE#5
BERBEETMHAE URERKL EEEHISWESZE
ETHEEEROR  EHERENEEARYT75,674,000
T BIERPMEEBEAAMRTFLHAR - EBRAIEARE
215,116,0007T + BNEEERE RN EWE T IFERERS
HHRBMEEEENFEEA R BENSE -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
completed the acquisitions of several property management
companies. Management has engaged an independent
qualified valuer to assist them in identifying the intangible
assets and to perform the valuations of the identified assets
and liabilities of the acquired companies at their respective
acquisition dates and, based on which, management
performed a purchase price allocation exercise for each
acquisition, which resulted in the recognition of intangible
assets of RMB75,674,000, being the identified property
management contracts and customer relationships.
Goodwill of RMB215,116,000, being the excess of
considerations transferred and the amount of non-
controlling interests in the acquirees over the fair value of
identified net assets acquired, was recognised.

ﬁﬁﬁiﬁAm TZBEERIENEZEFEELTA

Our audit procedures to assess the purchase price allocation
for business combinations included the following:

. FEEEBREMNIINEEMNEN BEENRET
9

3 Assessing the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external valuer engaged by
management;

. SHEEEREMNIINMEERMD ANARBKESERE
HZ%AFW“Emﬁﬁﬁi YRR ABGE
BXFHEEEBARABNMGETERTERE

3 Obtaining the valuation reports in relation to the
purchase price allocation for the acquisitions issued
by the external valuer engaged by management, and
engaging our internal valuation specialists to evaluate
the valuation methodologies and discount rates used
by management;
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMNBERNAEEBREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MREBEEHETZIEREER DB ()

Purchase price allocation for business combinations (continued)

BAABRGEIREZNMEERENO AR BETER « SHAANEBEEE  (INEEEERRKRAREESE
BEBE UHRAEBXEBAHELENDE ZFTEAHABK ERTER - HEARAEERABEARTHES KB INBGE
EETRERNEERRNEE MELERIKARRRR (25 MBRAREGERAE -5
FRABRE - EFX - FEEX  YEETREORBTFPEAR

TERHEAFHE) - . Examining the underlying data used, such as

Significant judgements and estimates were involved
in the fair value assessment of the identified property
management contracts and customer relationships and
the recognition of goodwill arising from the business
combinations. These significant judgements and
estimates include the adoption of appropriate valuation
methodologies and the use of key assumptions in the
valuation (mainly annual revenue growth rates, gross
profit margins, discount rates and expected useful lives
of the property management contracts and customer
relationships).

BMEEZES  DHREBIDEEERHREFHER
BREXGAHELRENERN  UAREEEREERR
EHAERIE R T B E R E AT -

We focused on this area because of the magnitude of the
identified property management contracts and customer
relationships and goodwill recognised arising from the
business combinations, and the complex and subjective
management estimation made by management on the key
assumptions.

BEREBAHETZBEBRDENERS T E REE
IR A MR EE3 K30 °

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about
the purchase price allocation for business combinations are
included in notes 3 and 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

management’s projection on the future revenues
and operating results by investigating whether the
forecasts were consistent with the historical financial
performance and business development plans of each
acquiree;

A BEEETEEEREIEZEREDNTEMETHR
REDH R

Assessing the sensitivity analysis performed by the
Group’s management on the impact of changes in
the key assumptions; and

RECHBIIMEERR N REFPBENANRBENAAE
BFFENHERE -

Checking the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the fair value of the identified property
management contracts and customer relationships
and goodwill.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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To the shareholders of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hui Kin Fai, Stephen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

10 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
HZE2020F 128318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2020
it s 20204 20194
AR¥T AREF T
Notes 2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
A REVENUE 5 1,758,427 1,081,341
SHE R Cost of sales 7 (1,227,379) (776,044)
EF Gross profit 531,048 305,297
H AU A R iz Other income and gains 6 23,546 6,078
SHE RIS HEENA Selling and marketing costs (46,885) (10,380)
THAX Administrative expenses (180,274) (124,945)
SRR AEREERE Net impairment losses on financial
BI85 and contract assets 7 (2,154) (3,473)
Hafx Other expenses (2,322) (26,893)
&R AFRE Finance costs, net 8 (8,321) (13,539)
&R Finance expense (8,321) (111,490)
A& WA Finance income - 97,951
25— R E A AR A Share of profit of an associate 18 2,101 3,393
R 258 A A1 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 316,739 135,538
FriS iRz Income tax expense 11 (79,865) (40,214)
FEE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 236,874 95,324
THIFIERE - Attributable to:
[SYNCIEZZ SN Owners of the parent 232,606 96,313
VAR A Non-controlling interests 4,268 (989)
236,874 95,324
BRAREBEREEA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
IS FREF TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 13
HEAR RS Basic and diluted
(AEBRARKESTIR) (expressed in RMB cents per share) 25 13
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B Z22020F12H31HIEFE  Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 20194
AR¥T T ARKET T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
FEME PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 236,874 95,324
Hh 2 HEEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
REEHFITEFTHESE Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may
BREEMEEKA S (EE) : be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
BE N B R R IS RE Exchange differences on translation
HORE 5 =58 of financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries 26,548 (4,153)
REBHRESTEEHHIEE Other comprehensive loss that will not
BmmEME2EEE : be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
BME AR R BHRED Exchange differences on translation of
MEH ZRE financial statements of the Company (90,637) =
FREHEMBHEEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR (64,089) (4,153)
FE2EEARE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 172,785 91,171
T3 B IEFE : Attributable to:
ISTNETE PPN Owners of the parent 168,517 92,160
FEAE IR 2 Non-controlling interests 4,268 (989)
172,785 91,171
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
2020912 H31H 31 December 2020
it s 20204 20194
AR®T T ARET T
Notes 2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BB K& Property, plant and equipment 14 51,931 35,463
EREEE Right-of-use assets 15(a) 11,621 8,825
(RS Goodwill 16 283,957 68,841
HinmEEE Other intangible assets 17 118,307 33,740
R R A RE Investment in an associate 18 64,346 70,522
FEBIEE E Deferred tax assets 19 20,997 21,340
TERHIE - ek Prepayments, deposits and
H th fE U 5R18 other receivables 23 187,296 5,320
EmBEEARE Total non-current assets 738,455 244,051
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 20 2,194 3,763
FEWE 5 F0A Trade receivables 21 574,082 213,482
ERIEE Contract assets 22 12,747 16,524
TBRFIE - ZE Rk Prepayments, deposits and
H b FRIE other receivables 23 72,770 48,375
AAREEFEXFTA Financial assets at fair value
BENemEE through profit or loss 24 76,000 =
ZR&IERITIER Restricted bank deposits 25 124,964 3,540
BeMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 1,047,739 971,207
MENEELRTE Total current assets 1,910,496 1,256,891
it =R CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEE S 50R Trade payables 26 275,467 122,129
H e 5018 K R FEIA Other payables and accruals 27 370,121 242,862
ARAE Contract liabilities 5 131,731 173,614
HEAE Lease liabilities 15(b) 9,254 5,557
PR Tax payable 64,777 39,824
BT B Government grants 200 200
mEEEATE Total current liabilities 851,550 584,186
RBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,058,946 672,705
EERAERTBAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,797,401 916,756
LA continued/...
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Kt et 20205 20194
AR®T T ARET T
Notes 2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
EEABERARBAS TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,797,401 916,756
FFRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEBE Lease liabilities 15(b) 13,096 11,900
IER I #64 Bfy Government grants 156 350
RERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 19 22,452 5,275
JEmB A BB Total non-current liabilities 35,704 17,525
EEZRE Net assets 1,761,697 899,231
R EQUITY
BRARGER AEEER Equity attributable to owners
of the parent
A&7 Share capital 28 8,868 8,170
1 Reserves 29 1,711,465 887,822
1,720,333 895,992
SRR AR Non-controlling interests 41,364 3,239
-yt Total equity 1,761,697 899,231
F#A =k
Wang Meng Zhou Rui
o o
Director Director
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REERBHR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2020F 128318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2020

BATREARSE

Attributable to owners of the parent

iy
ke ROEE  AKEE  BedE:  EiRG 2R Ait FERER  BERAE
AERTTL  ARRTL ARETT ARETR ARETT AERETn ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Wz28)  (Wito9e)  (Wizoom)  (W#290)

Statutory Non-
Share Share Merger surplus  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity

RMB'000 RMB"000 RMB'000 RMB"000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(note 28)  (note 29 (a))  (note 29 (b))  (note 29 (c))

#R2019%1R18 At 1 January 2019 - - 4,400 16,368 (349) 82,299 103,218 4228 107,446
EEFHE Profit for the year = = = = = 9,313 96,313 (989) 95,324
EEEp2ESE Other comprehensive loss for the year = = = = (4153) - (4,153) - (4153)
ER2EMNER Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (4153) 96,313 92,160 (989) 91,17
BORG (NRER) Issue of shares, net of expenses 1,455 729,959 - - - - 31414 - 731414
BMLES Capitalisation issue 6,715 (6,715) - - - - - - -
YE-FHBRA Acquisition of equity interest in

fRAER a subsidiary - - (30,800) - - - (30,800) - (30,800)
ERTITRHNRS Transfer to statutory surplus funds - - - 12,450 - (12,450) = = -
120195128318 At 31 December 2019 8,170 723,244% (26,400)* 29,318* (4,502)*  166,162* 895,992 3,239 899,231
=3 continued/...
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BRARAARE
Attributable to owners of the parent
i3
Rt &R R R
k& ROBE HENRE ARG EH0EE RBERE  EARE  gENE A FERER RE4E
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARETn ARBTn ARBTn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Wi28) (WiE290@) (WE29(d) (KzE29)  (W229() (WiE29(d)
Shares held
for the Statutory Share Non-
Share Share share award Merger surplus award Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium scheme reserve funds reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(note 28) (note 29 (a)) (note 29 (d)) (note 29 (b)) (note 29 () (note 29 (d))
R2020F1A18 At 1 January 2020 8,170 723,244 - (26,400) 29,318 - (4502) 166,162 895,992 3239 899,231
ERAE Profit for the year - - - - - - - 232606 232,606 4268 236,874
EREMREEE  Other comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - - - (64,089) - (64,089 - (64,089)
EE2EHAEE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - (64,089) 232,606 168,517 4268 172,785
BARD (MBREZ)  Issue of shares, net of expenses 698 706,568 - - - - - - 707,266 - 707,266
WEHBAR Acquisitions of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - B8 33857
BETETRBNRES Transfer to statutory surplus
funds - - - - 25,649 - - (25,649 - - -
EENRELERRN Purchase of shares under
BHFEBETHRE  the equity-settled share
award scheme - - (22,198) - - - - - (221%) - (2219
WRELE Equity-settled share award
GO stheme - - - - - 2] - - 1 - 742
W19FRERE Final 2019 dividend - (29,986) - - - - - - (29,986) - (29,986)
#2020%12A318 At 31 December 2020 8,868  1,399,826* (22,198)*  (26,400)*  54,967* 742¢  (68,591)% 373,119% 1,720,333 41,364 1,761,697
* RERBERBRAEGVBRARPORE & These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB1,711,465,000

AER#1,711,465,0007C (20194 : AR#E

887,822,0007T) °

position.

BB BIERAERAR /2020 £ 185

(2019: RMB887,822,000) in the consolidated statement of financial




186

4

[ |
[ |
[ |
HEBHRERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HZE2020F 128318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2020
ftzt 2020F 20194
ARETR ARETIT
Notes 2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
RETHFBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
IR bE! Profit before tax 316,739 135,538
AR Adjustments for:
BERK A FRE Finance costs, net 8 8,321 13,539
D — M E AR R Share of profit of an associate (2,101) (3,393)
RITHSMA Bank interest income (10,570) (1,011)
ME - BERSENE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 14 10,226 7,448
CRESERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15(a) 4,983 3,897
H A BB Amortisation of other intangible assets 17 12,693 4,492
CREAREERBEETE Net impairment loss on financial and
contract assets 2,154 3,473
HEWE  BER Loss on disposal of items of property,
HEHEMER plant and equipment 17 31
HEARARBEFELEA Gain on disposal of financial assets at
BaremEEr ke fair value through profit or loss (4,338) (2,285)
BEE=A BN Government grants released to profit
or loss (2,632) (257)
AR B B AR () BB T BIF Equity-settled share award scheme expense 15(b) 742 =
Covid-1948BE A A S B Covid-19-related rent concessions
from lessors (806) -
335,428 161,472
FERD /() Decrease/(increase) in inventories 2,737 (2,251)
FEWE 558 (3Em) / md (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (316,274) 26,076
EREERD Decrease in contract assets 376 4,450
FBNFE e REMEWFIIE  (ncrease)/decrease in prepayments,
($gm),/ md deposits and other receivables (6,622) 419,676
JE L — e & A B FRIER Decrease in an amount due from
an associate - 482
FERTE S RIEL M Increase in trade payables 130,560 6,921
Hofth TR R R TR IE Increase/(decrease) in other payables
(#m),/ and accruals 43,215 (1,545,358)
BRAE L),/ (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities (49,523) 105,498
T30 8 B 48 A Increase in government grants 2,438 57
R HIRITEZORD ($00) Decrease/(increase) in restricted
bank deposits 1,873 (311)
mEmE /(R B Cash generated from/(used in) operations 144,208 (823,288)
B FEH Income tax paid (56,797) (33,763)
REEBFRE,/(FTR) Net cash flows from/(used in)
RERETFE operating activities 87,411 (857,051)
=3 continued/...
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2020F 20194
ARETR ARBET T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBFE,/(FTR) Net cash flows from/(used in)
REeRETFHE operating activities 87,411 (857,051)
RETHABRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
WER Y FIL.2 Interest received 10,570 98,962
BEME  BFELREER Purchase of items of property, plant
and equipment (18,627) (16,122)
HEME  BERRZEEE D Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
P18 5R18 plant and equipment 43 124
BEHEHEMENEE Purchase/development of other
intangible assets (28,730) (5,983)
BEUAR BEFEXFA Purchase of financial assets at fair value
BalemEE through profit or loss (3,123,490) (1,136,200)
HENA R BEFEILEA Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
BRfEeREENEHIE at fair value through profit or loss 3,074,828 1,150,485
U B ) A 7 SRR B A (B8 Repayment of a loan granted to a
related party - 1,601,000
U BB KT B 2 7] Acquisitions of subsidiaries (425,290) (31,640)
PR HI R T SR N Increase in restricted bank deposits (121,609) =
REEE (FA)/ FEHRe Net cash flows (used in)/from investing
REFHE activities (632,305) 1,660,626
METHFABRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
BITRMDEPTSFE (NKREY)  Proceeds from issue of shares,
net of expenses 707,266 731,414
WHE—KKTB A R MR AR Acquisition of equity interest in a subsidiary - (30,800)
EEBETEN Repayment of a loan from a related party - (5,000)
EREEMTSEN Repayment of other interest-bearing
borrowings - (1,601,000)
BERFE Interest paid (1,071) (99,414)
HENZNESHS Principal portion of lease payments (7,097) (5,717)
BRRE Dividend paid (29,986) =
BERG R ERD Purchase of shares for share award scheme (22,198) =
BMETEHFRE,(FTR) Net cash flows from/(used in)
REeR8Fa financing activities 646,914 (1,010,517)
=3 continued/...
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- GREHESRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HZE2020F 128318 IEFE  Year ended 31 December 2020
it s 20204 20194
ARETT AREFTT
Note 2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BeRASZEYEM NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
(R2) #8 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 102,020 (206,942)
FReRREEED Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 971,207 1,182,349
HNETE R BB 2 H T Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (25,488) (4,200)
FEXRBERBELEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 1,047,739 971,207
BEeRASEEYEHRIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re MIRITHE Cash and bank balances 25 1,172,703 974,747
o XBRHIRITER Less: Restricted bank deposits 25 (124,964) (3,540)
RenERGANRE R Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
BeEEY the statement of cash flows 1,047,739 971,207
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Bt %5 3R & B &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
General information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 12 July 2019. The registered office address
of the Company is 71 Fort Street, PO Box 500, George Town,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1106, Cayman Islands. The Company'’s
shares became listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK"”) on 19 December 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the Company’s subsidiaries were involved in the provision
of property management and other relevant services in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd., which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), and the
ultimate holding company is Renowned Brand Investments
Limited (“Renowned Brand”), which was incorporated in the BVI.
Renowned Brand is wholly owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (“Mr.
Shum”), the founder of the Company and the Group.
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2020412 H31H 31 December 2020

1. RAREEEHR (&)

MEARZER

ARAREEZMBERRZFEOT

4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ARG

RMAY BRIk CRT%ERE BAEZEIL
Z8 e B SRR EHE L3 TEED

Percentage of

Place of Issued equity

incorporation/ ordinary/ attributable to
establishment registered  the Company Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
RFERAA ([RF]) &S/ 18T - 100 REER

201412 A5H

Peace Power Limited Hong Kong/ HKD1 Investment
("Peace Power") 5 December 2014 holding

BT EERFR AR R HRERT, AR# - 100 MEER
(TEM TR RmEER ) (MiEb) 1998412 A18H 500,000,0007T

Guangzhou Times Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB500,000,000 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 18 December 1998 management
(“Guangzhou Times Property
Management”) (note (b))

BMNTRRBECEERERAR HE BB, AR - 100 REER
(TEMERAE |) (ML) 200948 A31H 11,000,0007T

Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/ RMB11,000,000 Investment
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd 31 August 2009 holding
(“Guangzhou Times Neighborhood")

(note (a))

HILTIERRERYEERRRARA HE RERM, AR - 100 MEER
(MEm AR ]) (HEEb)) 200247 H29R 1,000,0007T

Foshan Shunde Hetai Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB 1,000,000 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 29 July 2002 management
(“Foshan Hetai") (note (b))

BINBENEEERRAR RE R ERL, AR - 100 A=t
(TEMEZE]) (FEb)) 1995472 A28H 9,000,0007%

Guangzhou Wanning Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB9,000,000 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 28 February 1995 management
("Guangzhou Wanning") (note (b))

B/ continued/--
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RAREEER (F)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

M AR 2 &R (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)

RABEFEMBARIZHFBENOT ¢ Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(&) (continued)

VN2
AL IR BRALZERE RIEZEILL
Z8 REHE afRAE  EHE L3 TEEH
Percentage of
Place of Issued equity
incorporation/ ordinary/  attributable to
establishment registered  the Company Principal

Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect activities

wETRENEEEERAA RE RER, AR - 100 NEER
(TEREmRE]) (b)) 200146 A6H 500,0007C

Zhuhai Yuanxing Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB500,000 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 6 June 2001 management
(“Zhuhai Yuanxing”) (note (b))

BRMARYEEERRAA R HRERT, ARE - 100 MEER
(NEEmEZE ) (K5Eb) 200841 A6H 5,000,0007C

Qingyuan Rongtai Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 6 January 2008 management
("Qingyuan Rongtai”) (note (b))

BINREDERBERAD A RE S RER, N - 100 MREERIREMH
(TEMERRE]) (M (b)) 200446 A3A 100,000,0007C MBURE RS

Guangzhou Dongkang Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 Property
Services Co., Ltd. 3 June 2004 management
(“Guangzhou Dongkang”) (note (b)) and provision of

municipal
sanitation services

BRELEHERAR R RERT, ARH - 70 BRRE
(T =E ) (FE(Db)) 199612 A19H 10,000,0007T HE R

Joan Elevator (Guangdong) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB 10,000,000 Elevator
(“Joan Elevator”) (note (b)) 19 December 1996 installation,

sale and
maintenance

RMNBECKREERRAA RE S RERM, AR - 100 REER
(MR EReE 1) (s (b)) 20206 A18A8 5,000,0007%

Xuzhou Mengmu Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 18 June 2020 holding
(“Xuzhou Mengmu”) (note (b))

® continued/---
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2020412 HA31H

31 December 2020

RAREEER (F)

MELEZ2ER (&)

ARRTEMBRRZHBMOT :
(&)

4

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

VN2
MR IR BRALZEREK RIEZEILL
8 REHE afiRAa EHE L3 TEEH
Percentage of
Place of Issued equity
incorporation/ ordinary/  attributable to
establishment registered  the Company Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
BMNTHEL L TIRERAA RE S RER, N - 100 BRhTE
(TEMmHE 288t ) (FRE(b) 2015412 A22A 100,000,0007T
Guangzhou Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 Construction
Intelligent Engineering Co., Ltd. 22 December 2015 and installation
(“Guangzhou Neighborhood
Intelligent”) (note (b))
BMNTRREEBBEBEERAR R RERT, AR¥ - 100 REER
(TEMmRAAEI ) (PHEED)) 201459 A2H 10,000,0007% FATAR S
Guangzhou Times Linlibang PRC/Mainland China/ RMB 10,000,000 Provision of
Network Technology Co., Ltd. 2 September 2014 information
("Guangzhou Times Linlibang”) technology
(note (b)) services
BN KM R RREHR AR A A B RER, AR - 100 RURRRT
(EMmERMBERR]) (F5E(D)) 201948H268 20,000,0007T
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 Provision of
Environmental Protection 26 August 2019 environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. protection
(“Guangzhou Times services
Neighborhood Environmental
Protection”) (note (b))
BMNTEBYEERERAR B RER, AR - 100 MEER
(TENER 1) (HiEE(b)) 2006512 A6H 100,000,0007T
Guangzhou Haoging Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB 100,000,000 Property
Services Co., Ltd. 6 December 2006 management
(“Guangzhou Haoging”)
(note (b))
g continued/:*
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RAREEER (F)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

MELR &R () Information about subsidiaries (continued)
RABEFEMBARIZHFBENOT ¢ Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(&) (continued)
VN3
MR KL R BRALZERET REAEZEIN
£ REHE aAfRAa  EHE L3 TEEH
Percentage of
Place of Issued equity
incorporation/ ordinary/  attributable to
establishment registered  the Company Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
EMNTRAMEERERAF R REA, AR - 100 MmEEE
(TEMBH ) (7 (b)) 200345A7H 100,000,0007T
Guangzhou Yaocheng Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 Property
Services Co., Ltd. 7 May 2003 management
(“Guangzhou Yaocheng”)
(note (b))
BNmEREREERAA RERER, AR - 100 T
(TEMZRE]) (P (D) 2020564A178 10,000,0007T
Guangzhou Yigizhu Home PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 Retail
Furnishing Co., Ltd. 17 April 2020
(“Guangzhou Yigizhu")
(note (b))
RS ERBAERAR RERER, AR - 51 MEER
(I LiERiat]) (HiaE(b) 2009%7A78 20,408,2007T
Shanghai Kejian Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,408,200 Property
Services Co., Ltd. 7 July 2009 management

(“Shanghai Kejian”) (note (b))
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by the directors of the Company
to translate the Chinese names of these companies as they do
not have any official English names.

Notes:

(@)  Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the laws of
the PRC.

(b)  Registered as domestic enterprises under the laws of the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

BB BIERERAR /2020 #4195




4

B 3% 8RR B R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020412 H31H 31 December 2020

21 B EEE(F) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material

and IAS 8

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
Amendment to IFRS 16, the adoption of the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and the above revised
standards has had no significant financial effect on these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or
less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding
the change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii)
there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application
permitted and shall be applied retrospectively.
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DISCLOSURES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly lease
payments for the leases of the Group’s buildings have been
reduced or waived by the lessors as a result of the pandemic
and there are no other changes to the terms of the leases.
The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2020 and elected not to apply lease modification accounting
for all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a result of
the pandemic during the year ended 31 December 2020.
Accordingly, a reduction in the lease payments arising from
the rent concessions of RMB806,000 has been accounted for
as a variable lease payment by derecognising part of the lease
liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2020.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
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statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17
Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 16
Amendments to IAS 37
Annual Improvements to

IFRS Standards
2018-2020
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS
(continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

2 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June

2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs
may result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations
and financial position.
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POLICIES
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of an associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investment in an associate, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its certain financial assets at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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POLICIES (continued)

AREETE (&) Fair value measurement (continued)

R BRRFTEXRBAREBEDOA All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or

EQE&EF HARBE AR BES disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the

EEREMEBEEANRIEE R AZSUE fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

BIAAREBEBRETHER level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

EF— — EREREEXEE Level 1 = based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
EERMHSHRE markets for identical assets or liabilities
(REEAE)

B —  AERFEESNEEE Level 2 -  based on valuation techniques for which the
ENHAREEFE lowest level input that is significant to the fair
MEBEANRKE value measurement is observable, either directly
B A\ R /9 (& (B B i or indirectly

E=M — HEREZHERNEA Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
ARBEAEMSEE lowest level input that is significant to the fair
A H) A AR [E 8 A BUR value measurement is unobservable
& (B 1 i

MEREEEENMEREABERANEE For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial

RBEME  AEERZHEHRE statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether

BHAREBEFEEEMNEEEAN transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by

ZEBWARBENIHOE  EE reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that

TRIBRMBESEEERS - is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, financial assets and deferred
tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each of the reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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2AFTESHHEME (&) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

)yl Related parties
ETHBERT - BEEALHERER A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
ESEIRS] )i
(@ BALTR—BALTHZALTRIE (a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
BBLERE - MR AL family and that person
() BAEEBEGHESER (i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
PRI
(il HEAEBEEARATEN (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
=
(i) AAEEXESQANE (iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
ZEBRABH—EKE Group or of a parent of the Group;
% or
(b) FZATRFE NIEMA—IERM (b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
NEES : applies:
() ZERBEASEBER-—% (i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
ERCE AR group;
(i —HEELRS—EE (IS (i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
*ET‘&;%E’\]QET NN entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
AIKE R B A R]) AEE 2 of the other entity);
RElKEERE
(i) ZERBEASERR % (iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
ZHHEERE same third party;
vy, —HERBAE=AEHEN (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
aEE ME—EBBEAR other entity is an associate of the third entity;
BEH —REE

(v) E EBRAEAEEFER (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
EEEBNERNES benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
7T'Jmlffﬁ % 37 B BB 12 1@ A related to the Group;
FTEl
(vi) ZEEX(a)ERMHAL (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
PRI R person identified in (a);

206 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



24T BT BERME (&)

B (&)

(b) EALAFA FIIER—H

ERE - (&)

(vii) (a)(i)E R0 A+ ¥
BEEAFENAA
B(AREBNG AR
TEEBAR R

i}

x
a
B
A

\r

= NN
=

(vii) ZEBHAEKER—HD
& B{E IR 8 A A [A AR
SERAEEF REREH
TEEEABR -

M BERRERRTE

ME - BE K& E (ERTRERIN T
BRAR R E RMEARERED
R-ME BELREEHEBERLTERE
HBEERAREZREEZETH
A RE B B DA VR B E s O (E ] B %
FERTRXAS ©

ME - BELRKBEBEFRELN
S (Planig e RREXH) —BRE
ELXMERED AR o frzE 2 R
BE . AX2REXHREEREE
PRAERNREBERA - [HY%E - K
FEERENEELIAIKEE - A
AEEKZEBOERSETEAE
RERNERNEE - WHRERTE

FEDREREEREYE BE M
RBEEE NG AIERFRA - K%
HENKAMEE LR REERTE -

BEMEANEZFRMNT ¢

THEMERE 18%-50%
RE 19%
/N 9.5%-19%

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 18%-50%
Motor vehicles 19%
Office equipment 9.5%-19%
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents office equipment under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software, contract cost and licenses
Software, contract cost and licenses are stated at cost less any

impairment loss and is amortised on the straight-line basis over
its estimated useful life of 5 to 10 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Property management contracts and customer
relationships

Property management contracts and customer relationships
acquired in business combinations are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The property management contracts and
customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful lives of
the respective contracts of 2 to 20 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Development cost is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Development cost not yet available for use is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired. Development cost is reclassified to software when
available for use.
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POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Buildings
Motor vehicles

2 to 10 years
3 to 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of certain buildings
and motor vehicles (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment that is considered to be of low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement date,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the lease payments and related payments (including the initial
direct costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount equal
to the net investment in the lease. The finance income on the
net investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return
over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified
as a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is
a short-term lease to which the Group applies the on-balance
sheet recognition exemption, the Group classifies the sublease
as an operating lease.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

EARAEERAERAR /2020 F5® 215




4

B 3% 8RR B R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020412 H31H 31 December 2020

2AFTEEHWEME () 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

RIEBIATHEE (&)

AEBAEREWN-—HEEMSH
EMEMENRET L —HEN k-
HEeFdmRORBTZREERAE
B B B [ #RIA R (R BB AR SE o fif EL I
BEENEREZAEENBARS
Rl KO B EERZAEEN
ZHIHE - AAEESIZEFES RN
REEERIACEREE

ERBERT » NEEITREREREEA
B -CEREERMABEAEDNRAR
RAKEDREOENREENERE

i -

HWAREEREEREERNTARF
B2R AIAZEERREERAE
BEXAEENHELR (AREER

%) 5 -
TREERE

AREBEBRAALIEARAEBEFEL
STABEMBAMNES T EEREAY
FEER([BEHMEEER] £F - B
HEEBBRNDURBESHOENNGH
RenERAEEEHEIRNMER
ERECANEZRLSEE  RRFE
SR RAD R I IR o AR IR
BEREBERAHEMBEAERRRSE
HURFRAR B & 1 H A5 A I8 AR I8 M Y
RERE °

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement.

In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At the end of each of the reporting period, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 30 days or 180 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for

which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2

Stage 3 Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress, comprises direct materials and
direct labour. Net realisable value is based on the estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liabilities arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the statement
of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods and services is transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a)  Property management services

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed
amount for services provided on a monthly or quarterly
basis and recognises it as revenue in the amount to which
the Group has a right to invoice and that corresponds
directly with the value of performance completed.

For property management services income from properties
managed under a lump sum basis, where the Group acts
as a principal and is primarily responsible for providing the
property management services to the property owners,
the Group recognises the fee received or receivable from
property owners as its revenue and all related property
management costs as its cost of services.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include construction site services, sales assistance services,
pre-delivery cleaning services and estate agent services. The
Group agrees the price for each service with the customers
upfront and issues the monthly bill to the customers which
varies based on the actual level of services completed in
that month. Revenue is recognised when the services are
rendered.

(c)  Community value-added services

Community value-added services mainly include daily
value-added services provided to property owners and
residents and the sale of goods. Revenue from daily
services is recognised when the services are rendered and
revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer. Payment of the transaction is due immediately
when the community value-added services are rendered to
the customer.

(d)  Professional services

Professional services mainly include the installation, sale
and maintenance of elevators, intelligent engineering and
municipal sanitation. Revenue from sales commission, and
the sale of elevators and elevator parts is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the end customer and revenue from the provision of other
professional services is recognised when the services are
rendered. The Group agrees the price for each service with
the customers upfront and issues the bills to the customers
which vary based on the actual level of services completed
in that month.
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POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis, using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument of the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration
that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as intangible assets,
costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. Further
details of fair values are given in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’'s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain proportion
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension scheme (continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for the
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

Employees of the Group in Mainland China are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised housing funds,
medical insurances and other social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees on a monthly basis.
The Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contribution payable in each year. Contributions to the housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements is presented in RMB, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial information of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss from change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currency of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries
is HKD. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are included in note 19 to these
financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill was RMB283,957,000 (2019:
RMB68,841,000) as at 31 December 2020. Further details are
given in note 16.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of goodwill (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the net carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., customer type and service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of goodwill (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 21 to these
financial statements.

Useful lives of software, property management
contracts and customer relationships

The estimate of the useful life of software is based on the
purchase contract indicating that the Group can use the software
in 10 years, or in the case where no validity period is stipulated
in the purchase contract, the historical experience of the actual
useful life of software of a similar nature and functions which is
5 years.

The estimate of the useful lives of property management
contracts is based on the validity period of property management
contracts from 2 years to 8 years or, in the case where no
validity period is stipulated in the property management
contracts, the historical experience of the period of 20 years for
which the Group was engaged to provide similar services. The
estimate of the useful lives of customer relationships is based on
the historical customer attrition rates of the respective acquirees.
The estimates based on historical experience are updated as
necessary if more relevant historical experience is obtained.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of goodwill (continued)

Fair value assessment of the identified property
management contracts and customer relationships
and the recognition of goodwill arising from business
combinations

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the
fair value assessment of the identified property management
contracts and customer relationships and the recognition of
goodwill arising from business combinations. These significant
judgements and estimates include the adoption of appropriate
valuation methodologies and the use of key assumptions in
the valuation (mainly annual revenue growth rates, gross profit
margins, discount rates and expected useful lives of the property
management contracts and customer relationships). See notes
17 and 30 for more details.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the provision of property management
services, value-added services to non-property owners,
community value-added services and professional services.
Information reported to the Group's chief operating decision
maker, for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment, focuses on the operating results of the Group as a
whole as the Group's resources are integrated and no discrete
operating segment information is available. Accordingly, no
operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived solely
from its operation in Mainland China. Except for the Group’s
certain property, plant and equipment amounting to HKD 13,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB11,000) (2019: Nil), the
Group’s non-current assets are located in Mainland China.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from Times
China Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Times China
Group”) contributed 24.6% (2019: 24.8%) to the Group's
revenue. Other than the revenue from the Times China Group,
no revenue derived from sales to a single customer or a group of
customers under common control accounted for 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019.

5. REVENUE
Revenue from contracts with customers

(a) Disaggregated revenue information

2020%F 20194
AR¥T ARETF T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
BERF R E B RRAS ¢ Services transferred over time:
b EERLY Property management services 1,009,483 677,811
JE E IR E RS Value-added services to
non-property owners 393,700 275,478
(R IEE RS Community value-added services 135,474 76,610
HERK Professional services 107,259 26,917
1,645,916 1,056,816
RE—SHEBEM Goods transferred at a point in time:
e F IR E RS Value-added services to
non-property owners 28,496 -
1R 2B RS Community value-added services 50,679 2,542
BHER Professional services 33,336 21,983
112,511 24,525
1,758,427 1,081,341
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
Contract liabilities

The Group recognised the following revenue-related

R&aE: contract liabilities:
20204 20194
AR®T ARBET T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000

ARAE Contract liabilities

—%£=5 — Third parties 122,620 171,221
L — Related parties 9,111 2,393
131,731 173,614

AEENERAEIERE AR
AR RBOIAKREPHE -

TRERTAREHOERAE
MRAREAREROBA S

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
receipt in advance from customers when the underlying
services are yet to be provided.

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was

% included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:
20205 20194
ARBTT AR¥ETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
L EARE Property management services 108,292 38,835
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REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Property management services, value-added services to
non-property owners and professional services

The Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals
the right to invoice which corresponds directly with the
value to the customer of the Group’s performance to date
on a monthly or quarterly basis. The Group has elected
the practical expedient for not disclosing the remaining
performance obligations for these types of contracts. The
majority of the property management services do not have
a fixed term. The term of the contracts for value-added
services to non-property owners and professional services
is generally set to expire when the counterparties notify
the Group that the services are no longer required.

Community value-added services

The services are rendered in a short period of time which
is generally less than a year and there was no unsatisfied
performance obligation at the end of the respective
periods.

6. Htlx AR Wz= 6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

HEaWA KRBT T : An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:
2020 20194
ARBTT ARKETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
RITHBUA Bank interest income 10,570 1,011

HEUAAEBEFELFAIEBZHN  Gain on disposal of financial assets at

SRLE E R fair value through profit or loss 4,338 2,285
IEEREH:Y Government grants 2,632 257
BREBBGESR Tax incentives on value-added tax 4,660 1,974
Hith Others 1,346 551
23,546 6,078
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

THIBETER
ft 7+ 20204 20194
AR®T R ARKET T
Notes 2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
B IR A AR TS A AN * Cost of services provided* 1,174,524 753,649
EHETFEKA Cost of inventories sold 52,855 22,395
Y - BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 14 10,226 7,448
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15(a) 4,983 3,897
H A& A 8 Amortisation of other intangible assets 17 12,693 4,492
kY n I Research and development costs:

ERFESZDN Current year expenditure 3,233 886
1% £ B 35 B Auditors’ remuneration 2,734 2,288
EBERMAX (EER&ES Employee benefit expense

FTIRA B 8937 B BR S (excluding directors’ and chief

(fF7E9)) : executive's remuneration (note 9)):

TERES Wages and salaries 618,342 502,032
BRI ETEIHE R Pension scheme contributions 27,298 56,521

AR S E R Equity-settled share award
BRI X scheme expense 29 530 =

B HttEEEEENMEERE Less: Amount capitalised in
other intangible assets (2,487) (2,324)
643,683 556,229

eRRkERBEEEER Net impairment losses recognised/(reversed)

(B[ fY R EE 855 on financial and contract assets

— BUE Z 5K — Trade receivables (1,247) 3,473

—aREE — Contract assets 3,401 _

2,154 3,473
HEMRY Rental expense

—HHHEE — Short-term leases 13,578 9,582
- KEEEEHE — Leases of low-value assets 703 433
14,281 10,015
RITHBUA Bank interest income (10,570) (1,011)
BT B Government grants (2,632) (257)
SNIE [E5 185 58 Foreign exchange losses, net 130 68

HEUAAEBEELF A Gain on disposal of financial assets at
ExferBENYE fair value through profit or loss (4,338) (2,285)

FABRERBAAR (BEESET
X Y% BERERENE  Hifp
BREAEBHERAERAN) AFAR
#560,880,0007T (20194 : AR™
505,020,0007T) ° & E&BEMBEE £
XEBEOEEFAAEF °

* Cost of services provided for the year included an aggregate

amount of RMB560,880,000 (2019: RMB505,020,000) which
comprised employee benefit expense, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, amortisation of other intangible assets and
rental expense. This amount was also included in the respective
expense items disclosed above.
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8. BERAFHE 8. FINANCE COSTS, NET
ftat 20204 20194
AR®T R ARKET T
Note 2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BER - Finance expense:
HEBRNFERAX Interest expense on lease liabilities 1,071 677
WAE L EEHF BT Interest expense arising from
revenue contracts 7,250 12,695
HAn A SR Other interest expense - 167
BEERBFNFERZ Interest expense on asset-backed securities - 97,951
8,321 111,490
BREA - Finance income:
R S R EEROF S A Interest income from a loan granted to
a related party 33 - (97,951)
BLE R A F R Finance costs, net 8,321 13,539
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9. EERESTHAER 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

N REMUNERATION

B EMRA - BB R AEFIE383(1) Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
(@) (b)) OERMOEERAT (HBEES disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
MzmER) BOIFE 2B EENFANES (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
EERSTHABHMMAOT : of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

20204 20194
AR¥T AREET T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
ik Fee 900 45
E AT Other emoluments:
e R REMEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,873 1,761
ERERE RS Performance-related bonuses 2,145 1,952
VARG HE 45 B YR 1 SR Eh &t 2 F 2 Equity-settled share award
scheme expense 212 -
BRIREET BN Pension scheme contributions 148 126
5,378 3,839
A Total 6,278 3,884
NERN ETEEREBEAQIHNIRG During the year, certain directors were granted share awards,
EETEI KR ERNAEBRENIRE in respect of their services to the Group, under the share award
ERFRMER - & — S EENE scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
KM E29 - EREBHANIER in note 29 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
RERNZEEREN AR BERE options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
HHEEBETE  MAFEMBRRAAS or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
SHEIFALMEERESTRAES of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
B3 25 o for the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief

executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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9. EERESTHAEH 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
N (88) REMUNERATION (continued)
() BYFEHITESE (a) Independent non-executive directors
BYFRTEEFNFERESN The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
T during the year were as follows:
2020 20194F
AR¥TR ARKETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
EBEREE Mr. Lui Shing Ming, Brain 300 15
=L AEL Dr. Wong Kong Tin 300 15
N EELT Dr. Chu Xiaoping 300 15
9200 45
FERNEEIB IERITEEN There were no other emoluments payable to the
H AN (20194 : 48) o independent non-executive directors during the year (2019:

Nil).
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9. ITBRAEHR 9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

o
It

EEN
F (4

(b) EERBSITHRAR

i}

(b) Directors and the chief executive

20204 2020
e BER B URELEN Bk
ENEF HBEEE RORBEX HE N FHes
ARETR AR¥BTr ARETrn AR%®Tr AR%Tx
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related share award scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
WIES: Executive directors:
THLL Ms. Wang Meng 1,244 1,240 53 40 2,577
HgEat Ms. Xie Rao 488 314 53 34 889
HhBFH & Mr. Yao Xusheng 621 296 53 34 1,004
Azt Ms. Zhou Rui 520 295 53 40 908
2,873 2,145 212 148 5,378
FHTES Non-executive directors:
B#tkE Mr. Bai Xihong - - - - -
X Mr. Li Qiang - - - _ _
2,873 2,145 212 148 5,378
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9. EENEETHRAED 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
N (88) REMUNERATION (continued)
b)) EEREBESTHAER (b) Directors and the chief executive (continued)
(#&)
20194 2019
e R B BRE
BEWEF e AT &K e
AREET T AREET T ARETIT AREET T
Salaries,
allowances  Performance- Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
WITES - Executive directors:
TRt Ms. Wang Meng 476 1,223 48 1,747
At Ms. Xie Rao 503 234 15 752
kBT Mr. Yao Xusheng 530 265 15 810
ISk kedan Ms. Zhou Rui 252 230 48 530
1,761 1,952 126 3,839
IEMITES - Non-executive directors:
SEZ PP Mr. Bai Xihong = - - _
PRt Mr. Li Qiang = - - _
1,761 1,952 126 3,839

FABBESTIRRTBRABRK
RRFBHEEAFHMEOLEE

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

BARAEERAER AT /2020 £, 245




4

B 3% 8RR B R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020412 H31H 31 December 2020

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

10. A8 RSHMES

FRN IEZmaiMNEERENAE
E(BEETHRAE) (2019F : =
HEE (BEERRITTHAR)) » EHE
FEBEHR L EE o FN 0 Efh—
Z (2019 : MB) &= T MES (G

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
directors, including the chief executive (2019: three directors,
including the chief executive), details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining one (2019: two) highest paid employee who

AARESHHERITHRAE) O MF is neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
BT : follows:
20204 20194
ARBTT ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
e EZEREMER Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 493 970
ERAE RS Performance-related bonuses 284 515
VAR 48 B O AR 10 B2 ED 7 =2 Equity-settled share award expense 40 =
BRI ETEIHK Pension scheme contributions 6 31
At Total 823 1,516
FMUNATHEENFER MRS The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
TBABNSRSHMEBAZNT : paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
band is as follows:
EEAZ
Number of employees
2020 20194
2020 2019
Z 2% 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HKD 1,000,000 1 2

RER - AR AREBERHEN RS R
—EBHEERBRRTRAERRSH
(e & &% H A 1p 1208 - HE— P FE1E
HRMBHRERM T 292 HES - ZF
BREZAAEBE(EEXREBHAR
BaRER) ZELBMEE - mER
AERZHBHRRZEBEHR Lt
FEELHERTBRAEESHHE
B2 HmES -

=Ry — =3

RERAREEFE  BESSHUE
ENEHEEREEMHH - BAE
B EMZESRERABMNEM

F M E R E AN A TR 5 B 12 1) 22
By kBER A (E o

During the year, share awards were granted to a non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect of
his services to the Group, further details of which are included
in the disclosures in note 29 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

During the year and in prior years, no highest paid employees
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration and no
remuneration was paid by the Group to these members of senior
management personnel as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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AEBERAEBKE QR PFERE
ERENRBREEERELZLME
MR EZEREERMAFHR - RIE
MEREMNABHAREENHRAR
AR RREREMNABHEBARES
Rl avA: NS E AR ok
EAAENR - AEBREEEEASE
et AERFRALERETBEL
EATRERFBRAE

SR B R A B b AT RO BT B8 2 Bl 2B
IR E BRI 25% NP B EER
([ZEMER]) MEHF - R2020
FoAEERTRAMEENE TH
BRAARIZEX15%820%NERDZET
BEBE o

11. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules
and regulations of the Cayman Islands and BVI, the entities of
the Group which were incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
BVI are not subject to any income tax. The Group was not liable
for income tax in Hong Kong as the Group did not have any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China are
subject to the PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") rate of 25% for
the reporting period. Certain subsidiaries of the Group operating
in Mainland China enjoyed a preferential CIT rate of 15% or
20% during 2020.

20204 20194

AR®T AREF T

2020 2019

RMB’ 000 RMB"000

BNHEAFTIS B Current income tax 81,351 43,240
EREFTS R (MI5E19) Deferred income tax (note 19) (1,486) (3,026)
FAHBERE Total tax charge for the year 79,865 40,214
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2020412 H31H 31 December 2020
1. FrEH (&) 11. INCOME TAX (continued)
AN T REKXZ SN E D T M A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
AR EERZEIEMRTERNEAR tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the
BMATAEORIER S - EIRERB X Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
STEMFIER S AEERDT the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:
2020F 20194
ARBTR % ARETT %
2020 2019
RMB’'000 % RMB’ 000 %
GV Profit before tax 316,739 135,538
AR E Tax at the statutory tax rate
SAEEHE 79,185 25.0 33,885 25.0
75 B 75 B AR Y Lower tax rates enacted
BEH X by local authorities (1,296) (0.4) (806) (0.6)
MALBEREMBEAR Effect of withholding tax at
BRI 2k 10%  10% on the distributable profits
STEEHTRNTE of the Group's PRC subsidiaries - - 3,000 2.2
AERFLFEER  Tax incentives on eligible expenses (2,449) (0.8) (256) (0.2)
JE(E—REEE S A BFE  Profit attributable to an associate (525) 0.2) (848) (0.6)
R Expenses not deductible for tax 4,701 1.5 5,219 3.9
RERR TR EE Tax losses not recognised 249 0.1 20 =
BEASEEREE Tax charge at the Group's
AHEORE effective rate 79,865 25.2 40,214 29.7
12. k2 12. DIVIDENDS
BEECEBEE2020F12A318IE4F The board of directors recommended a final dividend of RMB7.1
ERARSBREBRARE7 NS - cents per ordinary share totalling RMB69,983,000 for the year
A5t AR % 69,983,0007T (20194 ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB29,986,000).
AR#29,986,0007T) °
REFERAREALEARTRRER The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
BT BFE NE EHER - approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

FAEE - annual general meeting.
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B.EAREERERIFEA
BiEZRER

BREABANDIBEFAZT AR LB
BaFE ARG BEARFRE T
@A R hNAE F 9 80942,845,000 /%
(20194 : 752,616,0000%) 5+ & -

BREAREERNHFTETIER

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 942,845,000 (2019: 752,616,000) in issue during the

year.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are

based on:
2020 20194
2020 2019
2 Earnings
BRAEEERTE ARG Profit attributable to ordinary equity
(AREFT) holders of the parent (RMB’000) 232,606 96,313
x5 Shares
FAEEITE BRI T Weighted average number of ordinary
(A& shares in issue during the year
(in thousand) 942,845 752,616
STl Earnings per share
EXREE (FRARED) Basic and diluted (RMB cents per share) 25 13

AREBREE2020F K% 201912 A

BTALFEMECD HTEEREER

B e

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,

respectively.
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2020412 H31H 31 December 2020

14. Y% - BERFRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HENEEE AE WARME HRIR &t
ARETR AR%TR AR¥Trn AR%®TR AR%¥Tx
Leasehold Motor Office Construction
improvements vehicles  equipment in progress Total
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
2020%€12A31R 31 December 2020
202061 A18 : At 1 January 2020:
AR Cost 18,649 1,945 35,806 - 56,400
2EHE Accumulated depreciation (7,298) (912) (12,727) - (20,937)
EEFE Net carrying amount 11,351 1,033 23,079 - 35,463
2020F 1818 At 1 January 2020, net of
BB ZRENE accumulated depreciation 11,351 1,033 23,079 - 35,463
NE Additions 3,317 2,509 11,608 2,784 20,218
UrBE R B AR (BiH3E30)  Acquisitions of subsidiaries
(note 30) 396 782 1,275 4,083 6,536
)= Disposals - (49) (11) - (60)
FRFRINE Depreciation provided
during the year (4,250) (840) (5,136) - (10,226)
R2020912 4318 - At 31 December 2020, net of
Bk ZNE accumulated depreciation 10,814 3,435 30,815 6,867 51,931
20204128318 : At 31 December 2020:
AR Cost 22,362 4,531 48,510 6,867 82,270
2EHE Accumulated depreciation (11,548) (1,096) (17,695) - (30,339)
REFE Net carrying amount 10,814 3,435 30,815 6,867 51,931
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14. 9% - BEK&E (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
HE
MEEEE E VN A&
AREFTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTET
Leasehold Motor Office
improvements vehicles equipment Total
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
2019%12H31H 31 December 2019
2019118 : At 1 January 2019:
%N Cost 10,925 1,622 30,503 43,050
ZEHinE Accumulated depreciation (5,379) (618) (9,048) (15,045)
BREFE Net carrying amount 5,546 1,004 21,455 28,005
20191418 - At 1 January 2019, net of
EHRRAITE accumulated depreciation 5,546 1,004 21,455 28,005
RE Additions 8,739 160 5,051 13,950
U B BT 8 2 &) Acquisitions of subsidiaries - 322 789 1,111
L& Disposals - (26) (129) (155)
FRNEHRITE Depreciation provided
during the year (2,934) (427) (4,087) (7,448)
R2019%12H31H © At 31 December 2019, net of
EMRREITE accumulated depreciation 11,351 1,033 23,079 35,463
2019412 A31H : At 31 December 2019:
%N Cost 18,649 1,945 35,806 56,400
2t e Accumulated depreciation (7,298) (912) (12,727) (20,937)
BRELFE Net carrying amount 11,351 1,033 23,079 35,463
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15. /& 15. LEASES
AEBEREEA The Group as a lessee
AREBEANEEBRELENERE 5 The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings,
BERFAREZEABENHEESY motor vehicles and office equipment used in its operations.
BFHECHBBER2E10F - M)A Leases of buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 10
B BB E AITAE - WAFREL years, while motor vehicles generally have lease terms between
FHHRE ATBB12EA &/ @R 3 and 4 years. Office equipment generally has lease terms of 12
RENEERE - months or less and/or is individually of low value.
(a) ERAEEE (a) Right-of-use assets
FRAREEFEREEE ZEEE The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
RE&HINT : and the movements during the year are as follows:
g5 RE =i
AR¥F T AR®T ARET T
Motor
Buildings vehicles Total
RMB’ 000 RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
R2019%1 A1 H At 1 January 2019 3,703 403 4,106
= Additions 8,616 - 8,616
EEZEA Depreciation charge (3,653) (244) (3,897)
201912 A31B X At 31 December 2019 and
20201 A1H 1 January 2020 8,666 159 8,825
= Additions 4,652 927 5,579
HAUERB AR ZAE Additions as a result of the
(FfF5E30) acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 30) 2,200 - 2,200
WESR Depreciation charge (4,607) (376) (4,983)
1202012 A31H8 At 31 December 2020 10,911 710 11,621
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15. 5 (&) 15. LEASES (continued)
NEBEEAFABA (B) The Group as a lessee (continued)
by MHEAE (b) Lease liabilities
FRESAGBEZERENMESMN The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements
e during the year are as follows:
20204 20194
ARETT ARKETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
M1 A1 B ZREE Carrying amount at 1 January 17,457 4,469
MEE New leases 5,579 8,616
ARENB AR ZAE Additions as a result of the acquisition
(BF3E30) of a subsidiary (note 30) 7,217 10,089
FAEERNREE Accretion of interest recognised
during the year 2,025 1,296
KA H A Z B Covid-19 Covid-19-related rent concessions
EENHSER from lessors (806) =
(BN Payments (9,122) (7,013)
®12 A31 B ZERMEE Carrying amount at 31 December 22,350 17,457
DA Analysed into:
ENEE D Current portion 9,254 5,557
FERENEB Non-current portion 13,096 11,900
HEABEZEHEASTFEENE The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
BT MIFE36 ° 36 to the financial statements.
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15. 5 (&) 15. LEASES (continued)
NEBEEAFEBA (B) The Group as a lessee (continued)
() MRIEFPHEANHEEMHEBREN (c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
T leases are as follows:
20204 20194
AR®T T ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
R ELE AR Interest expense on lease liabilities
HEBENFERX recognised in finance costs 1,071 677
PEMUA N SR E  Interest expense on lease liabilities
BENFERHRX recognised in other income and gains 954 619
TREEENITEERR Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets 4,983 3,897
B ER MR Expense relating to short-term leases 15,856 9,582
HIREEEEHERMIM  Expense relating to leases of
low-value assets 703 433
R 2 P SR A R IE AR Total amount recognised in
profit or loss 23,567 15,208
(dy MEZRESRBAEFRBRNIE (d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31(c)
HFMIEE31(0) to the financial statements.
NEEEAELHAA The Group as a lessor
AEEREREHELHEHAETY The Group sub-leases certain properties consisting of two
¥ (PEMBETREEYE) B commercial properties in the PRC under finance lease
FAHAGE 104 - MEKZAEE L arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms of six to ten
HEPYNERESYREBERITHR years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
WATEHM S FHE - 22020412 A pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
318 AEFE7EBAKEFEEAEA according to the then prevailing market conditions. The Group
E#11,901,0007C (20194 : AR had a net investment in subleases amounting to RMB11,901,000
#8,076,0007T) © WA FREEZE) JIH as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB8,076,000). The changes
RERNEWEN B AT mEinARK of net investment were a result of an increase of RMB7,374,000
7,374,000 70 & B Uk B e I A8 E 5 2R im due to the acquisition of a subsidiary and a decrease of
S ANR#3,549,0007T ° RMB3,549,000 due to the receipt of lease payment receivables

during the year.
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15. 78 (&) 15. LEASES (continued)
AEEEAHBA (E) The Group as a lessor (continued)
R2020F 12 A318 » AEB R AR At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments
FREEEME P L8l A & receivable of the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
HENEWRFTIRBENTIUALRIT operating leases with its tenants and the reconciliation between
REENTHEEEREFENEEMN the undiscounted lease payments to the net investment in the
T: lease are as follows:
20205 20194
ARETT AREETTT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
—FLAR Within one year 5,343 3,362
—FREMERN After one year but within two years 3,549 3,445
MEZRB=FRA After two years but within three years 1,303 2,297
= FRBNFR After three years but within four years 1,356 =
MERERER After four years but within five years 1,411 =
AFENE Over five years 1,113 -
14,075 9,104
HizmE WA Future finance income (2,174) (1,028)
HERE TR Net investment in the lease 11,901 8,076
16. B & 16. GOODWILL
2020 20194
ARBTT ARKETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BM1A1TAZHRA REEEE Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 68,841 47,230
Ue BB B~ 7 (KisE30) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 30) 215,116 21,611
W12 A31 B2 A K EREE Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 283,957 68,841
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16. B & (&) 16. GOODWILL (continued)
BERELNSR Impairment testing on goodwill
NEBFEBEBKAMHBNENTEE H The Group’s goodwill acquired through business combinations
BEZU T ERSEAEM ([REE was allocated to the following nine cash-generating units
BN VETRENR - Z2FR e ("CGUs") for impairment testing. The recoverable amounts
EAEBEMNAKESENFERERSE of these CGUs have been determined based on a value-in-
BEEINNAFHMEEENR SR use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
EEIHEFEREEETE - budgets covering a five-year period prepared by management.
7A2020%F12A31H As at 31 December 2020
BEz FWA
BREE BRE TRE
ARBTR
Annual
Carrying revenue
amount of growth Discount
ReELEN  CGU TEEY Principal business goodwill rate rate
RMB’000
BMNEE Guangzhou Wanning Y EE Property management 22,462 0% 18.95%
Il &% Foshan Hetai MEER Property management 3,607 0%-30% 18.76%
TR R Zhuhai Yuanxing b ELg Property management 2,429 0% 19.01%
BLEG Joan Elevator ERRERMEE Elevator installation
and maintenance 18,732 1% 20.26%
BEMESR Qingyuan Rongtai MEER Property management 2,543 0% 18.39%
=) ﬁﬁ Guangzhou Dongkang ~ #EER Property management 19,068 0% 18.83%
BN Guangzhou Haoging MEER Property management 12,662 19% 17.711%
Ed\lﬁ&ﬂﬁ Guangzhou Yaocheng  ¥¥ &R Property management 2,467 0% 18.93%
HMNBEERE  Xuzhou Mengmu REZER Investment holding
ERERAT Corporate
Management
Company 199,987 14.8%-17.5% 17.70%
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16. & (&)

EERERNE (&)

2019412 A31H

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

BEZ FIA
RHEE BEX BB
ARETT
Annual
Carrying revenue
amount of growth Discount
ReEEEN CGU TEXK Principal business goodwill rate rate
RMB'000
EMNEE Guangzhou Wanning  #%%E 12 Property management 22,462 0%-5% 16.48%
BILTAZE Foshan Hetai MEER Property management 3,607 0%-5% 16.64%
TR T R Zhuhai Yuanxing MEER Property management 2,429 0%-5% 16.64%
L EH Joan Elevator BRLR RAEE Elevator installation
and maintenance 18,732 0%-200% 20.77%
BRMER Qingyuan Rongtai MEER Property management 2,543 0% 16.61%
M ER R Guangzhou Dongkang #1% &2 Property management 19,068 0% 16.46%

& Fiti2020412 A31H X%2019
F12A3MBReEAEMNNERER
BEERARR - EEBEAETEER
BEARMBEASENREEEEMNR
SREMRIBOSEEZREBOT ¢

FHEE - FRAFRE/BATRE -
I R EARB E LA A ERR

FRAZERE — RNFEBRRAESF
EHRSEEEMNARAERE
RN EEREENRRZ—

HZE2020F %2019 12 A31 B 1L
B AEEEREEECHARRESE
EBENEREERE -

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of
the above mentioned CGUs for 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019. The following describes each key assumption
on which management had based its cash flow projections
of the respective CGUs to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Annual revenue growth rate — The predicted revenue growth
rate of CGUs for the five years subsequent to the date of
assessment is one of the assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculations.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
management of the Group determined that no impairment of
goodwill should be recognised for the CGUs.

BARAEERAR AT /2020 £58, 257




4

— [
[
[ ,
B % R 3k MY &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2020412 H31H 31 December 2020
16. F & (&) 16. GOODWILL (continued)
BEREISR (8§) Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)
ANEBETEED Y25 EAEET Management of the Group has undertaken sensitivity analysis on
BRI DT o TRE|YIAIEA E M the impairment test of goodwill. The following table sets forth
FERBITENBRLTEBBERN the hypothetical changes to discount rate or annual revenue
202012 A3 1 HE AR S ELEMN growth rate that would, in isolation (with all other variables
e £ ERENHEHEmENITE X remained constant), have caused the recoverable amount of
REW A R KA RS EF : each CGU to be equal to its carrying amount as at 31 December
2020:
FRAERERD IR =L
Decrease in
annual
revenue Increase in
REEEEN CGU growth rate discount rate
BMNE=E Guangzhou Wanning 3.22% 2.63%
BT a %R Foshan Hetai 8.33% 2.60%
TR T R B * Zhuhai Yuanxing* Not applicable Not applicable
TiEA TE A
B Joan Elevator 2.27% 1.26%
BERM AR Qingyuan Rongtai* Not applicable Not applicable
TiEA TE A
B R R Guangzhou Dongkang 8.24% 3.85%
BN B Guangzhou Haoging 4.00% 1.92%
& N iR 3 Guangzhou Yaocheng 5.78% 4.39%
RINBEREERERAT Xuzhou Mengmu Corporate
Management Company 2.82% 1.03%
* ERAEEFENFEZRINEMEIE @ Any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions of the
AREES T e8I RmERRARSE value-in-use calculation would not cause the carrying amount to
EBRRATRESEE exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.
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17. E B EE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NEEESH
gy REFBHF BRRA E{EEES R &3t
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR
Property
management
contracts
and customer  Development Contract
Software  relationships cost cost Licenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2020612 331H 31 December 2020
R202051 418 : At 1 January 2020:
A Cost 25,836 16,423 2,652 1,422 - 46,333
ZEHEH Accumulated amortisation (6,304) (6,289) - - - (12,593)
REFE Net carrying amount 19,532 10,134 2,652 1,422 - 33,740
20201 A1HZRA + Cost at 1 January 2020, net of
B bR 25T 3 accumulated amortisation 19,532 10,134 2,652 1422 - 33,740
E Additions 184 - 12,006 - 6,830 19,020
AE - N Additions - internal development - - 2,487 - - 2,487
Rt B AR (Mz30)  Acquisitions of subsidiaries
(note 30) 79 75,674 - - - 75,753
g% Transfer 11,191 - (11,191) - - -
FRETRES Amortisation provided
during the year (4,748) (7,278) - (316) (351) (12,693)
120208124318 At 31 December 2020 26,238 78,530 5,954 1,106 6,479 118,307
20206124318 : At 31 December 2020:
KA Cost 37,290 92,097 5,954 1,422 6,830 143,593
ZEHEH Accumulated amortisation (11,052) (13,567) - (316) (351) (25,286)
REFE Net carrying amount 26,238 78,530 5,954 1,106 6,479 118,307
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2020412 H31H 31 December 2020
17. At B EE (& 17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
NEERER
g REPHEE R BRKAR At
ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Property
management
contracts
and customer  Development Contract
Software  relationships cost cost Total

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000

2019%12831H 31 December 2019

201961718 : At 1 January 2019:
5% Cost 16,477 10,448 49 = 26,974
2EH Accumulated amortisation (3,775) (4,326) = = (8,101)
REFE Net carrying amount 12,702 6,122 49 = 18,873

720191 818,274 © Cost at 1 January 2019,

REIlESE 5 net of accumulated
amortisation 12,702 6,122 49 - 18,873
NE Additions 9,220 - - 1,422 10,642
NE - AERE Additions — internal development - = 2,635 = 2,635
e Acquisitions of subsidiaries 107 5,975 = = 6,082
#i Transfer 32 = (32) = =
FRFHREH Amortisation provided
during the year (2,529) (1,963) - - (4,492)
R2019F12A31H At 31 December 2019 19,532 10,134 2,652 1,422 33,740
R2019F12 8318 : At 31 December 2019:
A Cost 25,836 16,423 2,652 1,422 46,333
s Accumulated amortisation (6,304) (6,289) - - (12,593)
REFE Net carrying amount 19,532 10,134 2,652 1,422 33,740

260 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



18. ¥ —RBZE A RIMNEKRE 18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

20205 20194

AR¥TR AR¥ETTT

2020 2019

RMB’' 000 RMB"000

E(EEEFRE Share of net assets 64,346 70,522
REEBERARFENOT - Particulars of the Group's associate are as follows:

NEBEMG TR
= FE % B 2 4tk B EREDL FEEK

Percentage of
Place of ownership interest

registration attributable Principal

Name and business to the Group activity
BEMNTRARRE N RERRODERAR ([EMNEED FEHEA 30 &
BEMTERBRE N EERRNDER QA

Guangzhou Times Rongxin Micro-credit PRC/ Money

Co., Ltd. ("Guangzhou Rongxin”) Mainland China 30 lending
EMNGEE (HEANREEME ABLAA Guangzhou Rongxin, which is considered a material associate of
7)) BREERBRIEAESME  REK the Group, is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in money
BERE > WERBEZEAE - lending and is accounted for using the equity method.
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2020412 H31H 31 December 2020

18. 4 — R A TR E

(#&)

TERHWEMBEOABERBE

4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

i EN R e s R LA ERE information in respect of Guangzhou Rongxin adjusted for any

MR Vo BGRaWBRERNERR

differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying

L amount in the consolidated financial statements:
20204 20194
ARETT ARBET T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
MENE E Current assets 251,607 241,792
FEREBEE Non-current assets 126 119
U JN=Ni Current liabilities (37.247) (6,839)
BEFE Net assets 214,486 235,072
BN &R B A B i A R O RE 2 T B Reconciliation to the Group's interest
in the associate:
B Pk T A RELL B Proportion of the Group's ownership 30% 30%
AEE LGB E QAR EEFE Group's share of net assets of the associate 64,346 70,522
KEREE Carrying amount of the investment 64,346 70,522
WA Revenue 30,624 19,664
FAFERZEEALRRE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 7,003 11,310
EEIRKRE Dividend declared 8,277 —~

262 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Bt %5 3R & B &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

19. BEHRIBEERERE 19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEEBBEEE Deferred tax assets
R ERRNBEEHEEEZSIT : The movements in deferred tax assets during the reporting

period are as follows:

st RER
SREE B RRAHB

BESE HEBERE RERRA X BB A%

ARBTR AR®TR ARETR AR%TR AR®TRT AR¥T:R
Accrued
Provision for liabilities
impairment  Unrealised and
losses on revenue future

financial received in  deductible Government
Tax losses assets advance expenses grants Total

RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000

®2019F1A1H At 1 January 2019 1,906 2,468 614 7,590 113 12,691
YRR A Al Acquisition of
a subsidiary - 42 - 3,073 - 3,115

EREtA /(B E)  Deferred tax
BaEMELERIE credited/(charged)
to profit or loss during
the year (816) 868 2,326 3,186 (30) 5,534

72019912 A31H R At 31 December 2019
2020F1H1R and 1 January 2020 1,090 3,378 2,940 13,849 83 21,340
EREtA /(B E)  Deferred tax credited/
BRMELEHE (charged)
to profit or loss during
the year (478) 476 920 (1,231) (30) (343)

F2020F12 A318 At 31 December 2020 612 3,854 3,860 12,618 53 20,997

BB BIERAER AT /2020 £ 203



4

B 3% 8RR B R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020412 H31H 31 December 2020

19. ELEHIBEENKREAME  19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(#8) (continued)
EEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities

RIEHRNBEEFIRAEZLEWT : The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the reporting

period are as follows:

WEME LR Fh i B B A B
S A S R B R
BEHAR ZHE &5t
AR®T T ARBTRT AR®TR
Fair value Taxes on
adjustment  undistributed
arising from  profits of the
acquisitions subsidiaries
of subsidiaries in the PRC Total
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
7201951818 At 1 January 2019 1,278 - 1,278
U B FfT B8 A ) Acquisitions of subsidiaries 1,489 = 1,489
FRN(GTA) /KRB Deferred tax (credited)/charged to
B IRES 18 profit or loss during the year (492) 3,000 2,508

M2019F12A318 &
202041 A1H

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020 2,275 3,000 5,275

W EEH B A R (MI3E30) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 30) 19,006 = 19,006
FRFABSHELETIE Deferred tax credited to

profit or loss during the year (1,829) - (1,829)
72020512 A31H At 31 December 2020 19,452 3,000 22,452

MW2020F12831H  AEBAEF
BEBAMMEENE THEBEEAAR
#£2,104,0007C (20194 : ARM
1,404,0007T) * % EEEA AEEE
Sz FEHEL  LWEEEE2AF
MARERFFE - ARKBARE
£ BEESEEIE B ERBEA B
MmO AR EMBIIEERE IR
ZEBIERRECHEEE -

The Group had certain tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB2,104,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB1,404,000),
which can be carried forward for a definite period from the year
in which the losses arose for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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20.

FEHEEER S S

(&)
EEBEEE ()

RIEFBECEEMERE)  RPBERA
MK INERE D EREIMNEEE
EIRMEEABKLI10%TEHNT o %R
FER2008F 1 A1BER  LEAR
2007F 12 A31 BENAF - 44 H
AN BN B B AT E R A B B ]
SR TEAERA) - B A BRAK H E AR A
Ko gALEEME BEBEE10%
(20195 : 10%) - A B A AR
ZERTERNA B AR E
20084 1 A1 HEEREF TR EF %
BERTEIR -

MR20205 128318 @ AL BN
B 93t X 37 RO BT B A R FE R An TR AR
B R TE H 2 F AR #494,088,0007T
(20194 : AFR#236,793,0007T) &Y
FERBEIRME - W RERTMIET
B -E2RAE ZZEMBARER
Bk Erg o REBEAT

Bt %5 3R & B &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10% (2019:
10%). The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

No deferred tax has been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of RMB494,088,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB236,793,000) that are subject to withholding taxes of
the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.

FE 20. INVENTORIES
2020%F 20194
AR®T T AREET T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
ERETRE Work in progress 80 1,874
H et Other materials 2,114 1,889
2,194 3,763

BRBBIERAER AT /2020 £ 2065
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+
21. BN E 5 FIH 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES
20205 20194
AR®T T ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB"000
RaRs 7 (MiaE33) (FsE(a)) Related parties (note 33) (note (a)) 388,456 112,280
£=71 (K Db)) Third parties (note (b)) 197,600 114,542
586,056 226,822
A Impairment (11,974) (13,340)
574,082 213,482
Bt Notes:
(@) W B S FIEERE R ANBERE (@)  Trade receivables from related parties are due in six months upon
BN EAREE - the issuance of demand notes.
(b) HYEEERRBHNEKESKIEMm (b)  For trade receivables from property management services, the
EAKBERFEXAGEIMESE Group charges property management fees on a quarterly or
BE  HAEFSEZEHABARREDE monthly basis and the payment is generally due upon the issuance
AR o SEE M AR T B FE UL 5 RRIA T of demand notes. For trade receivables from other services, the
FOARBEEFHNRSGRAEER Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit and
B8 BEEHR—MRA=HEAR - the credit period is generally within three months.
AN £ B ) skg A% 1 i EL SR U [B1 A/ FE i The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
HIE - ERETHEaRHER - E receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
REXF R AEENERE S KA management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
HAELZT/ICRPER  FALT&ESE that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of
REESEFER - BB ZHIELT diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
ETE o credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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U

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade
reporting period, based on the

Bt %% R R MY

2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

(continued)

receivables as at the end of the
demand note date and net of

N loss allowance, is as follows:
20204 20194
AR®T AREF T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB"000
—FE AR Within 1 year 557,653 194,038
—EMF 1 to 2 years 11,394 13,948
ME=F 2 to 3 years 3,970 3,925
=ENF 3 to 4 years 922 1,313
MERSF 4 to 5 years 143 258
574,082 213,482

FEWE 5 SRR EE R R ENZEEH M

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

™ receivables are as follows:
20204 20194
ARETT AREFTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
F4) At beginning of year 13,340 9,867

B (E) R Net impairment losses (reversed)/

REEEFRE (WE7) recognised (note 7) (1,247) 3,473
Hi 88 A 1 A] W 2] k8 Amount written off as uncollectible (119) -
FR At end of year 11,974 13,340

REHS BHRABEREETRE
D AFTERBEEEE - BEX
DERAEFRUBEEANZEATP
DRARNAHERETE (REFR
BRBRGRE) o ZEtERBREA TN
BER B¥RBEKNREAHATE
RMAERBE SRR - BN FORRE
BIRHEANSERATEEE

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., customer type and
service type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted

outcome, the time value of
supportable information that is

money and reasonable and
available at the reporting date

about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.
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21. EWWEB BT 1E (8) 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
T EY B BFEREERETENAN Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
EFEWE SHEZERBHER on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:
$=h
(FEH) $=5(B84) BEn
Third parties - Related
not past due Third parties-past due parties
08 -Flh  -ZRE WE=E ZEMF  MERE  RENLE fit
Less than 1t02 2103 3tod 4to5 Over
Current 1 year years years years years 5 years Total
R202012831A At 31 December 2020
RlEEERE Expected credit loss rate - 970%  1459%  3040%  54.42%  87.96%  100.00% -
REAB(ARETT)  Gross canying amount
(RMB"000) 123,610 50,483 13,340 5,704 2,023 1187 1,253 388,456 586,056
REEEBFE(ARETT)  bopected credit losses
(RMB"000) - (4,8%) (1,946) (1,734) (1,101) (1,044) (1,253) - (11,974)
R20195125318 At 31 December 2019
REEEERE Expected credit loss rate - 8TA%  1438%  31.03%  59.64%  84.05%  100.00% =
FESEARETT)  Gross carying amount
(RMB"000) 35,468 52,536 14,359 5,691 3,254 1,618 1,616 112,280 226,822
REEEEE(ARETT)  bopected credit losses
(RMB"000) - (4,592) (2,065) (1,766) (1,941) (1,360) (1,616) - (13,340)
A=)
22. EREE 22. CONTRACT ASSETS
2020 20194
AR¥TR ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
REUTEENEREE : Contract assets arising from:
BERTS Professional services 16,148 16,524
A Impairment (3,401) =
12,747 16,524
GREEFEZERASEN S HRENE The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights to
REEBE R TR ERE TRRE consideration for work completed but not billed at the end of
BORER) B B8 o = AHBEHE IRk B I & each reporting period. The contract assets are transferred to
" AREEFERZRENE SR trade receivables when the rights become unconditional. The
HoAEEEEPHZFGBEAREE Group's trading terms and credit policy with customers are
BUR B BB B IS SRR M 5E 21 - disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

22. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

20204 20194

ARET T AREF T

2020 2019

RMB’ 000 RMB"000

F1 At beginning of year - =
BRI EEE (F15E7) Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 3,401 =
FR At end of year 3,401 =

REHRS BHRABEEEETRE
o AETERBEEEE - FES
REERHREEBRENBEEERAR
BRESHRENREEE  REARER
BENRKREZRATIREERETP
B o Lt ERBMIARNELER - &
BREMMBREAMASHEBBE
EI8 - E AR BRI R TROR
MAEERAISEER

NXEDI AR A R B A
SEAREEEERRNER

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates for the measurement of the expected credit
losses on the contract assets are based on those of the trade
receivables as the contract assets and the trade receivables are
from the same customer bases. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s contract assets using a provision matrix:

20204 20194

2020 2019

FEHEEBEX Expected credit loss rate 21.06% =
FREAE (ARETT) Gross carrying amount (RMB’ 000) 16,148 =
FEHEEER (ARBTT) Expected credit loss (RMB’000) 3,401 =
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23.

24.

31 December 2020

FEMNRIE ek HA
EI‘I&/TAIE

4

23.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

20204 20194
ARBTT ARKETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FEfTFRIE Prepayments 192,085 5,896
REEFIELHER Payments on behalf of property owners 16,169 3,667
b a Deposits 22,227 27,452
HEREFE Net investment in the lease 11,901 8,076
H b fE U KB Other receivables 5,391 3,757
Amounts due from related
e W A 7 58 (B9E33) parties (note 33) 12,293 4,847
aEr Total 260,066 53,695
BERER Current portion 72,770 48,375
FEBNEREL 7 Non-current portion 187,296 5,320
a&t Total 260,066 53,695
7K2020F12A31H - KHEEREFE Except for the net investment in the lease, other receivables
AN - Efth JEICRIA SRR - R R were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand
RIZEKER - as at 31 December 2020.
AL EERTRTE The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
fo R ECEk Rm B R IE ) R R IR B receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
78 o 7’2020F %2019 124318 - past due amounts. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the loss
BB E ARE - allowance was assessed to be minimal.
. -\-
LRAAREESTEINF A 24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
ERHNEemEE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2020F 20194
AR¥TR ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FEMKE  BAREE Unlisted investments, at fair value 76,000 =

Eai3F ETRE AP EAMRITET
MIEMER - BEOBRUAAEE
SAEYFABSENEREE  RER
HENREREXFESINEE R
B e

The above unlisted investments were wealth management
products issued by banks in Mainland China. They were
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal
and interest.
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5. B ENBEEEBYNRS 25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PR %48 T 12 2% RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

20204 20194

AR¥T T AREET T

2020 2019

RMB’ 000 RMB" 000

Re RIRITH R Cash and bank balances 1,172,703 974,747

B LR BIRITIER Less: Restricted bank deposits (124,964) (3,540)
ReRBEEFED Cash and cash equivalents 1,047,739 971,207

MN20205F12A31H @ REBUA
REFENHESRRITEHRABAR
#514,791,0007T (20194 : AR¥E
289,972,0007T) - AR AI B A A
MK B E - Al - RIBFPEAH
CONEEBIEH) R CHEE - SIE RJE
BIEMRE)  NEBEERBEREE
THONEXEBORITEAREELBAHR
EHE

RITARSRIBEE BRTERMNERT
B EERBAE - |RITERTFRER
BRIF OIHRBENCENRT -

R2020612 A318 @ ZEHIRITFER
FEREEARLEBHRIENEKIF R
MIRTTHR ST RUARAREBEZERTF
AEERERPNER  HEBAR
BB AR FEARNRE -

As at 31 December 2020, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB514,791,000
(2019: RMB289,972,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The restricted bank deposits as at 31 December 2020 mainly
comprised of cash deposits in the banks as security for
issuance of performance bonds and deposits in the designated
escrow accounts in the name of the Group which would be
subsequently paid to settle the considerations arising from
acquisitions of subsidiaries.
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26. B+ B 5 RIA 26. TRADE PAYABLES
MNEREHAREN B EFHNENE An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of each
SHIEREBR DT - reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
20205 20194
AR®T T ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB"000
—FE AR Less than 1 year 263,941 114,913
—FE Over 1 year 11,526 7,216
275,467 122,129
ERNEBIHBEAERBRETE - B Trade payables are unsecured and non-interest-bearing and are
MELOBHRAEE - normally settled based on terms of 60 days.
27. B EN B R ESTIE 27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2020F 20194
AR®T T ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
B IE REF Payroll and welfare payables 180,285 116,390
At FE AN TR Other tax payables 14,618 10,022
REEENIES RERRIA Deposits and temporary receipts from
property owners 64,549 51,809
FEETIA B K& E A R FIR Accruals and other payables 105,846 63,329
A BA B 5 2 A (MizE33) Amounts due to related parties (note 33) 4,823 1,312
370,121 242,862
7202012 A31HX20194F12 A31 Other payables were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
B HMENKEBEAEER THE repayable on demand as at 31 December 2020 and 31
RIZERER - December 2019.
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28. IR 2 28. SHARE CAPITAL
20204 20194
2020 2019
JETE ¢ Authorised:
2,000,000,000 % 2,000,000,000 (2019: 2,000,000,000) 20,000,0003& 5T 20,000,000 7T

(20194F : 2,000,000,0000%)
FRXEEO0.01 & JTH) & @A

ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each HKD20,000,000

HKD20,000,000

BRITRER
985,672,747 1%
(20194 : 908,672,747 %)
SREME.01E T E B

Issued and fully paid:
985,672,747 (2019: 908,672,747)
ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each

9,856,727 & T
HKD9,856,727

9,086,727 7T
HKD9,086,727

EER Equivalent to AR#E AR #&
8,868,000 8,170,0007T
RMBS8,868,000 RMBS,170,000
RAGIRALEHHE2MT - A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:
ERITROHE R
ARBT R
Number of
shares
in issue Share capital
RMB' 000
201947 H12H Issue of share at 12 July 2019
(FEfAAL B 8) 297D (date of incorporation) 1 =
1201998 A2 HE1TR M Issue of share at 2 August 2019 1 =
BT Capitalisation issue 746,852,745 6,715
EPNNGE S Initial public offering 161,820,000 1,455
M2019F 12 A31H%2020F181H At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 908,672,747 8,170
AT New issue 77,000,000 698
K2020F 12 A31H At 31 December 2020 985,672,747 8,868

7202097 H820H + 77,000,000%
BHERESBRMD10.228 THET
BT BESNRE (HKRHEZA)
#$786,940,000/8 T (FHE R AR
713,928,0007T) °

On 20 July 2020, 77,000,000 shares were issued at an issue
price of HKD10.22 per share for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HKD786,940,000 (equivalent to
RMB713,928,000).
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31 December 2020

29. & iE

ARERE N RBEFEOHES B
RASDLERNGARREDE -

(a)

(b)

(c)

MR AD B

AEBERD & EREEERRRDN
EE(E o

BOHEE

B R IE A D B RGP AR B AT
B AR B AEE AN K E
ETERARARRMBEN LR
ZH TR B A R 2 KA Z B
ERE o

EERBLAEE

REBHECREDE) RAEREE
AL BB B~ R AR = 12 4R
A - & H AR HE B AR R E
FREH BN Z TIANEERGR
o REESRED EEMRE AR
BAZATH  AIATERE
ERETEER I AN SEARE
EARFTEE TRHEIFBERT
EEBSBFEEE RAREAERE
K88 /338 0T A BRI - 1
BRBRENGEHRIBINESE
AMERANBEDZ —+Hh ° &
BRI BERRI B ZINE
Az - T MERRESREHETT
DK °

4

29. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents the capital
contribution premium from its then shareholders.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represented the difference between
the Company’s shares of the nominal value of the paid-up
capital of a subsidiary acquired and the Company’s cost of
acquisition of a subsidiary under common control upon the
Reorganisation undergone by the Group.

Statutory surplus funds

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC, the Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net
profits after tax to the statutory surplus reserves until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations and in the articles of association of the Group,
the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase the share capital
of the subsidiaries, provided that the balance after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital of
them. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other than
those for which it is created and is not distributable as
cash dividends.
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(d)

BARAD BB ET B R 1D 2R
Bf#EFENRED

MR2020F9 8238 ([HMHE
H]) » AD R E RN 2B
& ([RHDEEETEl]) - BER
AETRERBELNNERIS TR
SHE - USBESHELER
BERAEE - IR IEE TS 8%
4 H BB AT T FHAR A B R 4
WA o

RIZA 1D BB AT BIIR B T AR
A EFESAERREZERIS
BENEANAERALBREE
# o ARSI (REAEEE
M E) BBORE - RO &S
Bt ZEF BB XA ([ X
FEAD) M5 L AR A RER A
BEEBE - WREMRD ZE S
MR AR A RER2EE
KA e

HZE2020612A31BIEFE -
ZHEANESRBEMDL7.755 7T
(HERAR®G6.637T) FH
BN HEA3,350,0000%A%
o BEEEA25,967,0008 7T
(HERARK22,198,0007T) °

BR20204F 11 A13H
3,350,000 & & 10 B BRI iR 17 82
BrEETETHETES (B
EE) FIREARHEE IR
BRTERBENOBA &5 - RIA
REAREBNERMET -

RAES (BEESE) BENRD
mE @ RERMKD R 2024F3 A
3TABEBRARA @ HEFZSE
ABAERRDEETENES
SR HAE T R AT AT
FEEG(REETERME
HERREZE) FAl{ER -

R2020F12 A31 BHE FHIRH
NABEAT.86HE T (HEMA
R¥6.997L) - AEBRERH
A& 17 82 Eh 51 2 HE R AR 7 22 2
ANR#742,0007T °

Bt %5 3R & B &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

29. RESERVES (continued)

(d) Shares held for share award scheme and share

award reserve

On 23 September 2020 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company announced to adopt the share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme"”) with objectives to recognise
the contribution by certain employees and give incentives
thereto in order to motivate them for the continual
operation and development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and remain in force for a
term of ten years commencing from the Adoption Date.

Subject to the terms of the Share Award Scheme and
the Listing Rules, the board of directors may at any time
make an offer to any eligible person it may at its absolute
discretion select to accept the grant of an award over
such number of shares as it may determine. Shares will
be acquired by the independent trustee (the “Trustee”) of
the Share Award Scheme on the market out of the funds
contributed by the Company and be held in trust for the
relevant participants in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Award Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 3,350,000
shares were purchased by the Trustee from the market at
an average price of approximately HKD7.75 (equivalent
to RMB6.63) per share, with an aggregate amount of
HKD25,967,000 (equivalent to RMB22,198,000).

On 13 November 2020, 3,350,000 shares were granted
to selected current employees (including directors) under
the Share Award Scheme. The number of shares granted
is determined based on the selected employees’ position,
experience, performance and contribution to the Group.

For shares granted to employees (including directors),
the awarded shares will be vested to the grantees on 31
March 2024, provided that all vesting conditions (including
but not limited to all relevant performance targets) of the
Share Award Scheme or stipulated in the letter of award
received from the board being satisfied by such grantees.

The fair value of the shares granted on 31 December
2020 was HKD7.86 (equivalent to RMB6.99). The Group
recognised a share award expense of RMB742,000 during
the year in relation to the Share Award Scheme.
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30. ¥ 56t 30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

ToWBS REBERE - PREME
EER -

W B R N S B

AR M T B R D B B N U S B B
RIRZ R FA 20204 3 A 24 BT S A i
EEHE BENTRABEAARE
30,723,000 LAY 3R & KB UK BB R E M
SERE100% RIMRANAE RS » ENER A —
A AR B AR A2 O W 2B 1R e T A AR
HER (BRETH) - WEE 2020
FAATK - Bt - BINEBKARE
EHHBAR -

FENER RS BN A R EE N
BEMAREEEBENT

The acquisitions below allow further business expansion on
property management for the Group.

Acquisition of Guangzhou Haoqing

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement entered into by
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood and the then shareholders
of Guangzhou Haoging on 24 March 2020, Guangzhou Times
Neighborhood acquired a 100% equity interest in Guangzhou
Haoqing at a cash consideration of RMB30,723,000. Guangzhou
Haoging is a property management and urban public services
provider established in the PRC with limited liability. The
acquisition was completed in April 2020. Since then, Guangzhou
Haoqing has become a subsidiary of the Group.

The aggregate fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Guangzhou Haoqing, as at the date of acquisition, were as
follows:

YRR E TR
NRBE
ARETTT

Fair value recognised
on acquisition

RMB"000
ER S E T Property, plant and equipment 4,652
Hi B & Other intangible assets 5,464
& Inventories 342
W E 5 FIE Trade receivables 9,060
TANFIE - Ze REMEKRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,516
Re kB EEY Cash and cash equivalents 6,510
ERESHIE Trade payables (666)
HAbFEI 508 R ERTIH B Other payables and accruals (7,389)
EREE Contract liabilities 1)
JEA TR Tax payable (20)
EERBEEE (EE19) Deferred tax liabilities (note 19) (1,387)
BWEEEFENRAEE Fair value of net assets acquired 18,061
YRR EE Goodwill on acquisition 12,662
AIRE Satisfied by cash 30,723
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30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Acquisition of Guangzhou Haoqing (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the above acquisition is as follows:

ARKETFTT

RMB" 000

RENRERE Total cash consideration (30,723)

EUIEIR & RIRTTHEMERE Total cash and bank balances acquired 6,510
B EINER A BRI S & Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

ReEEYRLF5E of the acquisition of Guangzhou Haogqing (24,213)

FEW B 5 5 IR R H b FE Y5k I8 R UL
BEAHMNAABESIAARE
9,060,000 C & AR#1,410,0007T °
FEWE 5 IE R E A GRIER A 4
BES R A ARE9,060,000T AR
#1,410,0007T °

AEBRAXBBEENRIKNARA
R¥94,0007T - ZERXRFKAE X
8 0 Wet AGRABEROITHAY -

BUELZR - BMNEBAAEEEE
202012 A31 B IEFEHRAREE
FHEDRIER AR 42,156,000 7T &
AR #1,464,0007T °

4E BERE E2020F12 A31 B IEE
B2 EV#ET - AIAEEEE20204F
12 A31 B IEFERRA RF B 5
BARYEN,776,487,000L R AR
239,695,0007T °

ERBNEHEIZFEANBENER
& OF T EE A 1 T8 2 175 170 280 1 % KL At )
& o BWEAERMmE TR o

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to RMB9,060,000 and
RMB1,410,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts of
trade receivables and other receivables were RMB9,060,000 and
RMB1,410,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB94,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and
are included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Since the acquisition, Guangzhou Haoging has contributed
RMB42,156,000 to the Group’s revenue and RMB1,464,000 to
the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 31 December 2020, the revenue and the profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
RMB1,776,487,000 and RMB239,695,000, respectively.

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected
synergies and other benefits from combining the assets and
activities of Guangzhou Haoqging with those of the Group. The
goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes.
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AR I B T BRE A 4 3 B B B B N R A
ERR RPN 202045 B9 HET M HIAR
EEER S BNTEARESEL
ANR#14,828,500 TR SR BUHE
A M BRI 100 % RO BEANAE 25 » BB IR
WAE—ERPERINDEEERR
ANF - WEEN2020FE5A5%K ° B
It BB ARNEENHEAR -

RN R WS B HI R AT PR B E I
BENAABEARDT

30.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Acquisition of Guangzhou Yaocheng

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement entered into by
Guangzhou Times Property Management and the then
shareholders of Guangzhou Yaocheng on 9 May 2020,
Guangzhou Times Property Management acquired a 100%
equity interest in Guangzhou Yaocheng at a cash consideration
of RMB14,828,500. Guangzhou Yaocheng is a property
management company established in the PRC with limited
liability. The acquisition was completed in May 2020. Since then,
Guangzhou Yaocheng has become a subsidiary of the Group.

The aggregate fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Guangzhou Yaocheng, as at the date of acquisition, were as
follows:

W B Iy B FERR Y
ARfEE
ARETT

Fair value recognised
on acquisition

RMB’ 000
M - BERZE Property, plant and equipment 1,057
EREEE Right-of-use assets 2,200
Hibh & Other intangible assets 2,195
78 Inventories 76
FEWE 5508 Trade receivables 5,246
TETFIE « 1=e K& EAth FE YR IE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 7,499
AR EE 2T ABEA Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
TREE 2,000
Re MBS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 5,123
FEE 5508 Trade payables (1,445)
Hab e R ERTIER Other payables and accruals (3,472)
ERAE Contract liabilities (321)
HEaE Lease liabilities (7,217)
FEEFIEEE (MFE19) Deferred tax liabilities (note 19) (580)
EWEEEFEN AR EBE Fair value of net assets acquired 12,361
W B O T Goodwill on acquisition 2,467
AR €& A Satisfied by cash 14,828

278 TIMES NEIGHBORHOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Bt %5 3R & B &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

30. ¥ 56t (&) 30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
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Acquisition of Guangzhou Yaocheng (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the above acquisition is as follows:

ARKETFTT

RMB" 000

RENRERE Total cash consideration (14,828)

15202012 A31 B 2% Consideration to be paid subsequent to

TR E 31 December 2020 2,974

EUER ¢ RIRTTE S ERE Total cash and bank balances acquired 5,123
BRI HE NI A B R IR & [ Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

ReEEYRLF5E the acquisition of Guangzhou Yaocheng (6,731)

FEWE 5 3 IE & H i FE U 3k IE R IR
BRAHMNAAREBEESAIABARK
5,246,0007T & A R#30,0007T ° f&
B 55018 K E A ERGRIER & 4048
EHRIAARES,246,0007T & A R#E
30,0007 °

REBRNRIPWBELENZZRABA
R#47,0007C - ZFEXHMAE X
¥ YA AGEBEBERNITERAX -

BB AR - BB AR EEHE
202012 A31 HIEFEMBAKRLZE
FEHRIERIA R 17,985,000 7T &
AER#518,0007T °

MEFREZE2020F12 8318 IEF
B2z F9#T - MIAKEBEEE2020F
12 A31BLEFEHBARFEE SR
BARM1,772,958,000 T AR
237,525,0007T °

B FER R BB T 2 5 B R R N 1
MEEREFEASENEEREH
& OF BT 2 A & T8 #1175 [7) R B EL b A
7 o FBRAEHRME AR o

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to RMB5,246,000 and
RMB30,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts of
trade receivables and other receivables were RMB5,246,000 and
RMB30,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB47,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and
are included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Since the acquisition, Guangzhou Yaocheng has contributed
RMB 17,985,000 to the Group’s revenue and RMB518,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 31 December 2020, the revenue and the profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
RMB1,772,958,000 and RMB237,525,000, respectively.

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected
synergies and other benefits from combining the assets and
activities of Guangzhou Yaocheng with those of the Group. The
goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes.
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30. ¥ 56t (&) 30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

W 1k B B

AR M T B R D B B AR N BR RE E By
RIRX B H 20204 6 A 28 B 7] 32 Ay i 4
EEHE BENTRABEAARE
234,050,000 7T Y 3R & B Y AR N
BBRE100% R IR A M e o TRINERRESE S
LRSS % MR AR o RN B ke
AB—EEEZERKRAR - LERIER—
MRPBEKINBRETART + AL
EMnthENEESERGHER © &%
WHEER2020F7 A5 - Btk %
M BB RE & EIGRIETAC A A K B/ I B

7] e

MNBEREERRNABRABEER
BEMNAREEERNT

Acquisition of Xuzhou Mengmu

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement entered into by
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood and the then shareholders
of Xuzhou Mengmu on 28 June 2020, Guangzhou Times
Neighborhood acquired a 100% equity interest in Xuzhou
Mengmu at a cash consideration of RMB234,050,000. Xuzhou
Mengmu holds 51% equity interest of Shanghai Kejian. Xuzhou
Mengmu is an investment holding company and Shanghai
Kejian is a property management service provider for industrial
logistics real estate established in the PRC with limited liability.
The acquisition was completed in July 2020. Since then, Xuzhou
Mengmu and Shanghai Kejian have become subsidiaries of the
Group.

The aggregate fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Xuzhou Mengmu, as at the date of acquisition, were as
follows:

Uit i B 2 BEERR B
RREE
ARBTT

Fair value recognised
on acquisition

RMB’ 000
M - BB KRR Property, plant and equipment 771
HthmpEE Other intangible assets 68,094
FE Inventories 265
JEWE 5508 Trade receivables 28,112
TERRIA -« e REMmEWEIR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 4,422
AR BEFELF ABRA Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
TREE 21,000
REeRNEEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 5,034
B E 5308 Trade payables (21,563)
HAthFE(FIB R FEETIR B Other payables and accruals (21,913)
SREE Contract liabilities (14)
TR Tax payable (379)
FEIEFE A E (KIE19) Deferred tax liabilities (note 19) (17,039)
BRBEEFENAREE Fair value of net assets acquired 66,790
FEVERR A 2 Non-controlling interests (32,727)
34,063
U B B A e Goodwill on acquisition 199,987
LAIR & X 1+ Satisfied by cash 234,050
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30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Acquisition of Xuzhou Mengmu (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the above acquisition is as follows:

ARKETFTT

RMB" 000

RENRERE Total cash consideration (234,050)

EUWIEIR & RIRTTHEMERE Total cash and bank balances acquired 5,034
BWERINEBEESENIRE & Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

ReSEWRLFE of the acquisition of Xuzhou Mengmu (229,016)

FEWE 5 3 IE & H i FE U 3k I8 R IR
BRAHMNAREBEESIABARKE
28,112,0007T & A R #3,882,0007T ©
FEUNE 5 I8 Kk H Ath FE W GRIB M & 4Y
LR A AR 28,112,0007T %A
R#3,882,0007T °

REBRRBBEENZZIKEEA
R¥151,0007C ° ZERXHKAE X
8 WEt ALRABRRNITHRAL -

BB - RMNBEEAAEEHE
202012 A31 HIEFEMBAKRLZE
FESBIEEIARE 111,103,000t &
AR#6,209,0007T °

MEFREZE2020F12A31HIEF
B2 F#T - AIANEEEE20204F
12 A31BLEFEMHRARFEES B
BARBE1,879,996,0007T AR
244,567,0007T °

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to RMB28,112,000 and
RMB3,882,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts of
trade receivables and other receivables were RMB28,112,000
and RMB3,882,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB151,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and
are included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Since the acquisition, Xuzhou Mengmu has contributed
RMB111,103,000 to the Group's revenue and RMB6,209,000 to
the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 31 December 2020, the revenue and the profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
RMB1,879,996,000 and RMB244,567,000, respectively.
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30. 2556 (&) 30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

WEEMNDESHEIEAR
28 ([EMERSD

BEEMNTEHARBEEBLELRE
AR ([EMMERRAESE]) HE
INEZ &R A AR R 2020F7 A31H
RN R IR EEE R - BN RAH
BEBAARE1,560,000THIREK
BUEREMNEZ60% M ANERS -
BMNEEA—HRRREKIAEHE
HERERAA - WHEER2020F8
AZEmR - Bt EMEERALER

Acquisition of Guangzhou Hengxin Jidian
Engineering Company (“Guangzhou Hengxin®)

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement entered into by
Guangzhou Times Neighborhood Elevator Installation and
Maintenance Company (“Guangzhou Times Neighborhood
Elevator”) and the then shareholders of Guangzhou Hengxin
on 31 July 2020, Guangzhou Times Neighborhood Elevator
acquired a 60% equity interest in Guangzhou Hengxin at a
cash consideration of RMB1,560,000. Guangzhou Hengxin is
an elevator installation and maintenance company established
in the PRC with limited liability. The acquisition was completed

in August 2020. Since then, Guangzhou Hengxin has become a
subsidiary of the Group.

RHE AR -

The aggregate fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Guangzhou Hengxin, as at the date of acquisition, were as

ENEERKE BN HREEN
BEMAREEERENT

follows:

Uit B BRF B RERR

ARfBE

ARBETIT

Fair value recognised

on acquisition

RMB" 000

M - BERZE Property, plant and equipment 56
F&8 Inventories 485
FEW & 5 7KI8 Trade receivables 661
TEATFRIE © e R H A EWGRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 83
2R HIERTTIF X Restricted bank deposits 1,688
& E 5 FIE Trade payables (28)
E M E RIB R ERTIE B Other payables and accruals (221)
aRAE Contract liabilities (34)
EWEEERFEN AR EBE Fair value of net assets acquired 2,690
FEIE IR M = Non-controlling interests (1,130)
LATE & 7 A+ Satisfied by cash 1,560
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30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Acquisition of Guangzhou Hengxin Jidian
Engineering Company (“Guangzhou Hengxin®)
(continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the above acquisition is as follows:

ARKETFTT

RMB" 000

RENRERE Total cash consideration (1,560)

1B 202012 A31 B 2% Consideration to be paid subsequent to

XAER(E 31 December 2020 360

EUWEIR € RIRTTE BT Total cash and bank balances acquired =
B EIMNEEEBNIRE & Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

ReEEYRLF5E the acquisition of Guangzhou Hengxin (1,200)

FEUNE 5 5 I8 K E fth FE YR IE A UK S
HEM AR EES B AARE661,000
TR ARES3,0007T - BINE 5 5K18
REAMEWKRIBHE NRED R A A
R¥661,0007T & A R#83,0007T °

REBRNRIPBEENZZRABA
R#%33,0007C - ZFEXHHAE X
# o YAt AGEBBERNITERAX -

BRELR - BMNEEAAEEHE
202012 A31 HIEFEMBAKLZE
FES B ER AR 2,450,000 % A
R#701,0007T °

MEFREZE2020F12 8318 IEF
B2 E#T - AIAREEEE20204F
12 A31BLEFEHBARFEE S R
BARE1,761,337,000C K AR
236,794,0007T °

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to RMB661,000 and
RMB83,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts of
trade receivables and other receivables were RMB661,000 and
RMB83,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB33,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and
are included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Since the acquisition, Guangzhou Hengxin has contributed
RMB2,450,000 to the Group's revenue and RMB701,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 31 December 2020, the revenue and the profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
RMB1,761,337,000 and RMB236,794,000, respectively.
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1. R RERBRME

(a) EXRFREXRS

RER AKEREFRAE
MEERHESAIRFEREEE
rHEABETNIIERSARER
AER#5,579,0007T (20194 :
ARMS,616,0007T) B AR

31.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

5,579,0007C (20194 : AR

8,616,0007T) °

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB5,579,000
(2019: RMB8,616,000) and RMB5,579,000 (2019:
RMB8,616,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings and motor vehicles.

(b) METHFEENAEES (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
B activities
20204 2020
Hipst BER HttENSRKE HEAE
ARBTRT ARBT ARBT R
Other
interest-
bearing Other Lease
borrowings payables liabilities
RMB’000 RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
M2020F1 818 At 1 January 2020 - - 17,457
MERSREL Changes from financing cash flows - (29,986) (8.168)
HEE New leases - - 5,579
FERE Interest expense - - 2,025
PEAKEERSREN Interest paid classified
BERAFLE as operating cash flows - - (954)
KEHEAR Covid-19-related rent concessions
Covid-191HEAFE & Z R from lessors - - (806)
K- E QR Increase arising from the acquisition
Fr/EE HE 38 0 of a subsidiary - - 7,217
BEEIRRE Dividend declared - 29,986 -
$2020% 12 A31 A At 31 December 2020 . . 22,350
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1.8 BEREXRMEE 31.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

(48) STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) MEEZHFELENEES (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
g (&) activities (continued)
20194 2019
Hibst BER HMENRKIEA HERRE
AREFT ARETT ARBTET
Other
interest-
bearing Other Lease
borrowings payables liabilities
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
R2019F 1A 1H At 1 January 2019 1,601,000 5,619 4,469
MERSRELH Changes from financing cash flows (1,698,951) (5,786) (6,394)
& New leases = = 8,616
FERE Interest expense 97,951 167 1,296
SERKERERNEN Interest paid classified as operating
ERHE cash flows - - (619)
WK —KME QT Increase arising from the acquisition
Rz HE 38 0 of a subsidiary = = 10,089
2019412 A31H At 31 December 2019 - - 17,457
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1.8 BEREXRMEE 31.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

(&) STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) HEHRSARHEAZ (c) Total cash outflow for leases
SFARERERNEERS AL The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement
MEEEINR of cash flows is as follows:
20204 20194
AR%T AREET T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
KRB A Within operating activities 15,235 10,634
A EEA Within financing activities 8,168 6,394
23,403 17,028
32. & iE 32. COMMITMENTS
AREBRBEHROERREZENT : The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

2020%F 20194
AR¥TR ARBTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BETAVERIEL B - Contracted, but not provided for:
WiE— KM B AR Acquisition of a subsidiary 118,635 =
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——
33.BAE AT S 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) BBKERE (a) Name and relationship
KRB REIZERARBERE The ultimate holding company of the Company is
& o BEMEERAAS B —HE Renowned Brand. Guangzhou Rongxin is an associate of
BNT] o the Group.
(b) EXBEBLIRS (b) Significant related party transactions
RIREHIR - AN 7 B RFEE 5 3 The following transactions were carried out with related
TATRS : parties during the reporting period:
20205 20194
AR®T T ARKET T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
M E IR RS Property management services
— B R E e — Entities controlled by Times China 70,416 43,762
—HRPEMNEEDLE — Joint ventures of Times China 6,960 5,166
—~-RHRPENEEEEAR — Key management personnel of
Times China 1,010 738
—ARENEEEEAR - Key management personnel of
the Company 140 117
78,526 49,783
FEFE IR ERTS Value-added services to
non-property owners
— AR RIEHINELR — Entities controlled by Times China 266,463 198,405
— B R A BRI E QA — Associates of Times China 10,162 4,380
—RRPENHEELE — Joint ventures of Times China 75,222 49,395
351,847 252,180
@I E RS Community value-added services
— AR BTSN ELE — Entities controlled by Times China 49,820 4,755
— R R A — = Q) — An associate of Times China 777 =
—HRPEMNEEDLE — Joint ventures of Times China 3,050 1,695
53,647 6,450
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B.HABAIRZ (&) 33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) EXBEBARS (&) (b) Significant related party transactions
(continued)
20204 20194
AR¥T T ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BXER Professional services
— BB A E S - Entities controlled by Times China 46,583 21,598
— RRAPER—EBE QR — An associate of Times China 5,448 2,386
—EBRAPEMNEEDLE — Joint ventures of Times China 9,916 4,897
61,947 28,881
FEHEaE Additions of lease liabilities
— AR BTSN E LS — Entities controlled by Times China 2,071 4,867
FLEUA Interest income
— R BE S Y — An entity controlled
—fEEE by Times China - 97,951
FEFAX Interest expense
— AR RIEHINELS — Entities controlled by Times China 524 494
Ll AR5 B R A MR S ERK T The prices for the above service fees and other transactions
RIEE K& T H[F 7 E M IR RE were determined in accordance with terms mutually agreed
E o RBERRIGHRBIE= by the contract parties. The rate and conditions of the
F7 BTt E AR o services are similar to those offered to independent third
parties.
EHETRBIR S MMEK LT Certain of the above related party transactions also
RAETTHAEMER 2BER constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
SAFEEERS - transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

20204 20194
AR¥T T AREFTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
W E 5508 Trade receivables
— BB A E S - Entities controlled by Times China 310,005 76,977
— R R A BRI E AR — Associates of Times China 12,327 3,503
—RRPBENHEELE — Joint ventures of Times China 66,124 31,794
— —MHE AR — An associate - 6
388,456 112,280
TE < FRIE K H A R U FRIE Prepayments and other receivables
— AR REHNERE — Entities controlled by Times China 3,604 4,540
—BRRFBENEEDE — Joint ventures of Times China 284 307
— RRAPER—EEE QT — An associate of Times China 128 =
— —EEBtE QA — An associate 8,277 =
12,293 4,847
HEAE Lease liabilities
— EERPEEE TS - Entities controlled by Times China 4,435 5,038
ERAE Contract liabilities
— BB BT ) E e - Entities controlled by Times China 9,048 2,093
—KRRPENEEDLSE - Joint ventures of Times China 63 300
9,111 2,393
BB SRIA Trade payables
— AR RERINELR — Entities controlled by Times China 164 =
—BRPEN—HEEDRE — A joint venture of Times China 4,191 =
4,355 -
H e 5E Other payables
— B B ) E e — Entities controlled by Times China 4,618 1,274
—KRRPENEEDLE - Joint ventures of Times China 129 38
— RRAPER—EBE QT — An associate of Times China 76 =
4,823 1,312
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020412 H31H 31 December 2020

33.FBE SRR Z (&) 33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
d) XEETEEBAENH (d) Compensation of key management personnel of
BN : the Group:
20204 20194
AR®T T AREFTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
e EREREYET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,289 3,191
ERER S Performance related bonuses 2,660 2,695
LA IS 45 & ) R 1) 22 Bl <2 Equity-settled share award expense 332 =
BRREET BN Pension scheme contributions 168 173
7,449 6,059

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 9 to these financial statements.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

FHEEHeNE - PFBEARZS
PSR MI S ©

BRERSSHNERTA

EREMITARREHRNEEEN

34

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

T instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2020 20194
ARBTT ARKETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000

RBERATTENEREE Financial assets at amortised cost
FEWE 55/ IR Trade receivables 574,082 213,482

FTATRNRIE - EHe Kk Financial assets included in prepayments,

Hib R IEN S REE deposits and other receivables 67,981 47,799

AR EEFELFABZN Financial assets at fair value through
CREE profit or loss 76,000 =
SRR TFER Restricted bank deposits 124,964 3,540
Be MREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,047,739 971,207
1,890,766 1,236,028

REBHERETENSREE Financial liabilities at amortised cost

BB ZFIE Trade payables 275,467 122,129
HEaE Lease liabilities 22,350 17,457

T AE M FERT R IE R FERTIE B &Y Financial liabilities included in other
SRIBE payables and accruals 175,218 116,450
473,035 256,036
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35.

Bt %5 3R & B &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair values of the
Group’s financial assets or financial liabilities approximated to
their respective carrying amounts.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
trade payables, and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of lease liabilities has been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
were wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. The fair values of wealth management products are
categorised within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy which is
measured based on significant observable inputs and has been
estimated by using a discounted cash flow valuation model
based on the market interest rates of instruments with similar
terms and risks.

There were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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B 3% 8RR B R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020412 H31H 31 December 2020

36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

36. B EMEERERERK
;5 OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

AEENFESRIABER e RE
HER - ZZ2RIANTZENE
RRAEENELRE - A&EBEHEA
HEBeREERAE  WEHK
H W KRIE - B 5 R EAME MR
TH - SRR B U5 R IA K B MK R B 7 R
B mEeREERBRERALEM
BHEEE -

AEECMIAELANTIERRAE
SR EREERR - —RE K
SEHHRREERIURTERE - B
# AN 5% 18 P I B B 2% F RUR R 15 &R
K AEEYEEBETATEREM
TAEHHPEN - AEBERFTAHNE
THEXZRENTEEZHIE - A2
AEFeRIITREZERREER
R AT

(a) EERMRK

7R £2 [ T i B KL FE LR R 5 TR TR K
HEWRIE  aREE B
MR EBWARXREIRITIF
RBEBENEERR -

AEEFRARSRRESEEDIA
RZBRHRITHERL T FEEKR
FERR  AREEERARNED
FREBRITREMATR EH
RIT - EREFRABTIERZF
HFDBOMRZEBANER -

& B TE AT R E W BA Bt 5 B FE UK
B 5B R E bW IEERE N
EERBEE BAEMAHTER
HRAGERBNEITEORER
EEENREHER2020512 A
31 AV EA LR - Bt 0 BLE
IR BB 5 O PRI 5 SR TE K HoAth
WA S  BREREEEA

=/ o

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, amounts
due to related parties and amounts due from related parties,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces
conservative strategies on its risk management. To keep the
Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group has
not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors of the
Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables and other receivables, contract assets, cash and
cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits since they are substantially deposited at
state-owned banks and other medium or large-sized
listed banks. Management does not expect that there
will be significant losses from non-performance of these
counterparties.

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade
receivables and other receivables due from related parties
to be low, since the related parties have strong capacity
to meet contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and there was no past due balance as at 31 December
2020. Thus, the impairment provision was considered to be
minimal for the trade receivables and other receivables due
from related parties.
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EEAR ()

REEERERTTREERTN
F=NETEE - AKEBRBT
F/HFINSMREREES
FRER - AR AKENERE S
IR K B b MR IR R B P R IE
OB MASEANLEZAE
EEPAR - I REBFE
B RURIRAEER ©

&SRO R F R
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Bt %5 3R & B &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
analysis by customer/counterparty. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the
customer bases of the Group's trade receivables and other
receivables are widely dispersed. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

As at 31 December 2020

1218 A FEH
FEFR FESNEHEEFE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
B B — BEER= B = R P073 @gt
AR®BTR AR¥ETR AR¥TR AR%TR AR®TR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’ 000 RMB’'000
FEWE 5 IE * Trade receivables* - - - 586,056 586,056
EREE* Contract assets* - - - 16,148 16,148
SHAFEMZIE - 84& % Financial assets included
HAt FE R I Y in prepayments,
THEE deposits and
—EE** other receivables
— Normal** 67,981 - - - 67,981
R RITIER Restricted bank deposits
— AR — Not yet past due 124,964 - - - 124,964
ReRREEEY Cash and cash
equivalents
— AR - Not yet past due 1,047,739 - - - 1,047,739
1,240,684 - - 602,204 1,842,888
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020412 H31H 31 December 2020

36. U EMEEBEERE 36.FINA

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

x(#8) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(a) &R (&) (a) Credit risk (continued)
EEEBHORSFRD KR Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(#&) (continued)
72019612 A31H8 As at 31 December 2019
1218 A 785
FEER FERESREEER
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
PR — FEER— BER=  ftRE st
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT AR®TIT ARBTT
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB"000 RMB’000 RMB’000

JEYE 55 IE Trade receivables* - - - 226,822 226,822
BRIEE* Contract assets* - - - 16,524 16,524
T ATERFRIE « & & Financial assets included
H th fE W SR IB B9 in prepayments, deposits
CRIEE and other receivables
— IE&E** — Normal** 47,799 - - - 47,799
SR HIERTTIF N Restricted bank deposits
— i AREE — Not yet past due 3,540 = = = 3,540
RekReFEY Cash and cash equivalents
— WA EH] - Not yet past due 971,207 - - - 971,207
1,022,546 - - 243,346 1,265,892
it - Notes :
* MAEBEBREBLSE * For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group
HEKE SHRIBEREREEM applies the simplified approach for impairment, information
T - HRBEERNE RN Z based on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 21 and

SOFETRERMIFE21 22 EE -

= GHARNFE - REREME >
WHENEREENEEEE
REARBHRERERIER]
B EmERRA B MR TER A
KzcRBENEERRER
EFRE B ZeREEMN
EEEERERIAIRE] -

22 to these financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

EEAEBEERE SHHIEEEN Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
EERREE - T TEEIBRRE exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
RS HRERME21 © disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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Bt %5 3R & B &
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

36. A EIEEERI  36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

xR (E\) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) 7B R B (b) Liquidity risk
mEERRAAEBREE QR Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
MEBABITH B EENRR - K difficulty in meeting financial obligation due to shortage of
SEEENRBERREEZERS funds. The Group's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily
SRMEENEBGENHRIEE - & from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and
EENERERERBFEREBEREE liabilities. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
RBAEAEZEEES ST R KL between continuity of funding to finance its working
HEMNEARZIREESTHNES capital needs as well as capital expenditure in respect of
& 42\ B R SE M > SR A o its development projects, and flexibility through the use of

stand-by credit facilities.

TEAOMBEALORTBENANRIS The tables below analyse the maturity profile of the
S AEBRBERRNEHE Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
BEIERAR R o period, which is based on contractual undiscounted
payments.
20204 2020

0y PR-F —-FFZRF HFULE &5t
ARBTT AR¥TRT ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR

On Less than 1to Over
demand 1 year 5 years 5 years Total

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

[ERE 5% Trade payables 109,465 166,002 - - 275,467
HEAR Lease liabilities - 10,224 12,808 962 23,994
AT AE A B FOR K Financial liabilities
[EEtEEMESRARE included in other
payables and accruals 175,218 - - - 175,218
284,683 176,226 12,808 962 474,679
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36. Y EEERRERIK
R (&)

(b) FENEREER ()

36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

20194 2019
B AR—F —FFZRF HFENE &t
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETFT ARETT
On  Less than 1to Over
demand 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
[ENE HFIE Trade payables 13,446 108,683 - - 122,129
HERE Lease liabilities - 6,760 13,951 351 21,062
AT AEL A B9 FOR K Financial liabilities
JEETIRE /Y included in other
SHARE payables and accruals 116,450 = = - 116,450
129,896 115,443 13,951 351 259,641
(c) EXEE (c) Capital management

AEBEAERZ BZARBRAN
SEETERBENRFELSE
AEEHECE  FRFRBEE
BREmER  BREEREAKR
B o AEBREZE2020F Kk
201912 A31 B ILFEREE
RESHERE T ©

AEENEARBREHLMBEN
FEANEHEBNFEEZED

AEBEEEERRTEARNR
B UEREAKRARESEE
AEENER - URBIRE -
TTRTARIA I BT3B 75 S 1 3R
BER  FOERBEARE -

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

The capital structure of the Group consists of the non-
trade portion of other payables and accruals, lease
liabilities, share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically and considers the costs of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital to balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends
and new share issues as well as the issue of new debts or
the redemption of existing debts.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% R R MY

2020% 12 H31H 31 December 2020

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

AR - Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2020 20194
AR¥T T AREET T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M - BE REE Property, plant and equipment 11 =
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
TEATFRIE © e R H A EWGRIE Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 636,515 58,664
ReRIBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 650,508 673,873
MEEERE Total current assets 1,287,023 732,537
FREBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HAb I FIB R FEETIR B Other payables and accruals 3,082 8,087
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,283,941 724,450
EEABRABAES TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,283,952 724,450
BEFE Net assets 1,283,952 724,450
ER EQUITY
A&7 Share capital 8,868 8,170
B (BsE) Reserves (note) 1,275,084 716,280
B R Total equity 1,283,952 724,450
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020412 H31H 31 December 2020

37. &R NI FERRE (F)  37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Hfat - Note:
AARIEEH AT : A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:
F{E
B 1n 2@ & 15 52D
RinEE  FHEIERG i B L 25 EE &&f
Shares held
for
the share Share
Share award award Exchange Accumulated
premium scheme reserve reserve losses Total

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

R2019%7 8128 At 12 July 2019 = = - - - _
HAN2HEEESE  Total comprehensive

loss for the period - - - (4,134) (2,830) (6,964)
Rt 31T (3NBRFEISL) Issue of shares,

net of expense 729,959 - - - - 729,959
BARMEAT Capitalisation issue (6,715) = = = = (6,715)
201912 HA31H At 31 December 2019

}2020F1 A1H and 1 January 2020 723,244 - - (4,134) (2,830) 716,280

FRLEEGELE  Total comprehensive

loss for the year - - - (90,637) (5,685) (96,322)
B 817 (3NBRF) Issue of shares,

net of expense 706,568 - - - - 706,568

BEURELEER  Purchase of shares
ffn22B)stEI7E T under the equity-settled

o)) share award scheme - (22,198) - - - (22,198)
UARR 4 B Y Equity-settled share

AR 17 B2 Byt &l award scheme - - 742 = = 742
EEk2019 Final 2019 dividend declared

FRABKE (29,986) - - - - (29,986)
720204124318 At 31 December 2020 1,399,826 (22,198) 742 (94,771) (8,515) 1,275,084

38. H18 =18 38. EVENTS AFTER THE PERIOD
M2020FE12 8118 » AEBEEBF On 11 December 2020, the Group entered into an equity
= HES R EEE S - IR ES transfer agreement with independent third parties to acquire
ERTRIR AR AT ([REaE ] - £ 49% interest in Chengdu Holytech Technology Co., Ltd. (A#B
EREY RSP R B49%IZHE « A BEBITREEABR AR, “Chengdu Holytech”), which is mainly
EEUEREESE  E—FIEBARE engaged in property management business. The Group acquired
VEEBERNTIEGDEE - WENR Chengdu Holytech to further expand its market share of property
KEHE ARE 296,587,000 5 AR & management. The maximum consideration is RMB296,587,000
BT - AR EEE SRR for the acquisition, which is in the form of cash. The relevant
2021451 AR © equity transfer registration arrangement was completed in
January 2021.
39. #LEB R 39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

BIisHRE IR 2021 E3 10 EES The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
et RIS RE TR o by the board of directors on 10 March 2021.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TXEIAEERBAERETBREERNES A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and equity
UREE BEEREHME (BHELER of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
MR EARTAEA2019F12 AR audited financial statements and the Company's prospectus dated 9
RRER) : December 2019, is set out below:

BZE12A31HLFE
Year ended 31 December

20205 20194 20184 20174 20164
AR®TR ARBTT ARBTET ARBTIT AREBTT
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

E RESULTS
WA REVENUE 1,758,427 1,081,341 695,752 518,995 372,875
SHE AR Cost of sales (1,227,379)  (776,044)  (505,254)  (389,484)  (286,354)
ER Gross profit 531,048 305,297 190,498 129,511 86,521
H WA RS Other income and gains 23,546 6,078 2,055 2,745 898
SHE RIS ER A Selling and marketing costs (46,885) (10,380) (8,466) (7,416) (6,352)
TR X Administrative expenses (180,274) (124,945) (89,717) (70,106) (42,000)
PRK&EREERE Net impairment losses on

Jgihe financial and contract

assets (2,154) (3,473) (1,714) (2,697) (2,350)
Hhp Other expenses (2,322) (26,893) (4,901) (2,655) (3,415)
B & P A FRE Finance costs, net (8,321) (13,539) (4,606) (4,836) (3,828)
D — g E R R Share of profit of
an associate 2,101 3,393 3,437 2,317 785

R A0 F PROFIT BEFORE TAX 316,739 135,538 86,586 46,863 30,259
FriSfi X Income tax expense (79,865) (40,214) (22,422) (12,688) (10,194)
FEEFE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 236,874 95,324 64,164 34,175 20,065
T BB - Attributable to:

ISUNSIEZEPN Owners of the parent 232,606 96,313 63,524 33,797 19,992

FEFE R Non-controlling interests 4,268 (989) 640 378 73

236,874 95,324 64,164 34,175 20,065
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EFFHBERE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE  BERER ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

M®12H31H
As at 31 December

20205 20195 20184 20174 20164
ARBTR ARETT ARBTET ARBTIT AREBTRT
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

EE#E TOTAL ASSETS 2,648,951 1,500,942 3,646,410 876,323 476,739
EEAE TOTAL LIABILITIES (887,254)  (601,711) (3,538,964)  (832,684)  (467,766)
ERAE TOTAL EQUITY 1,761,697 899,231 107,446 43,639 8,973
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